Annual Report 2002

Unprecedented Environment. Unprecedented Action. Unprecedented Opportunity.

Contents
Financial Review

1

Shareholders’ Letter

2

Form 10-K

9

global reach

Phoenix, Arizona-based Avnet, Inc., a Fortune 500
company, is one of the world’s largest distributors
of semiconductors; interconnect, passive and
electromechanical components; enterprise network
and computer equipment; and embedded subsystems
from leading manufacturers. Serving customers around
the world, Avnet markets, inventories and adds value
to these products and provides world-class technical
and supply-chain management services.

Today, business has no borders.
Avnet’s global scope ensures
we can meet our customers’ and
suppliers’ needs wherever they
choose to do business.

Financial Review 1998-2002*
Years Ended
IN

MILLIONS, EXCEPT FOR PER SHARE AND RATIO DATA

June 28,
2002

June 29,
2001

June 30,
2000

July 2,
1999

June 26,
1998

Income:
Sales
Gross Profit
Operating Income (loss)
Income Tax Provision (benefit)
Earnings (loss)

$8,920.2
1,222.8
(3.0)
(36.4)
(84.4)

(E)
(E)
(E)
(E)(F)

$12,814.0
1,865.5
253.7
87.2
0.1

$9,915.0
1,444.8
368.0
121.1
162.6

(D)
(D)
(D)
(D)

$6,805.7
1,048.0
182.5
204.8
180.3

(C)
(C)
(C)
(C)

(B)
(B)
(B)
(B)

$6,334.6
1,081.1
293.5
125.6
165.9

(A)
(A)
(A)
(A)

Financial Position:
Working Capital
Total Assets
Total Debt
Shareholders’ Equity

1,928.7
4,682.0
1,625.1
1,804.5

1,177.4
5,864.1
2,221.6
2,374.6

2,368.7
5,934.4
2,153.9
2,246.7

1,977.0
3,563.4
998.5
1,718.8

1,899.1
3,308.6
1,017.9
1,628.5

Per Share :
(G)

Basic Earnings (loss)
Diluted Earnings (loss)
Dividends
Book Value

(0.71)
(0.71)
0.15
15.11

(E)(F)
(E)(F)

—
—
0.30
20.15

(D)

2.0%
—%
—%
2.2%
0.7:1
1.5:1
48.3%

(D)

(D)

1.52
1.50
0.30
19.88

(C)

3.7%
1.6%
8.1%
6.1%
1.1:1
2.2:1
48.9%

(C)

(C)

1.89
1.86
0.30
18.15

(B)

2.7%
2.6%
11.0%
8.1%
1.8:1
3.3:1
36.8%

(B)

(B)

1.63
1.59
0.30
16.86

(A)

4.6%
2.6%
9.5%
7.7%
1.9:1
3.9:1
38.5%

(A)

(A)

Ratios:
Operating Income (loss) Margin on Sales
Profit (loss) Margin on Sales
Return on Equity
Return on Capital
Quick
Working Capital
Total Debt to Capital

—% (E)
(0.9)% (E)(F)
(4.1)% (E)(F)
(0.2)% (E)(F)
1.2:1
2.5:1
47.4 %

(D)
(D)
(D)

(C)
(C)
(C)

* Income amounts are from continuing operations and net assets from discontinued operations have been
(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

classified as current assets. All amounts prior to 2002 have been restated for the acquisition of Kent, which
has been accounted for using the “pooling-of-interests” method.
Includes the net negative impact of $14.9 pre-tax and $12.5 after-tax ($0.12 per share on a diluted basis)
for (i) the gain on the sale of Channel Master of $33.8 pre-tax and $17.2 after-tax, (ii) costs relating to the
divestiture of Avnet Industrial, the closure of the Company’s corporate headquarters in Great Neck,
New York, and the anticipated loss on the sale of Company-owned real estate, amounting to $13.3 pre-tax
and $8.5 after-tax, and (iii) incremental special charges associated with the reorganization of EM, amounting
to $35.4 pre-tax and $21.2 after-tax.
Includes the net gain on exiting the printed catalog business recorded in the fourth quarter of 1999
offset by special charges recorded in the first quarter associated with the reorganization of EM.
The net positive effect on 1999 operating income, net income and diluted earnings per share were $183.0,
$64.0 and $0.64, respectively.
Includes special charges associated with: (i) the integration of Marshall Industries, Eurotronics B.V. and
the SEI Macro Group into EM, (ii) the integration of JBA Computer Solutions into CM North America,
(iii) the reorganization of EM Asia, (iv) the reorganization of EM’s European operations including
costs related to the consolidation of EM’s European warehousing operations and (v) costs incurred in
connection with certain litigation brought by the Company.The total special charges for 2000 amounted
to $49.0 pre-tax, $30.4 after-tax and $0.28 per share on a diluted basis.
Includes the impact of incremental special charges related to the acquisition and integration of Kent,
which was accounted for as a “pooling-of-interests,” and other integration, reorganization and cost cutting
initiatives taken in response to business conditions. The special charges amounted to $327.5 pre-tax
($80.6 included in cost of sales and $246.9 included in operating expenses) and $236.7 after-tax, or $1.99
per share on a diluted basis for the year ($2.01 per share for the fourth quarter).
Includes the impact of incremental special charges related to the write-down of certain assets acquired in
the 2001 acquisition of Kent, net of certain recoveries of previous write-downs and reserves, as well as
other charges taken in response to business conditions, including an impairment charge to write-down
certain investments in unconsolidated Internet-related businesses to their fair value and severance charges
for workforce reductions announced during the fourth quarter of 2002. The net special charges amounted to $79.6 pre-tax ($21.6 included in cost of sales and $58.0 included in operating expenses) and $62.1
after-tax, or $0.52 per share on a diluted basis.
The 2002 summary financial data excludes the impact of the Company’s adoption of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board’s Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (“SFAS 142”),
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” on June 30, 2001, the first day of the Company’s fiscal year 2002.
SFAS 142, which requires that ratable amortization of goodwill be replaced with periodic tests for
goodwill impairment, resulted in a transition impairment charge recorded by the Company of $580.5,
or $4.90 per share on a diluted basis for the first quarter and the fiscal year. This charge is reflected as
cumulative change in accounting principle in the consolidated statements of operations.
All per share data have been restated to reflect a two-for-one split of the Company’s common
stock approved by the Board of Directors on August 31, 2000. These shares were distributed on
September 28, 2000 to shareholders of record on September 18, 2000.

(B)
(B)
(B)

(A)
(A)
(A)

AVNET, INC. SALES
Q4'02
Q3 '02
Q2 '02
Q1 '02
Q4 '01
Q3 '01
Q2 '01
Q1 '01

$ 2,144.8
$2,214.4
$2,359.8
$2,201.2
$2,537.7
$3,457.2
$3,630.5
$3,188.6
IN MILLIONS

AVNET, INC. DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE*
Q4 '02
Q3 '02
Q2 '02
Q1 '02
Q4 '01
Q3 '01
Q2 '01
Q1 '01
1

$.01
-$.01
-$.02
-$.16
$.05
$.56
$.69
$.68
*Before special items described in notes (D through F)

To O u r S h a r e h o l d e r s
Dear Fellow Avnet Shareholder:
In an unprecedented industry environment, Avnet’s team was put to the test during fiscal year
2002.The previous year’s dramatic industry downturn continued to challenge all aspects of the
technology supply chain. For the first time in more than four decades, Avnet posted an operating
loss for the fiscal year. But our team’s actions, reactive and proactive, were equally unprecedented.
Operations were fine-tuned. Our cost structure and debt were reduced substantially. Our value
propositions were enhanced.The result: a lean and focused organization better positioned than
ever for growth and for leveraging profits and creating shareholder returns from that growth.
UNPRECEDENTED ENVIRONMENT
In our previous annual report, I described fiscal year 2001 as “a tale of two markets.” It was the
best of times during the first half, and the worst of times during the second half as the slowing
worldwide economy, falling demand for electronic equipment and a supply chain bloated with
excess inventory and over-capacity converged. A significant drop in revenues heralded what
would be, for Avnet and the technology industry overall, an extremely difficult period. However,
as FY’02 progressed, the story became one of stabilization in the technology market, albeit at
much lower revenue levels. At Avnet, our operating results improved continuously throughout
the fiscal year, and we returned to profitability in the fourth quarter before special charges.
Avnet closed the year with $8.92 billion in revenues, approximately 30 percent lower than the
$12.81 billion record set in FY’01. Per share results from continuing operations fell to a loss of
$0.16 in the September quarter of 2001 before aggressive expense reductions, which started
during FY’01 and continued throughout FY’02, began to catch up with the steep revenue decline.
Subsequently, losses decreased to $0.02 per share and $0.01 per share in the December 2001
and March 2002 quarters, respectively, and Avnet ended FY’02 back in the black at $0.01 per
share before special charges.
UNPRECEDENTED ACTIONS
Although we are far from satisfied with the Company’s FY’02 financial results, rest assured
that Avnet is committed to generating acceptable levels of profitability regardless of market
conditions and revenue levels. Clearly, by the December 2001 quarter, our leadership team’s
focus on strengthening our financial position and restructuring our operations began to
curtail the losses wrought by unprecedented falling revenues. Throughout the year, the
Company attained cost savings from global economies of scale that were created during the
previous decade’s aggressive acquisition period.
STRENGTHENING AVNET’S FINANCIAL POSITION Since December 2000, Avnet’s
management team has concentrated on removing cost and working capital from our business and
generating cash. In doing so, it has created unprecedented operating leverage for our Company.
Today, our balance sheet is positioned to support growth, and our profit and loss statement,
trimmed of expenses, gives us the ability to leverage top-line growth to higher earnings levels.
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Electronics Marketing (EM) Through
focused divisions, EM markets, inventories and
adds value, via services such as supply-chain
management and engineering design, to
semiconductors; interconnect, passive and
electromechanical devices; radio frequency
and microwave devices; and specialty products
from leading component manufacturers.

The June 2002 quarter represented the fifth
consecutive quarter of operating expense reductions
(excluding special charges) and the sixth consecutive
quarter of debt reductions. Over this span, annualized
operating expenses were reduced approximately
$300 million. Slashed by approximately $1.5 billion,
debt was almost halved. At the end of FY’02, our
asset velocity ratios were in line with historic levels, so
we do not anticipate significant additional asset
productivity gains until revenue growth resumes.We will
continue to balance practical cost reduction measures
with investments as we position the Company to
expand its role in the next technology up-cycle.

Computer Marketing (CM) CM builds
channels to market that provide focused sales,
marketing and value-added distribution of
enterprise computing systems, software
and services for value-added resellers, and
enterprise solutions for end users.
Applied Computing (AC) AC markets
and adds value through engineering assistance,
supply-chain management and end product
integration to embedded technology
subsystems, including computer platforms
and servers, boards and memory modules,
mass storage, peripherals, microprocessors,
flat panel displays and operating systems.

RESTRUCTURING OPERATIONS To accelerate
top and bottom line growth, Electronics Marketing,
Computer Marketing and Applied Computing
completed reorganizations that commenced at the
beginning of FY’02.Within those operating groups
are now more than 30 strategic divisions focused by
commodity, line card and/or geography. Across the
enterprise, there is a strong commitment to services,
for it is our Company’s services that differentiate
Avnet’s product distribution business from our
competitors. When provided on a stand-alone, fee
basis, our services also create new revenue streams in

AVNET, INC. FY 2002;
SALES BY OPERATING GROUP
AC
<

CM

superior capabilities
It’s not just about products, it’s
about the services, relationships
and knowledge that add value
to them and free our customers
and suppliers to concentrate on
what makes them successful.
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EM

<

$ Billions<

% of;
Avnet Sales;

EM<

$4.84

54.3%

CM<

$2.40

26.9%;

AC<

$1.68

18.8%

Following an era of consolidation in its
industry, Avnet has emerged as a leading
global player across the technology supply
chain.The Company’s aggressive acquisition
strategy throughout the 1990s reduced its
cost structure through synergies, expanded
its customer and supplier relationships,
broadened its geographic reach, and added
the skills and knowledge of talented,
experienced employees.Today, the
Company is leveraging its global scope
and economies of scale for the benefit of its
worldwide suppliers and customers, as well
as its shareholders.

Arrow
Avnet
VEBA
Marshall
Future Electronics
Pioneer-Standard
Premier Farnell ;

1997 CALENDAR YEAR SALES

markets that have traditionally sourced products directly.
We also believe in organizing our Company so that
each operating group and division can focus on its core
activities.To this end, we have created Shared Business
Services to manage our back-office functions.With
customer service as its priority, Shared Business Services
provides quality, timely and cost-effective services and
solutions that leverage Avnet’s economies of scale. David
Birk, one of Avnet’s most experienced executives, leads
this important effort.

$7.8
$5.4
$3.7
$2.2
$2.1

LEVERAGING SCOPE & SCALE By leveraging the
Company’s scope and economies of scale, Avnet has
continued to gain market share during this difficult year.
Enterprise gross profit margins before special charges
increased in the March 2002 and June 2002 quarters,
despite weak markets and the continued erosion of average
selling prices in many of our product lines. Avnet closed
FY’02 number one in revenues in its peer group, with a
substantial lead over all competitors but one.

$1.5
$1
$0

$2

$4

$6

$8

$10

$12

IN BILLIONS

Avnet
Arrow
Future Electronics
Pioneer-Standard
Memec
Bell Micro

2001 CALENDAR YEAR SALES

$10.6
$10.1
$2.9
$2.5

Our information technology (IT) investments have created
deep and wide-ranging IT capabilities.This year, Bob Mason
joined the Company as chief information officer, chartered
with leveraging our investments and globalizing our
capabilities. At Avnet, we believe that having best-in-class

$2.1
$2.0
$0

$2

$4

$6

$8

$10

$12

IN BILLIONS

deeper relationships
As a trusted collaborator
since 1955, Avnet has helped
its customers and suppliers
become more competitive
and profitable.
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Creating Value for the Technology Supply Chain

IT capability is an important competitive advantage for our Company, just as research and
development are for a products-based company, fostering growth while maximizing profitability.
By integrating acquisitions such as Kent Electronics Corporation, which closed just before FY’02
began, Avnet gained specialist product divisions and removed redundant infrastructure, resulting
in permanent cost reductions that allowed us to leverage savings in the face of falling revenues.
UNPRECEDENTED OPPORTUNITY
Through the 1980s, Avnet focused heavily on organic growth, adding new customers and
suppliers, growing revenues and capturing market share. During the ‘90s, the Company focused
more on mergers and acquisitions, growing earnings and leveraging the economies of scale we
had built.Today, we possess a new code.With a fervent commitment to value-based management,
we have aligned our culture, goals, structure and compensation to accomplish a single overarching
goal: consistently increase shareholder value.
Avnet’s primary financial objective is, quite simply, to create shareholder value. Improving return
on capital employed (ROCE), accelerating earnings growth and improving earnings growth stability
will lead us to this overarching goal.
Our commitment to shareholder value creation does not stop with the executive team.
At Avnet, we are forging a culture driven by value. Each operating group president is measured
on ROCE and earnings growth. Every executive leading a specialized business unit is measured
and paid on return on working capital and earnings growth.The compensation of all employees
with variable pay plans is aligned with the fundamental goal of delivering shareholder value.

management strength
Members of the Avnet Executive
Board average
more than 20 years of
industry experience. There
is no more knowledgeable team
in the business.
5

Further, our focused, specialized division structure, the expansion of fee-based services in
existing and new, potentially more profitable markets, and continued firm expense control
should accelerate the Company’s earnings growth. By offering valued services that span the
technology supply chain, Avnet is creating a balanced revenue portfolio aimed squarely at
continual improvement in earnings growth stability. At the front end of the technology supply
chain, Computer Marketing markets high-end enterprise computing products and services to
global companies. At the back end, Electronics Marketing sells electronic components and
services to electronics manufacturing customers. And in the middle, Applied Computing serves
the needs of original equipment manufacturers with today’s most advanced embedded computing
products and services.
UNPRECEDENTED FUTURE
Despite continued industry and global economic volatility, one thing is certain: technology is
tightly woven into the fabric of the global economy and will remain a critical driver well into
the future.The technology market has traditionally grown faster than the gross domestic
product, and Avnet intends to outperform the tech market, as it has done historically.
Avnet’s ability to continually and aggressively adjust to the dynamic technology market is
testament to the knowledge, hard work and dedication of the Avnet team, and to the
effectiveness of our Company’s organizational development and succession planning activities.
A prime example: the management changes that followed Brian Hilton’s June retirement. Leading
Electronics Marketing, Mr. Hilton played a key role in the operating group’s successful expansion
into Asia.With 36 years in the industry his legacy is undeniable, yet his retirement opened the

distinctive value
Our goal: Create shareholder
value. Our measure: Return
on capital employed and
earnings growth. Our strategy:
Value-based management from
the warehouse to the boardroom.
6

door to a new generation of leaders at Avnet.
Andy Bryant, formerly president of Computer
Marketing, was promoted to president of Electronics
Marketing. Mr. Bryant brings 23 years of distribution
industry experience, 20 with Avnet, to his new role.
Rick Hamada, another industry veteran who has been
with the Company since 1983, now helms Computer
Marketing. Mr. Hamada ran Computer Marketing’s
Avnet Hall-Mark division prior to his promotion.

AVNET, INC. FY 2002;
SALES BY REGION

Asia

<

% of;
$ Billions< Avnet Sales;
<

EMEA*

Americas

While we cannot control the environment in which
we compete, we can control how well we compete
within it.There are two fundamental reasons why
a company chooses to partner with Avnet: we save
Passives, Electromechanical;
them money, thereby increasing their profits;
and Other
and/or we help them grow faster, again, increasing
Connectors
their profits. At Avnet, we deliver value to our
customers by delivering distinctive services and
technology products that enhance their business
growth and profitability.We deliver value
Semiconductors
Computer;
Products
to our suppliers by building efficient channels to
target markets and offering innovative services that
accelerate their growth. Going forward, Avnet has the
opportunity to play an ever more important role in
the technology supply chain, and to leverage that role
to continually increase shareholder value.

investment opportunity
From a broad array of
components and computing
systems to the services that
support them, Avnet creates
value across the technology
supply chain.
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Americas< $5.30

59.4%

EMEA*<

$2.90

32.5%;

Asia<

$0.72

8.1%

*Europe, Middle East and Africa

AVNET, INC. FY 2002;
SALES BY PRODUCT
<
<

% of;
$ Billions< Avnet Sales;

Semiconductors < $4.43

49.7%

Computer Products < $3.48

39.0%;

$0.38

4.3%

Passives, <
$0.63
Electromechanical;
and Other;

7.0%

;

Connectors <

Avnet prides itself not only on delivering value, but on
a strong set of values that drive our decisions.We are
committed to a healthy corporate culture and leadership
in corporate governance. Our core values are symbolically
engraved on stone plaques that are prominently displayed
in every Avnet location, along with posters signed by more
than 500 global managers.The Avnet Code of Conduct
clearly delineates the professional behavior expected
of employees.
It is upon these high standards that our corporate
governance rests. As chairman, I am the sole member
of the board of directors employed by Avnet, and have
been since 1998. Our corporate governance, audit and
compensation committees are staffed by experienced and
competent outside directors. Only minor adjustments will
be necessary for Avnet to reach full compliance with all of
the new rules for corporate governance proposed in 2002.

VISION
Avnet will deliver the highest value
to our customers, suppliers,
employees and shareholders
as the premier

I must thank our 11,000-plus employees for their hard
work and focus during these very challenging market
conditions. On behalf of myself and the global Avnet team,
thank you for your continued confidence in our Company.
The best is yet to come.

technology marketing and services company,
globally.

Financial Objective
Avnet strives to create shareholder value
while stabilizing earnings growth by:
Roy Vallee
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

• Improving return on capital employed
(ROCE) through the creation of a
value-based management culture.
• Accelerating earnings growth through
specialist divisions, services and
expense controls.
• Improving earnings growth stability
with a balanced revenue portfolio.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Report contains forward-looking statements with respect to the Ñnancial condition, results of
operations and business of Avnet, Inc. (""Avnet'' or the ""Company''). You can Ñnd many of these statements
by looking for words like ""believes,'' ""expects,'' ""anticipates,'' ""estimates'' or similar expressions in this
Report.
These forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks and uncertainties. Factors
that may cause actual results to diÅer materially from those contemplated by the forward-looking statements
include the following:
‚ Competitive pressures among distributors of electronic components and computer products may
increase signiÑcantly through industry consolidation, entry of new competitors or otherwise.
‚ General economic, industry or business conditions, domestic and foreign, may be less favorable than we
expected, resulting in lower sales and declining operating results which can, in turn, impact our credit
ratings and debt covenant compliance.
‚ Costs or diÇculties related to the integration into Avnet of newly-acquired businesses, or businesses we
expect to acquire, may be greater than we expected.
‚ Avnet may lose customers or suppliers as a result of the integration into Avnet of newly acquired
businesses.
‚ Legislative or regulatory changes may adversely aÅect the business in which Avnet is engaged.
‚ Adverse changes may occur in the securities markets.
‚ Changes in interest rates and currency Öuctuations may reduce Avnet's proÑt margins.
‚ Avnet may be adversely aÅected by the allocation of products by suppliers.
Because forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, actual results may diÅer
materially from those expressed or implied by them. We caution you not to place undue reliance on these
statements, which speak only as of the date of this report.
We do not undertake any obligation to update publicly or revise any forward-looking statements, whether
as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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PART I
Item 1. Business*
Avnet, Inc., incorporated in New York in 1955, together with its subsidiaries (the ""Company'' or
""Avnet''), is one of the world's largest industrial distributors of electronic components, enterprise network and
computer equipment and embedded subsystems, with sales in 2002 of $8.92 billion.
Avnet is a vital link in the chain that connects suppliers of semiconductors, interconnect products, passive
and electromechanical devices, radio frequency (""RF'') and microwave devices, and specialty products to
original equipment manufacturers (""OEMs'') and contract manufacturers that design and build the electronic
equipment for end-market use, and to other industrial customers. In addition, Avnet distributes a variety of
enterprise network and computer equipment and embedded subsystems and provides services to both the end
user and the reseller channels. Through its electronic components distribution activities, Avnet acts as an
extension of a supplier's sales force by marketing products to a larger base of customers than individual
suppliers could do economically. While many suppliers can only economically serve a few hundred of the
larger OEMs and contract manufacturers, Avnet is authorized to sell products of more than 250 of the world's
leading component manufacturers to a global customer base of over 100,000. Avnet ships electronic
components as received from its suppliers or with assembly or other value added. As part of its distribution
activities, Avnet adds various processes that customize products to meet individual OEM customer speciÑcations. Avnet also provides supply-chain management, engineering design, material management and logistic
services.
Organizational Structure
The Company currently consists of three operating groups, Electronics Marketing (""EM''), Computer
Marketing (""CM'') and Applied Computing (""AC''). A brief summary of each group followed by a more
detailed description is provided below.
1. EM is engaged in the global marketing, assembly and/or distribution of electronic and
electromechanical components and certain computer products, principally for industrial and some
commercial and military use. EM also oÅers an array of value-added services to its customers, such as
supply-chain management, engineering design, inventory replenishment systems, kitting, connector and
cable assembly and semiconductor programming.
2. CM is an international distributor/reseller of enterprise networking and computer equipment to
value-added resellers (""VARs'') and end users focusing primarily on middle- to high-end, value-added
computer products and services. CM also provides a variety of networking solutions to its customer base.
3. AC serves the needs of personal computer OEMs and system integrators worldwide by providing
the latest computer component technologies, and also serves the needs of non-PC OEMs that require
embedded systems and technical services such as product prototyping, conÑgurations and other valueadded services.
Throughout 2002, each of the three operating groups implemented plans to further manage their
businesses through the creation of new, focused business units that generally serve separate sectors, based
upon product, service or geography. These business units are speciÑcally discussed in the operating group
descriptions that follow. Even as the business unit structures continue to be put in place, EM, CM and AC
remain the overall segments upon which management primarily evaluates the operations of the Company and
upon which it bases its operating decisions.
*

Unless otherwise speciÑcally indicated, references in this Report to any particular year or quarter generally
are to the Company's Ñscal year period. The Company's Ñscal year ends on the Friday closest to June 30th.
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The sales, operating income (loss) and assets of EM, CM and AC, as well as Avnet's sales and assets by
geographic area, are shown in Note 16 to the consolidated Ñnancial statements appearing in Item 14 of this
Report.
Electronics Marketing (""EM'')
EM is Avnet's largest operating group, with sales in 2002 of $4.84 billion, representing 54.3% of Avnet's
consolidated sales. EM is comprised of three regional operations: EM Americas, which had sales of
$2.62 billion in 2002, or 29.4% of Avnet's consolidated sales; EM EMEA (Europe, Middle East and Africa),
which had sales of $1.60 billion in 2002, or 17.9% of Avnet's consolidated sales; and EM Asia, which had sales
of $620.6 million in 2002, or 7.0% of Avnet's consolidated sales.
EM's business units provide core value services, which focus on the transactional needs of the traditional
electronic components distribution market, oÅering one of the industry's broadest line cards and convenient
one-stop shopping with an emphasis on responsiveness, on-time delivery and quality. Certain specialty services
are also provided by the support services business units. The business units located in the Americas, Europe
and Asia market semiconductors; interconnect, passive and electromechanical devices (""IP&E'');
RF/microwave (wireless) components; and value-added services.
EM's business unit structure is as follows:
‚ Avnet Cilicon, Avnet's semiconductor division in the Americas, focuses on the semiconductor
requirements of both customers and suppliers. To achieve this focus, the semiconductor division has
channels focused on diÅerent customers' needs, including dedicated channels to service small to
medium customers, large customer engagements, defense and aerospace customers, emerging customers and contract manufacturers.
‚ Avnet Kent is the Americas' IP&E division, a focused business unit created from the merger in June
2001 of Avnet EM's and Kent's IP&E businesses. Avnet Kent distributes electronic connectors,
electronic wire and cable, and other passive and electromechanical products and interconnect
assemblies used in assembling and manufacturing electronic products. Avnet Kent also provides valueadded services such as cable assembly, fan assembly, taping and reeling and component modiÑcation.
‚ Avnet RF & Microwave in the Americas serves the distinct needs of both customers and suppliers by
providing RF and microwave semiconductors and components from the industry's leading suppliers.
Avnet RF & Microwave provides a wide array of value-added services including hi-rel processing,
parametric assembly and RF cable assembly.
‚ In EMEA, EM goes to market with seven business units: EBV and WBC, based in Germany, which
specialize in demand creation for select semiconductor suppliers; Silica, based in the United Kingdom,
a semiconductor marketer; Avnet Time, based in the United Kingdom, a marketer of IP&E
components; BFI-Optilas, based in France, a marketer of specialty components and devices across
Europe; Avnet Israel, based in Tel Aviv, one of the largest value-added electronic components
distributors in Israel; and Avnet Kopp, one of South Africa's largest distributors of electronic and
electrical components. EM EMEA does business in 30 western and eastern European countries, South
Africa, Turkey, Egypt and Israel.
‚ EM Asia is a value-added distributor of electronic components and services in 10 Asian countries and
Australia and New Zealand. All of EM Asia's operations have access to the products and services
provided by EM globally. The 2001 acquisition of Sunrise Technology Ltd. (""Sunrise'') signiÑcantly
enhanced EM's presence in Asia, especially the Peoples' Republic of China (""PRC''). Sunrise, with
locations in Hong Kong and China, specializes in demand creation from select semiconductor
suppliers. Its focus is on demand creation with a limited line card. Avnet goes to market in China with
three focused business units Ì Sunrise, ChinaTronic and Avnet Technology.
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Supporting the focused EM business units described above are the following support services business
units:
‚ Avnet Design Services Ì Provides an array of engineering and technical services for customers,
including turnkey logic designs, reference and product designs, and demand creation services for
suppliers. Avnet Design Services has four design centers in the United States and locations in Canada,
England, Germany, India, Israel, New Zealand and Singapore.
‚ Avnet Integrated Material Services Ì Performs industry-leading material forecasting, supply chain
synchronization and warehouse services. Avnet Integrated Material Services develops and implements
innovative materials management solutions for EM's major customers and their contract manufacturers. Regional Avnet Integrated Material Services business units service the requirements of regional
customers.
Also a part of EM is Avnet's global services business unit, Avnet Supply Chain Services, which provides endto-end sales of supply-chain services to OEMs, contract manufacturers and electronic component
manufacturers.
Computer Marketing (""CM'')
CM is an international distributor/reseller of computer products to VARs and end users focusing
primarily on middle- to high-end, value-added computer products and services. CM's 2002 sales were
$2.40 billion, representing 26.9% of Avnet's consolidated sales. CM's 2002 global sales consisted of the
following regional results: CM North America sales of $1.94 billion, or 21.7% of Avnet's consolidated sales;
CM EMEA sales of $425.9 million, or 4.8% of Avnet's consolidated sales; and CM Asia/PaciÑc sales of
$32.6 million, or 0.4% of Avnet's consolidated sales.
CM consists of three primary operating divisions as follows:
‚ Avnet Hall-Mark concentrates on sales of mid-range enterprise computer systems and software,
including servers, storage and networking solutions, exclusively to the reseller channel in North
America. Avnet Hall-Mark is one of the industry's leading value-added distributors in the mid-range
computing space in support of a limited line card of the foremost mid-range manufacturers, which
include BMC, EMC2, HP/Compaq, IBM, Intel, Oracle, StorageTek and VERITAS. Avnet HallMark provides those manufacturers' products to value-added resellers, along with complementary
value-added solutions. Avnet Hall-Mark also provides logistics, Ñnancial, marketing, sales and
technical services, including in-house engineering support, complex systems integration and conÑguration services.
‚ Avnet Enterprise Solutions is an IT infrastructure architect specializing in enterprise server, storage
and network solutions that power leading business applications in North America. Avnet Enterprise
Solutions leverages its unique suite of technical and Ñnancial strategies and services to minimize risk,
maximize Öexibility and optimize the use of capital on IT infrastructures. Avnet Enterprise Solutions
sells industry leading networking and storage systems, mid-range servers, and professional services to
end user enterprise customers. Avnet Enterprise Solutions is a technology solutions integrator,
providing hardware, software and services for corporate-wide infrastructure needs. Leveraging its array
of Ñnancial, acquisition and technical services, Avnet Enterprise Solutions brings value to businesses
intent on managing their total cost of technology infrastructure Ì from the data center, through the
network, to the desktop. Avnet Enterprise Solutions has signiÑcant relationships with Cisco Systems,
Computer Associates, HP/Compaq, IBM, Oracle, Tivoli and VERITAS.
‚ Avnet Partner Solutions is an industry leading, value-added distributor of enterprise computing
systems, software, storage, networking solutions and services, marketing exclusively to the value-added
reseller channel. Avnet Partner Solutions has European oÇces in Austria, Czech Republic, Germany,
Hungary, Italy, Poland, Switzerland and the United Kingdom. Avnet Partner Solutions also operates a
division in Australia, serving resellers and end-users. Product lines of Avnet Partner Solutions include
EMC2, HP/Compaq, IBM, Lotus, StorageTek, SUN and VERITAS.
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Applied Computing (""AC'')
AC was created from portions of EM (OEM Systems Product Business Group and Personal Computing
Components) and CM (Hall-Mark Computer Components) in 2000. AC focuses on the unique requirements
of the OEM market for computing technology. AC's 2002 sales were approximately $1.68 billion, representing
18.8% of Avnet's consolidated sales. AC's 2002 global sales consisted of the following regional results: AC
North America sales of $728.9 million, or 8.2% of Avnet's consolidated sales; AC EMEA sales of
$878.6 million, or 9.8% of Avnet's consolidated sales; and AC Asia/PaciÑc sales of $71.6 million, or 0.8% of
Avnet's consolidated sales.
AC consists of seven business units focusing on key market segments:
‚ Applied Computing Components serves the needs of manufacturers of general-purpose computers by
providing them with the latest technologies such as microprocessors, DRAM modules and
motherboards.
‚ Applied Computing Solutions provides technical design, integration, marketing and Ñnancing to
developers of application speciÑc computer solutions in the non-PC market place. Examples of these
types of customers are OEMs in the medical, telecommunications, industrial control and digital
creation market segments.
‚ Applied Computer Enabling Technologies serves systems integrators focusing on the mass storage
marketplace that produce applications such as NAS, SAN and Fiber storage products.
‚ Avnet FasTrac Services in the Americas oÅers technical service and support through a nationwide
service infrastructure.
‚ Applied Computing Market Development in Europe oÅers a specialized range of products, including
EIZO monitors, Wyse thin client PCs and network storage solutions for end users.
‚ Applied Computing System Builder provides services for networking products and server building
blocks for system builders.
‚ Avnet Convergent Technologies provides mobile computing, wireless and point-of-sales ID products
and services.
AC's coverage of Europe includes the United Kingdom, Germany, Spain, Italy, Austria (also services
eastern Europe), the Nordic region, the Benelux region, France and Switzerland. During 2001, AC expanded
its operations in Europe with the acquisition of RKE Systems and the EBV Microsystems Group, both
acquired as part of the VEBA Group of companies. AC's European operations accounted for over half of the
operating group's sales in 2002.
SigniÑcant Acquisitions
To better focus on its core business and to grow Avnet's presence in world markets for electronic
components and computer products, Avnet has pursued a strategic acquisition program. During the last three
years, the Company has completed sixteen acquisitions, six in North America, six in Europe, three in the
Asia/PaciÑc region and one in the Middle East.
Avnet's sole acquisition during 2002 was Gamma Optronik AB (""Gamma'') of Sweden. Gamma was a
privately owned, specialty distributor covering the Nordic territory and serving the industrial and scientiÑc
optronics market. Since its acquisition, Gamma has been operated as a part of Avnet's BFI-Optilas business
unit within EM in Europe. Gamma reported approximately $7.5 million in sales for its year ended June 2001
and employed 12 people.
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The Company completed the following Ñfteen acquisitions in 2001 and 2000.
Acquisition Date

June 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
May 2001ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
February 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
October 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
July 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
June 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
January 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
January 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
November 1999ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
November 1999ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
October 1999 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
October 1999 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
August 1999 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
June 1999 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
April 1999 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Acquired Company

Base of Operations

Reported Sales
(Millions)(A)

Kent Electronics Corporation
Sunrise Technology Ltd.
RDT Technologies Ltd.
VEBA Electronics Group
Savoir Technology Group, Inc.
SEI Nordstar
Eurotronics/SEI
Cosco Electronics/Jung Kwang
PCD Italia S.r.l. and Matica S.p.A.
Orange Coast Companies(B)
Marshall Industries
SEI Macro Group
Integrand Solutions
Advacom, Inc.(B)
Sabre-Data, Inc.(B)

North America
China
Israel
Germany
North America
Netherlands
Netherlands
Korea
Italy
North America
North America
United Kingdom
Australia
North America
North America

$ 942
230
90
1,800
767
35
550
30
120
19
1,700
200
49
112
37

(A) Represents the acquired company's approximate reported sales in its most recent Ñscal year prior to its
acquisition by Avnet.
(B) The acquisitions of the Orange Coast Companies, Advacom, Inc. and Sabre-Data, Inc. were completed
by Kent Electronics prior to its acquisition by Avnet. As the Kent Electronics acquisition was accounted
for as a ""pooling-of-interests'' and based upon the nature of the Ñnancial statements combined for
reporting purposes (see Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in Item 14 of this
Report), all three of these acquisitions are considered to have been completed during Avnet's Ñscal 2000.
During 2001 and 2000, the Company acquired a number of businesses that had a substantial positive
impact on the Company. Below is a discussion of the Company's more signiÑcant acquisitions (those
acquisitions wherein the acquired company had sales in excess of $150 million in its most recent Ñscal year
prior to acquisition) consummated in the past three years. With the exception of the acquisition of Kent
Electronics Corporation (""Kent''), all of the acquisitions discussed below were accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting.
On June 8, 2001, Avnet completed its acquisition of Kent, a specialty distributor and network integrator,
following approval of the Amended and Restated Merger Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of
March 21, 2001 (the ""Merger Agreement'') by Avnet and Kent shareholders on June 6, 2001. Pursuant to the
Merger Agreement, Kent was merged into Avnet and its separate existence ceased. Kent shareholders
received 0.87 of a share of Avnet common stock for each share of Kent common stock held, with cash paid in
lieu of any fractional shares based on $25.84 per Avnet share. Avnet issued approximately 25.3 million shares
of its common stock to Kent shareholders and an additional 1.7 million shares were reserved for issuance upon
the exercise of outstanding warrants and stock options assumed in the transaction.
The accompanying consolidated Ñnancial statements and notes for years prior to 2002 have been restated
to reÖect the acquisition of Kent, which has been accounted for as a ""pooling-of-interests.'' The periods
combined are more fully discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated Ñnancial statements appearing in Item 14 of
this Report. The combination of prior periods does not give eÅect to the synergies that the Company has
realized and expects to continue to realize from the combined operations subsequent to the acquisition. As
discussed in Item 7 of this Report and in the notes to the consolidated Ñnancial statements, the Company
recorded certain special charges in the fourth quarters of 2002 and 2001, a signiÑcant portion of which resulted
from the Kent acquisition being accounted for as a ""pooling-of-interests.'' Thus, these charges were recorded
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to the Company's consolidated statements of operations as opposed to being reÖected as opening balance sheet
adjustments recorded as part of purchase accounting.
In May 2001, Avnet acquired Sunrise, a privately held, electronic components distribution company
serving indigenous and multinational OEMs and contract manufacturers in the PRC and Hong Kong. The
acquisition has substantially improved the Company's operations in the PRC and Asia overall and provides an
important strategic foothold for continued expansion into this important region of the world.
In October 2000, the Company completed the acquisition of certain European operations of the VEBA
Electronics Group consisting of (a) the Germany-headquartered EBV Group, including EBV Electronik and
WBC, both pan-European semiconductor distributors, and Atlas Services Europe, a logistics provider for EBV
and WBC; and (b) the Germany-based RKE Systems, a computer products and services distributor. The
amount paid at closing of $740.0 million, subject to the resolution of certain purchase price contingencies,
included the payoÅ of substantially all of the debt on the books of the companies acquired. Subsequent to the
end of 2002, the Company and the seller of the VEBA Electronics Group resolved all remaining purchase
price contingencies related to this acquisition, resulting in a refund to Avnet of a portion of the amount paid at
closing totaling approximately $6.5 million. This refunded purchase price will be recorded in the Company's
2003 consolidated statement of operations.
In July 2000, the Company acquired Savoir Technology Group, Inc. (""Savoir''), a leading distributor of
IBM mid-range server products in the Americas. This acquisition has had a material beneÑt to the Company,
especially CM, by contributing substantially to making Avnet one of the largest distributors of IBM Enterprise
products globally. In the Savoir merger, holders of Savoir common stock received 0.11452 of a share of Avnet
common stock for each share of Savoir common stock, and cash in lieu of fractional Avnet shares. The
exchange ratio and the price paid for fractional shares were based upon an Avnet stock price capped at
$34.2736 per share. Holders of Savoir series A preferred shares received 0.16098 of a share of Avnet common
stock for each share they held and cash in lieu of fractional Avnet shares. The total cost of the acquisition of
Savoir including estimated expenses was approximately $145.8 million, consisting of the cost for the Savoir
shares of $111.1 million in Avnet stock and $0.7 million in Avnet stock options (net of related tax beneÑts of
$0.5 million) as well as $1.8 million for transaction expenses and $32.2 million for the payoÅ of pre-existing
Savoir debt. The above dollar value of Avnet stock includes the issuance of 3,736,954 shares of Avnet stock
valued at the assumed price of $29.66 per share.
In October 1999, the Company acquired Marshall Industries (""Marshall''), then one of the world's
largest distributors of electronic components and computer products, for a combination of cash and Avnet
stock. The total cost of the acquisition of Marshall, including estimated expenses, was approximately
$764.6 million, consisting of the cost for the Marshall shares of $326.8 million in cash, $269.3 million in Avnet
stock and $7.0 million in Avnet stock options (net of related tax beneÑts of $4.8 million) as well as
$17.5 million for direct transaction costs and estimated expenses and $144.0 million for the reÑnancing of
Marshall net debt. The above dollar value of Avnet stock reÖects the issuance of 6,817,943 shares of Avnet
stock valued at an assumed price of $39.50 per share.
In October 1999, the Company acquired 94% of the SEI Macro Group, an electronics components
distributor headquartered in the United Kingdom, and 16% of Eurotronics B.V., a pan-European electronics
components distributor headquartered in the Netherlands. In January 2000, the Company completed its
acquisition of the SEI Macro Group and Eurotronics B.V.
Major Products
One of Avnet's competitive strengths is the breadth and quality of the suppliers whose products it
distributes. IBM represents the only supplier from which product sales exceed 10% of the Company's
consolidated sales. During 2002, IBM products accounted for approximately 16% of the Company's sales.
Listed below are the major product categories and the approximate sales in 2002, the percentage of the
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Company's consolidated sales and the major suppliers, of the Company's consolidated business in each
category:
‚ Semiconductors: Sales of semiconductors in 2002 were approximately $4.430 billion, or 49.7%, of
consolidated sales (including microprocessor sales of approximately $2.655 billion, or 29.8%, of
consolidated sales). The Company's major suppliers of semiconductors are Advanced Micro Devices,
Agilent Technologies, Analog Devices, Hitachi, Integrated Device Technology, Intel, Intersil, LSI
Logic, Micron Semiconductors, Motorola, National Semiconductor, ON Semiconductor, Philips,
Texas Instruments and Xilinx.
‚ Computer Products: Sales of computer products in 2002 from all of the Company's business units
were approximately $3.475 billion, or 39.0%, of consolidated sales (including disk drive sales of
approximately $766.3 million, or 8.6%, of consolidated sales). The Company's major suppliers of
computer products are IBM, Computer Associates, Hewlett-Packard/Compaq, Intel, Oracle and
Wyse Technology.
‚ Connectors: Sales of connector products in 2002 were approximately $385.0 million, or 4.3%, of
consolidated sales. The Company's major suppliers of connectors are AMP, Amphenol, AVX, ITT
Cannon, Molex, T&B and 3M.
‚ Passives, Electromechanical and Other: Sales of passives, electromechanical and other products in
2002 were approximately $629.6 million, or 7.0%, of consolidated sales. The Company's major
suppliers of these products are Aromat, Artesyn Technologies, AVX, Bourns, ITT/C&K, Kemet,
Murata, Pulse and Vishay.
Most of the Company's product lines are covered by non-exclusive distributor agreements with suppliers,
cancelable upon 30 to 180 days notice. Most of these agreements provide for the periodic return to the supplier
of obsolete inventory and the return of standard inventory upon termination of the contract.
The combined sales for the Company by major product class for the last three years are as follows:

Semiconductors ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Computer products ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Connectors ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Passives, electromechanical and other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

June 28,
2002

Years Ended
June 29,
2001
(Millions)

June 30,
2000

$4,430.3
3,475.3
385.0
629.6

$ 7,105.6
3,950.8
735.6
1,022.0

$5,834.4
2,336.3
880.7
863.6

$8,920.2

$12,814.0

$9,915.0

As of June 28, 2002, the Company had over 300 locations worldwide, many of which contain sales,
warehousing and administrative functions for multiple business units and including a small number of stores in
customers' facilities. Avnet sells to customers in over 60 countries.
Competition & Markets
The Company is currently the world's largest industrial distributor (based on sales) of electronic
components and computer products according to Electronic News, a prominent industry publication, which
ranks the top distributors. The Company's major competitors are Arrow Electronics, Inc., Future Electronics,
Memec PLC and Pioneer-Standard Electronics, Inc.
All of the Company's operations are in highly competitive markets. With regard to many of its product
lines, the Company is in competition not only with other distributors but also with its suppliers. A key
competitive factor in the distribution industry as a whole is the carrying of a signiÑcant amount of inventory to
meet rapid delivery requirements of customers. In addition, the Company enhances its competitive position by
oÅering a variety of value-added services which entail the performance of services and/or processes tailored to
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individual customer speciÑcations and business needs such as point of use replenishment, testing, assembly,
supply chain management and materials management.
Number of Employees
At August 23, 2002, Avnet had approximately 11,000 employees.
Item 2. Properties
Currently, the Company owns and leases approximately 1,265,236 and 4,344,963 square feet of space,
respectively, of which approximately 56% is located in the United States. EM's principal facilities for
warehousing and value-added operations are located in Chandler, AZ, Poing, Germany, Tongeren, Belgium,
Oxford, NC, and Grapevine, TX, where EM has approximately 395,000, 230,000, 217,000, 201,000 and
181,000 square feet of space, respectively. CM's principal facilities for warehousing and value-added
operations are located in Chandler, AZ where CM has approximately 196,000 square feet of space. CM also
utilizes a portion of the Tongeren, Belgium facility discussed above for warehousing and value added
operations. CM leases a 132,000 square foot building in Tempe, AZ for use as the CM headquarters and EM
and CM share leased oÇce facilities of approximately 48,000 square feet in Diegem, Belgium as the
administrative headquarters for their respective European operations. AC's principal facilities for integration
and warehousing are located in Phoenix, AZ and Nettetal, Germany, where AC has approximately 87,000 and
146,000 square feet of space, respectively. AC leases approximately 35,000 square feet of space in Phoenix,
AZ for use as the AC headquarters. The Company leases a 176,000 square foot building in Phoenix, AZ for
use as the EM headquarters as well as the Company's corporate headquarters.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings
The Company and/or its subsidiaries are parties to various legal proceedings arising in the normal course
of business. While litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties, management currently believes that the
ultimate outcome of these proceedings, individually and in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse
eÅect on the Company's Ñnancial position, cash Öow or overall results of operations. The following is a
description of certain proceedings:
The Company and the former owners of a Company-owned site in Oxford, North Carolina have entered
into a Consent Decree and Court Order with the Environmental Protection Agency (the ""EPA'') for the
environmental clean-up of the site, the cost of which, according to the EPA's remedial investigation and
feasibility study, was estimated to be approximately $6.3 million, exclusive of the $1.5 million in past costs
paid to the EPA by the potentially responsible parties (""PRPs''). Pursuant to a Consent Decree and Court
order entered into between the Company and the former owners of the site, the former owners have agreed to
bear at least 70% of the clean-up costs of the site, and the Company will be responsible for not more than 30%
of those costs.
Sterling Electronics Corp., (""Sterling'') a subsidiary of the Company acquired as a part of the Marshall
Industries acquisition, has entered into a Settlement Agreement and Release with Westbase, Inc. Sterling
once owned 92.46% of the capital stock of Phaostron, Inc. (""Phaostron''). In August 1995, Sterling sold the
interest in Phaostron to Westbase, Inc. At the time of the sale, Sterling and Westbase entered into several
agreements, including a promissory note, and an agreement related to environmental costs resulting from
alleged contamination at a facility leased by Phaostron that is a part of the San Gabriel Valley Superfund Site.
The environmental agreement provided that Sterling may be required to pay up to $800,000 for environmental
costs associated with the site. A dispute arose, however, between Westbase and Sterling regarding the amount
Westbase owed to Sterling pursuant to the promissory note, as well as the amount of any reimbursements
Sterling owed to Westbase pursuant to the environmental agreement. Sterling commenced arbitration
proceedings to resolve the dispute. As of June 30, 2002, the parties entered into the Settlement Agreement
and Release resolving the dispute. Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement and Release, each party released the
other from current and future claims regarding the arbitrated matters and Westbase paid a settlement amount
to Sterling.
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In early May 2002, the Company and the current owner of property in Huguenot, New York were named
as PRPs by the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (""NYSDEC'') regarding an
environmental clean-up site. The estimated cost of the environmental clean-up of the site, based on
NYSDEC's remedial investigation and feasibility study, is approximately $2.4 million. In its Record of
Decision, NYSDEC declined to apportion liability among the Company and the current owner of the
property, leaving such determination to be made in a lawsuit brought against the Company in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York by the current owner of the property seeking
contribution for the costs of the clean-up and reimbursement of certain other costs. The Company has also
Ñled a third-party complaint against the former owners of the property seeking contribution for the costs of the
environmental clean up. The apportionment of the costs to clean up this site amongst the PRPs and the former
owner are not determined at this time. However, the Company does not anticipate its ultimate liability in the
matter will be material to its Ñnancial position, cash Öow or results of operations.
Based on the information known to date, management believes that the Company has appropriately
accrued in its Ñnancial statements for its share of the costs with respect to these environmental clean-up sites.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
Not applicable.
Item 4A.

Directors and Executive OÇcers of the Company

Name

Year First
Elected

Eleanor Baum ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

1994

J. Veronica Biggins ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

1997

Lawrence W. Clarkson ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

1998

Ehud HouminerÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

1993

James A. LawrenceÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

1999

Salvatore J. Nuzzo ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

1982

Ray M. Robinson ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

2000

Frederic Salerno ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

1993

Gary L. Tooker ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Roy Vallee ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

2000
1991

Principal Occupation

Dean, School of Engineering, The Cooper Union,
New York
Senior Partner, Heidrick & Struggles
International, Inc.
Retired Senior Vice President, The Boeing
Company
Professor and Executive-in-Residence, Columbia
Business School, Columbia University
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
OÇcer, General Mills, Inc.
Chairman and Chief Executive OÇcer,
Datron, Inc.
President, AT&T Southern Region Business
Services Division
Vice Chairman and Chief Financial OÇcer,
Verizon Communications
Retired Chairman of the Board, Motorola, Inc.
Chairman and Chief Executive OÇcer, Avnet,
Inc.
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The current executive oÇcers of the Company are:
Name

Age

Roy Vallee ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

50

David R. Birk ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

55

Andrew S. BryantÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Edward Kamins ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Raymond Sadowski ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

47
53
48

Richard Hamada ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
John F. Cole ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

44
60

OÇce

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
OÇcer
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary
Senior Vice President
Senior Vice President
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial OÇcer
and Assistant Secretary
Vice President
Controller

Mr. Vallee joined the Company in February 1977 and has been Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive OÇcer since June 1998. Prior thereto, he was Vice Chairman of the Board since November 1992,
and also President and Chief Operating OÇcer since March 1992.
Mr. Birk became Avnet's Secretary in July 1997 and has been Senior Vice President of Avnet since
November 1992. Mr. Birk was elected Vice President and General Counsel in September 1989.
Mr. Bryant has been Senior Vice President of Avnet since November 1999 and has served as President of
EM since January 2002. Mr. Bryant served as a Vice President of Avnet since November 1996. He previously
served as President of CM since June 1999, and prior thereto served as President of Hall-Mark Computer
Division since July 1998. Mr. Bryant was President of the Avnet Computer Division from September 1996 to
June 1998.
Mr. Kamins has been Senior Vice President of Avnet since November 2000 and has served as President
of AC since October 1999. Mr. Kamins served as a Vice President of Avnet since November 1999. He
previously served as Senior Vice President for Avnet CM since July 1996.
Mr. Sadowski has been Senior Vice President of Avnet since November 1992 and Chief Financial OÇcer
since February 1993.
Mr. Hamada has been Vice President of Avnet since December 1999 and has served as President of CM
since January 2002. He previously served as President of Avnet Hall-Mark, North America since May 1999.
Prior thereto, Mr. Hamada served as Executive Vice President of Avnet Computer (now Avnet Enterprise
Solutions) from July 1998 to May 1999 and was Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing from July 1997
to July 1998.
Mr. Cole has been Avnet's Controller since February 1993.
OÇcers of the Company are generally elected each year at the meeting of the Board of Directors
following the annual meeting of shareholders and hold oÇce until the next such annual meeting or until their
earlier death, resignation or removal.
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PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
Market price per share.*
The Company's common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and the PaciÑc Exchange.
Quarterly market prices (as reported for the New York Stock Exchange composite transactions) for the last
two Ñscal years were:
2002

Fiscal
Quarters

1st ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2ndÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
3rd ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
4th ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

2001

High

Low

High

Low

$25.72
26.38
29.06
28.42

$17.55
17.54
22.98
18.95

$35.41
30.28
28.45
28.09

$25.53
17.19
19.35
18.96

Record Holders
As of September 9, 2002 there were approximately 5,650 holders of record of Avnet's common stock.
Dividends*
The cash dividend paid on the common stock was 7.5 cents per share during the Ñrst two quarters in Ñscal
2002 and each quarter in Ñscal 2001. Avnet announced on August 15, 2001 that it would look to more
eÅectively deploy its cash to fuel future earnings growth and deliver increased shareholder value by
discontinuing the payment of its cash dividend eÅective after its dividend payment for the second quarter of
2002, made on January 2, 2002.

*

The market price and dividends per share indicated above have been adjusted to reÖect a two-for-one stock
split distributed on September 28, 2000 to shareholders of record on September 18, 2000. (See Note 1 to
consolidated Ñnancial statements appearing in Item 14 of this Report).
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data*
June 28,
2002

Income:
Sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Gross proÑt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income tax provision (beneÑt)ÏÏ
Earnings (loss)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Financial Position:
Working capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Shareholders' equityÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Per Share(g):
Basic earnings (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Diluted earnings (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Dividends ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Book value ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ratios:
Operating income (loss) margin
on sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
ProÑt (loss) margin on sales ÏÏÏ
Return on equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Return on capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
QuickÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Working capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total debt to capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
*

Years Ended
June 29,
June 30,
July 2,
2001
2000
1999
(Millions, except for per share and ratio data)

$8,920.2
$12,814.0
$9,915.0
1,222.8 (e)
1,865.5(d) 1,444.8(c)
(3.0)(e)
253.7(d)
368.0(c)
(36.4)(e)
87.2(d)
121.1(c)
(84.4)(e)(f)
0.1(d)
162.6(c)
1,928.7
4,682.0
1,625.1
1,804.5

1,177.4
5,864.1
2,221.6
2,374.6

2,368.7
5,934.4
2,153.9
2,246.7

$6,805.7
1,048.0(b)
182.5(b)
204.8(b)
180.3(b)
1,977.0
3,563.4
998.5
1,718.8

June 26,
1998

$6,334.6
1,081.1(a)
293.5(a)
125.6(a)
165.9(a)
1,899.1
3,308.6
1,017.9
1,628.5

(0.71)(e)(f)
(0.71)(e)(f)
0.15
15.11

Ì(d)
Ì(d)
0.30
20.15

1.52(c)
1.50(c)
0.30
19.88

1.89(b)
1.86(b)
0.30
18.15

1.63(a)
1.59(a)
0.30
16.86

Ì% (e)
(0.9)%(e)(f)
(4.1)%(e)(f)
(0.2)%(e)(f)
1.2:1
2.5:1
47.4%

2.0%(d)
Ì%(d)
Ì%(d)
2.2%(d)
0.7:1
1.5:1
48.3%

3.7%(c)
1.6%(c)
8.1%(c)
6.1%(c)
1.1:1
2.2:1
48.9%

2.7%(b)
2.6%(b)
11.0%(b)
8.1%(b)
1.8:1
3.3:1
36.8%

4.6%(a)
2.6%(a)
9.5%(a)
7.7%(a)
1.9:1
3.9:1
38.5%

Income amounts are from continuing operations and net assets from discontinued operations have been
classiÑed as current assets. All amounts prior to 2002 have been restated for the acquisition of Kent,
which has been accounted for using the ""pooling-of-interests'' method.

(a) Includes the net negative impact of $14.9 pre-tax and $12.5 after-tax ($0.12 per share on a diluted basis)
for (i) the gain on the sale of Channel Master of $33.8 pre-tax and $17.2 after-tax, (ii) costs relating to
the divestiture of Avnet Industrial, the closure of the Company's corporate headquarters in Great Neck,
New York, and the anticipated loss on the sale of Company-owned real estate, amounting to $13.3 pretax and $8.5 after-tax, and (iii) incremental special charges associated with the reorganization of EM,
amounting to $35.4 pre-tax and $21.2 after-tax.
(b) Includes the net gain on exiting the printed catalog business recorded in the fourth quarter of 1999 oÅset
by special charges recorded in the Ñrst quarter associated with the reorganization of EM. The net positive
eÅect on 1999 operating income, net income and diluted earnings per share were $183.0, $64.0 and $0.64,
respectively.
(c) Includes special charges associated with: (i) the integration of Marshall Industries, Eurotronics B.V. and
the SEI Macro Group into EM, (ii) the integration of JBA Computer Solutions into CM North
America, (iii) the reorganization of EM Asia, (iv) the reorganization of EM's European operations
including costs related to the consolidation of EM's European warehousing operations and (v) costs
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incurred in connection with certain litigation brought by the Company. The total special charges for 2000
amounted to $49.0 pre-tax, $30.4 after-tax and $0.28 per share on a diluted basis.
(d) Includes the impact of incremental special charges related to the acquisition and integration of Kent,
which was accounted for as a ""pooling-of-interests,'' and other integration, reorganization and cost
cutting initiatives taken in response to business conditions. The special charges amounted to $327.5 pretax ($80.6 included in cost of sales and $246.9 included in operating expenses) and $236.7 after-tax, or
$1.99 per share on a diluted basis for the year ($2.01 per share for the fourth quarter).
(e) Includes the impact of incremental special charges related to the write-down of certain assets acquired in
the 2001 acquisition of Kent, net of certain recoveries of previous write-downs and reserves, and other
charges taken in response to business conditions, including an impairment charge to write-down certain
investments in unconsolidated Internet-related businesses to their fair value and severance charges for
workforce reductions announced during the fourth quarter of 2002. The net special charges amounted to
$79.6 pre-tax ($21.6 included in cost of sales and $58.0 included in operating expenses) and $62.1 aftertax, or $0.52 per share on a diluted basis.
(f) The 2002 summary Ñnancial data excludes the impact of the Company's adoption of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board's Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (""SFAS 142''),
""Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,'' on June 30, 2001, the Ñrst day of the Company's Ñscal year
2002. SFAS 142, which requires that ratable amortization of goodwill be replaced with periodic tests for
goodwill impairment, resulted in a transition impairment charge recorded by the Company of $580.5, or
$4.90 per share on a diluted basis for the Ñrst quarter and the Ñscal year. This charge is reÖected as
cumulative change in accounting principle in the consolidated statements of operations.
(g) All per share data have been restated to reÖect a two-for-one split of the Company's common stock
approved by the Board of Directors on August 31, 2000. These shares were distributed on September 28,
2000 to shareholders of record on September 18, 2000.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
For an understanding of the signiÑcant factors that inÖuenced the Company's performance during the
past three Ñscal years, the following discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated Ñnancial
statements, including the related notes, and other information appearing elsewhere in this Report. The Ñscal
2001 acquisition of Kent, which has been accounted for as a ""pooling-of-interests'' and is more fully described
in Item 1 of this Report, materially impacts the nature of the reported results for the years prior to 2002
presented herein. In addition, the severe economic downturn in the technology markets in which the Company
competes is also a material contributor to the Ñnancial results discussed in this ""Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations'' (""MD&A'').
Since the Company's second quarter of Ñscal 2001, technology markets have been severely impacted by a
global economic and industry downturn. This downturn in the technology markets is primarily a consequence
of several economic and geopolitical forces: weakened Ñnancial markets following the collapse within the dot
com industry and other recent signiÑcant business failures; weak global demand for IT capital equipment
following on the heels of the Y2K and dot com infrastructure buildup; a severe oversupply of electronic
components (speciÑcally semiconductors Ì the worldwide semiconductor industry experienced its worst
performance in annual revenue trends in calendar 2001, registering a 32% decline in revenues according to the
Semiconductor Industry Association); and an uncertain geopolitical climate precipitated by the events of
September 11, 2001. These events have impacted, to varying degrees, all facets of the technology markets in
which the Company competes.
Please note that unless otherwise speciÑcally indicated, references herein to any particular year or quarter
generally are to the Company's Ñscal year periods. The Company's Ñscal year ends on the Friday closest to
June 30.
Fiscal Year Organizational Developments
Brian Hilton, president of EM, retired from the Company eÅective June 28, 2002 in conjunction with the
close of the Ñscal year. Andrew Bryant, a 22-year Avnet employee and prior president of CM, was appointed
the new global president of EM. Richard Hamada, a 20-year Avnet employee, was promoted to president of
CM worldwide. Mr. Hamada was the president of CM's largest division prior to assuming his new
responsibilities. The change in responsibilities for Messrs. Bryant and Hamada took place in January 2002 in
order to ensure a smooth transition prior to Mr. Hilton's retirement.
Critical Accounting Policies
The Company's consolidated Ñnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these consolidated Ñnancial statements
requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that aÅect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses during the reporting period. These estimates and assumptions are based upon
the Company's continuous evaluation of historical results and anticipated future events. Actual results may
diÅer from these estimates under diÅerent assumptions or conditions.
The Securities and Exchange Commission deÑnes critical accounting polices as those that are, in
management's view, most important to the portrayal of the Company's Ñnancial condition and results of
operations and those that require signiÑcant judgments and estimates. The Company does not consider
revenue recognition to be a critical accounting policy due to the nature of its business in which revenues are
generally recognized upon the actual shipment of product. Accordingly, other than for estimates related to
possible returns of products from customers, discounts or rebates, the recording of revenue does not require
signiÑcant judgments or estimates. Furthermore, revenues and anticipated proÑts from long-term contracts,
which are recorded on a percentage of completion basis, are not material to the consolidated results of
operations of the Company.
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Management believes the Company's most critical accounting policies relate to:
Valuation of Receivables: The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated
losses resulting from customer defaults. Bad debt reserves are recorded based upon historic default averages as
well as through the creation of reserves established for speciÑc customers deemed marginal in their ability to
pay based upon contemporaneous factors. In general, if the Ñnancial condition of a customer were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of that customer's ability to make payments to the Company,
additional reserves may be required.
Valuation of Inventories: Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost (Ñrst in Ì Ñrst out) or estimated
market value. The Company's inventories include high-technology components, embedded systems and
computing technologies sold into rapidly changing, cyclical and competitive markets whereby such inventories
may be subject to early technological obsolescence.
The Company evaluates inventories for excess, obsolescence or other factors that may render inventories
unmarketable at normal margins. Write-downs are recorded so that inventories reÖect the approximate net
realizable value and take into account the Company's contractual provisions with its suppliers governing price
protection, stock rotation and return privileges relating to obsolescence. Because of the large number of
transactions and the complexity of managing the process around price protections and stock rotations,
estimates are made regarding adjustments to the carrying amount of inventories. Additionally, assumptions
about future demand, market conditions and decisions to discontinue certain product lines can impact the
decision to write down inventories. If assumptions about future demand change or actual market conditions
are less favorable than those projected by management, additional write-downs of inventories may be required.
In any case, actual amounts could be diÅerent from those estimated.
Accounting for Income Taxes: Management judgment is required in determining the provision for
income taxes, deferred tax assets and liabilities and the valuation allowance recorded against net deferred tax
assets. The carrying value of the Company's net foreign operating loss carry-forwards is dependent upon its
ability to generate suÇcient future taxable income in certain tax jurisdictions. In addition, the Company
considers historic levels of income, expectations and risk associated with estimates of future taxable income
and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing a tax valuation allowance. Should the
Company determine that it is not able to realize all or part of its deferred tax assets in the future, a valuation
allowance is recorded against the deferred tax assets with a corresponding charge to income in the period such
determination is made.
Special and Acquisition-Related Charges: The Company has been subject to the Ñnancial impact of
integrating acquired businesses and charges related to business reorganizations. In connection with such
events, management is required to make estimates about the Ñnancial impact of such matters that are
inherently uncertain. Accrued liabilities and reserves are established to cover the cost of severance, facility
consolidation and closure, lease termination fees, inventory adjustments based upon acquisition-related
termination of supplier agreements and/or the re-evaluation of the acquired working capital assets (inventory
and accounts receivable), change-in-control expenses, and write-down of other acquired assets including
goodwill. Actual amounts incurred could be diÅerent from those estimated.
Additionally, in assessing the Company's goodwill for impairment in accordance with the Financial
Accounting Standards Board's (""FASB'') Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (""SFAS
142''), ""Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,'' the Company is required to make signiÑcant assumptions
about the future cash Öows and overall performance of its reporting units. Should these assumptions or the
structure of the reporting units change in the future based upon market conditions or changes in business
strategy, the Company may be required to record additional impairment charges to its remaining goodwill. See
Note 6 to the consolidated Ñnancial statements located at Item 14 of this Report for further discussion of
SFAS 142 and the Company's transitional and annual impairment tests.
Contingencies and Litigation: The Company is involved in various legal proceedings and other claims
related to environmental, labor, product and other matters, all of which arise in the normal course of business.
The Company is required to assess the likelihood of any adverse judgment or outcome to these matters, as well
17

as the range of potential losses. A determination of the reserves required, if any, is made after careful analysis
by management and internal and, if necessary, external counsel. The required reserves may change in the
future due to related developments or a change in circumstances. Changes to reserves could increase or
decrease earnings in the period the changes are eÅective.
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143 (""SFAS 143''),
""Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.'' SFAS No. 143 became eÅective for the Company beginning
on June 29, 2002 (the Ñrst day of Ñscal 2003) and provides new criteria for the measurement of a liability for
an asset retirement obligation and the associated asset retirement cost. The adoption of SFAS 143 will not
have a material eÅect on the Company's consolidated Ñnancial statements.
In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 (""SFAS 144''),
""Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.'' SFAS No. 144 became eÅective for the
Company beginning on June 29, 2002. SFAS No. 144 amends and supersedes SFAS No. 121 (""SFAS 121''),
""Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of.''
However, SFAS 144 retains the fundamental provisions of SFAS No. 121 for (a) recognition and
measurement of the impairment of long-lived assets to be held and used and (b) measurement of long-lived
assets to be disposed of by sale. SFAS 144 also amends and supercedes previous guidance on reporting for
discontinued operations. The adoption of SFAS 144 will not have a material eÅect on the Company's
consolidated Ñnancial statements.
In June 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146 (""SFAS 146''),
""Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.'' SFAS 146 supercedes former guidance
addressing the Ñnancial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities.
SFAS 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized and
measured when the liability is incurred (as opposed to upon the date of an entity's commitment to a plan as
provided for under previous guidance). The provisions of SFAS 146 will be eÅective for any exit or disposal
activities that are initiated by the Company after December 31, 2002.
Acquisitions and Investments
For an overview of the Company's acquisitions over the past three years, see Item 1, ""Business,'' and see
Note 2 to the consolidated Ñnancial statements appearing in Item 14 of this Report. Management currently
does not anticipate making any material acquisitions in the near term.
The acquisitions accounted for as purchases, certain of which are material to the Company, have an
impact on the comparability of the Company's period-to-period results discussed in ""Results of Operations'' in
this MD&A. See Note 2 to the consolidated Ñnancial statements for further discussion of the impact of certain
material acquisitions on the Ñnancial results of the Company.
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Results from Operations
The tables below provide a year-over-year summary of the results from operations for the Company and
its operating units.
THREE-YEAR OPERATING UNIT ANALYSIS: SALES AND OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
Years Ended
June 28,
2002

% of
Total

June 29,
2001

Percent Change

% of
Total

June 30,
2000

% of
Total

2002 to
2001

2001 to
2000

(Dollars in millions)

Sales by Operating Unit:
EM ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
CM ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
ACÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Sales by Geographic Area:
AmericasÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
EMEA ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Asia ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Operating Income (Loss)
by Operating Unit:
EM ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
CM ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
ACÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Corporate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$4,841.9
2,399.2
1,679.1

54.3% $ 8,286.6
26.9%
2,855.6
18.8%
1,671.8

64.7% $7,105.2
22.3% 2,139.4
13.0%
670.4

$8,920.2

$12,814.0

$9,915.0

$5,295.2
2,900.3
724.7

59.4% $ 8,746.0
32.5%
3,511.6
8.1%
556.4

68.3% $7,420.9
27.4% 2,055.9
4.3%
438.2

$8,920.2

$12,814.0

$

$

Operating income before special
charges ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Special chargesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

22.7
63.0
42.8
(51.9)
76.6
(79.6)

$

(3.0)

$

71.7%
21.6%
6.7%

(41.6)%
(16.0)%
0.4%

16.6%
33.5%
149.4%

(30.4)%

29.2%

(39.5)%
(17.4)%
30.2%

17.9%
70.8%
27.0%

$9,915.0

(30.4)%

29.2%

532.3
86.4
63.9
(101.4)

$ 421.7
57.9
20.5
(83.1)

(95.7)%
(27.1)%
(33.0)%
48.8%

26.2%
49.2%
211.7%
(22.0)%

581.2
(327.5)

417.0
(49.0)

253.7

$ 368.0

74.9%
20.7%
4.4%

(86.8)%
39.4%
75.7% (568.4)%
(101.2)%

(31.1)%

The results of operations for 2002 reÖected dramatically diÅerent results from the prior year across nearly
every category of operational performance. Similarly, the Ñrst half of 2001 was substantially diÅerent than the
second half as the signiÑcant decline in market conditions referenced previously began in the December 2000
quarter (the second quarter of Ñscal 2001). The results for the Ñrst half of 2001 reÖected a strong electronic
component distribution industry where the Company posted both record revenues and earnings. The results for
the second half of 2001 and all of 2002 were then negatively aÅected by an abrupt and severe downturn in the
electronic components industry, compounded by a general slowdown in the global economic environment.
Company results reÖect these factors as, despite revenue growth and operating income growth before special
items over the course of both 2000 and 2001, the Company experienced declines in revenues, gross proÑt
margins, operating income margins, net income margins, and for the Ñrst time in over four decades, recorded a
net loss from continuing operations in 2002.
Most signiÑcantly impacted was EM, which showed signiÑcant deterioration in both sales and operating
income (before special charges) in 2002 as compared with 2001 and 2000. The dramatic drop in sales in 2002
is directly related to the sharp decline in semiconductor sales on a global level. This may also be indicative of a
technology industry shift in revenue mix away from the Americas, which declined year-over-year, partly
toward the Asia region where Avnet's 2002 operations were also bolstered by the acquisition of Sunrise late in
2001.
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Enterprise-wide operations were impacted by the economic downturn in a number of areas. Revenues
continued to be depressed compared with prior year levels due primarily to excess inventory in the supply
chain combined with widespread weak demand across the technology segments served by the Company. This
impact has been compounded by pricing pressures within the supply chain, common to the industry in a down
cycle, which have also kept proÑts at suppressed levels. The combination of these factors led to substantially
reduced gross proÑt dollars in 2002. The rapid decline in gross proÑt dollars occurred at a rate greater than
operating expenses could be removed from the business and, as a result, each operating group experienced
signiÑcant declines in operating income in 2002 as compared with 2001. In addition, operating losses occurred
within EM in the Ñrst and second quarters of 2002 and within AC during the fourth quarter of 2002.
Sales
On a year-over-year basis, the Company completed 2002 with sales of $8.92 billion, down 30.4%, or
$3.89 billion, from the record sales of $12.81 billion recorded in 2001. As discussed above, the decrease in
consolidated sales was due primarily to the conÖuence of global and domestic economic forces that caused the
severe downturn in the technology markets the Company serves. EM sales of $4.84 billion and CM sales of
$2.40 billion which, combined, represented over 80% of the Company's consolidated revenues in 2002, were
down from 2001 levels by 41.6% and 16.0%, respectively. AC sales of $1.68 billion in 2002 increased
marginally by 0.4% from 2001 due primarily to growth in its European operations (aÅected, in part, by a full
year of operations of RKE Systems in 2002, acquired as part of the VEBA Group acquisition discussed in
Item 1 of this Report) as well as marginally positive growth in Asia.
Consolidated sales for 2001 of $12.81 billion were up $2.90 billion, or 29.2%, as compared with 2000. A
signiÑcant portion of the increase in sales was primarily due to the robust market conditions that existed
through the December 2000 timeframe, especially in the telecommunications sectors being fueled by the dot
com infrastructure buildup, and the impact of acquisitions. EM sales represented 64.7% of Avnet's
consolidated sales in 2001, down from 71.7% in 2000. However, revenue dollars at EM year-over-year grew to
record levels of $8.29 billion in 2001, an increase of $1.18 billion, or 16.6%, over sales of $7.11 billion in 2000.
This continued increase in sales was due primarily to the impact of acquisitions (the VEBA Group of
companies and the Ñrst full year of operations of Marshall and SEI) and the strengthening of business
conditions in the electronics component distribution market. CM achieved a $716.2 million, or 33.5%, increase
in sales from $2.14 billion in 2000 to $2.86 billion in 2001. The continued growth rate was primarily impacted
by the acquisition of Savoir and by growth in sales of enterprise IT equipment and services that accompanied
the dot com infrastructure buildup in larger companies in the industry that comprise a signiÑcant portion of
the CM customer base. EM and CM sales for 2000 include $368 million of AC sales recorded prior to the
period when AC was separated into its own operating group, making AC global sales approximately
$1.038 billion on a pro forma basis for 2000.
Special Charges
The Company recorded a number of special charges during the last three Ñscal years. These charges
relate primarily to three items: (1) the change in accounting principle further discussed in ""Change in
Accounting Principle Ì Goodwill'' in this MD&A and in Note 6 to the consolidated Ñnancial statements
appearing in Item 14 of this Report; (2) charges stemming from acquisition and integration of newly acquired
businesses; and (3) the reorganization of operations in each of the three major regions of the world in which
the Company operates and other non-recurring items, generally taken in response to business conditions at the
time of the charge. Management believes that the Company's future results of operations will continue to
beneÑt from the cost savings resulting from its acquisitions and integrations of new businesses and
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reorganizations, and that the impact of these activities on liquidity and sources and uses of capital will not be
material.
SUMMARY OF SPECIAL CHARGES
(Thousands, except per share amounts)
Year

Quarter

2002

Q4

Category

Write-down of certain acquired Kent assets
Reorganization charges
Impairment of Internet investments
Total for Year

2001

Q4

Kent acquisition and integration costs
Reorganization charges
Impairment of Internet investments
Total for Year

2000

Q3

Q2

Q1

EBV and SEI Macro integration costs
JBA Computer Solutions integration costs
Reorganization charges
Marshall integration costs
Reorganization charges
Litigation Charges
Reorganization charges
Total for Year

After-Tax
Per Diluted
Share Impact

Pre-Tax
Charge

After-Tax
Charge

$ 29,734
13,712
36,177

$ 17,974
8,289
35,821

$(0.15)
(0.07)
(0.30)

$ 79,623

$ 62,084

$(0.52)

$157,331
127,274
42,880

$130,609
80,302
25,781

$(1.10)
(0.67)
(0.22)

$327,485

$236,692

$(1.99)

$ 10,120
3,146
1,557
18,413
6,918
2,699
6,111

$

6,073
1,870
934
10,951
5,016
1,606
3,976

$(0.05)
(0.02)
(0.01)
(0.10)
(0.05)
(0.01)
(0.04)

$ 48,964

$ 30,426

$(0.28)

See also Note 17 to the consolidated Ñnancial statements appearing in Item 14 of this Report for a detail
of activity within the special charge accounts during the past three years.
In the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company recorded a special charge representing a write-down in value
of certain assets acquired in the 2001 acquisition of Kent and certain other charges taken in response to
business conditions. The special charge totaled $79.6 million pre-tax ($21.6 million included in cost of sales
and $58.0 million included in operating expenses) and $62.1 million after tax, or $0.52 per share on a diluted
basis for the fourth quarter and the year.
The Kent-related items resulted from the acquisition of Kent being accounted for using the ""pooling-ofinterests'' method of accounting. Under this method, items that normally would have been reÖected as
adjustments to goodwill as opening balance sheet adjustments if the purchase method of accounting could
have been used were instead recorded to the Company's consolidated statement of operations. These items
amounted to $29.7 million pre-tax and relate primarily to write-downs to the value of receivables considered
uncollectible ($8.2 million), excess and obsolete inventory ($21.6 million) and property, plant and equipment
and non-cancelable lease obligations ($15.9 million) acquired in the Kent acquisition, net of approximately
$16.0 million pre-tax in cash recoveries of certain charges recorded as part of the special charges taken in the
fourth quarter of 2001. The write-downs of Kent-related assets were recorded at the earliest date that
management had suÇcient information to evaluate the recoverability of the assets in order to conclude that a
write-down was necessary to record the assets at their net realizable value.
The remaining pre-tax special charge recorded in the fourth quarter of 2002, amounting to $49.9 million,
includes an impairment charge of $36.2 million pre-tax to write-down certain of the Company's investments in
unconsolidated Internet-related businesses to their fair market value and $13.7 million pre-tax for severance
charges taken for workforce reductions of approximately 850 personnel announced during the fourth quarter.
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The impairments recorded to the Company's investments are considered capital losses for tax purposes and are
therefore only deductible to the extent the Company has available capital gains. As there are no capital gains
to oÅset these losses currently or forecasted in the foreseeable future, the Company generally has not recorded
a tax beneÑt for these losses. The timing of the impairment charge to the investments is a function of the
timing with which Ñnancial and other information regarding these ventures typically becomes available to the
Company. Although management evaluates these investments for potential impairment throughout the year, a
charge to record any impairment is not recorded until management possesses suÇcient information to reach a
deÑnitive conclusion as to the realizable value of the investments.
Of the special charge of $79.6 million pre-tax recorded in the fourth quarter of 2002, $77.9 million did not
require the use of cash and $1.7 million required the use of cash (net of the $16.0 million in recoveries
discussed above), of which $8.6 million remains unexpended at June 28, 2002 related primarily to remaining
payments for severance, substantially all of which is scheduled to be utilized during 2003, and for contractual
lease commitments, substantially all of which are expected to be utilized by the end of 2007.
In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company recorded a special charge in connection with the acquisition
and integration of Kent and for costs related to actions taken in response to business conditions and other
restructuring activity. The charge amounted to $327.5 million pre-tax ($80.6 million included in cost of sales
and $246.9 million included in operating expenses) and $236.7 million after-tax, or $2.01 per share on a
diluted basis for the fourth quarter ($1.99 per share for the year). Of the total charge of $327.5 million,
approximately $143.5 million required an outÖow of cash, of which approximately $122.7 million had been
utilized at June 28, 2002. The unutilized portion relates primarily to remaining contractual lease commitments, substantially all of which are expected to be utilized by the end of 2006. The unusually large impact on
income taxes related to the special charge is due primarily to the non-deductibility of certain acquisitionrelated costs and the impact of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions.
Approximately $157.3 million of the pre-tax charge resulted from the acquisition of Kent having been
accounted for using the ""pooling-of-interests'' method as described above. These items consist of costs
incurred in completing the acquisition, including signiÑcant change-in-control and other executive beneÑtrelated payments made as a result of the acquisition ($68.3 million), professional fees for investment banking,
legal and accounting services rendered to both Avnet and Kent ($12.7 million), as well as adjustments to the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed ($76.3 million). The adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed include accruals for severance ($4.6 million), write-downs of receivables considered uncollectible
($8.0 million), inventory reserves related to termination of non-strategic product lines ($20.5 million), writedowns associated with the disposal of Ñxed assets ($25.1 million), lease terminations ($8.5 million) and other
items ($9.6 million).
The balance of the charge recorded in the fourth quarter of 2001, amounting to approximately
$170.2 million, related to a number of actions taken to cope with market conditions and to strengthen Avnet's
operations. These actions included cost reductions associated with the reorganization of the Company's
businesses, the integration of the recent acquisitions, as well as important cost-cutting actions taken in
response to business conditions. These special charges fall into a number of categories including severance
($28.5 million), inventory reserves related to terminations of non-strategic product lines ($9.4 million),
inventory valuation adjustments for special inventory purchases to meet customer requirements which were in
excess of what was anticipated to be sold or returned ($50.7 million), write-downs associated with the disposal
of Ñxed assets ($15.2 million), lease terminations ($21.1 million), adjustments to the book value of
investments in unconsolidated entities ($42.9 million) and other items ($2.4 million).
During 2000, the Company recorded $49.0 million pre-tax ($37.2 million included in operating expenses
and $11.8 million included in cost of sales), $30.4 million after-tax and $0.28 per share on a diluted basis of
incremental special charges associated with (1) the integration of acquired businesses into the Company as
described below ($31.7 million), (2) the reorganization of EM's European operations ($9.2 million),
consisting primarily of costs related to the centralization of warehousing operations, (3) the reorganization of
EM Asian operations ($5.4 million) and (4) costs incurred in the second quarter in connection with its
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lawsuit against Wyle Laboratories, Inc. and certain individuals ($2.7 million). Of the $49.0 million pre-tax
charge, $29.9 million required the use of cash, substantially all of which had been utilized at June 28, 2002.
The charges in 2000 associated with the integration of acquired businesses included the integration of
Marshall Industries into the Company's North American EM and AC operations ($18.4 million), the
integration of JBA Computer Solutions into CM North America ($3.2 million) and the integration of
Eurotronics B.V. and the SEI Macro Group into EM EMEA ($10.1 million). The charges related to the
reorganization of EM Asia are comprised of severance, inventory reserves required related to supplier
terminations, real property lease terminations, employee and facility relocation costs, write-downs associated
with the disposal of Ñxed assets, special incentive payments and other items.
The charges related to the reorganization of EM's European operations consisted primarily of costs
related to the centralization of warehousing operations into the Company's new facility in Tongeren, Belgium.
These charges were for severance, adjustment of the carrying value of Ñxed assets, real property lease
terminations, duplicate employee and property related costs and other items.
The costs incurred pertaining to the Wyle lawsuit, in which the Company was the plaintiÅ, related to
legal and professional fees associated with the trial of the case, which commenced in September 1999. On
February 4, 2000, a jury in Tampa, Florida returned a verdict in the case absolving the defendants of any
liability. Subsequently, the parties agreed to settle the case by dismissing all claims and appeals with prejudice
and with each side bearing its own costs and expenses.
The Company continues to explore potential cost cutting measures including potential reorganizations of
certain lines of business. EÅorts in this regard may result in future special charges. Such charges will be
recorded if and when management makes the necessary decisions and approvals regarding any reorganization
plans and liabilities are incurred.
Operating Income (Loss)
The following table compares consolidated gross proÑt margins, operating expenses as a percent of sales
and operating proÑt margins for the three years ending June 28, 2002:
AVNET CONSOLIDATED MARGIN ANALYSIS
June 28,
2002

Gross proÑt margins
Ì Before special charges ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ì After special charges ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating expense as a percent of sales
Ì Before special charges ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ì After special charges ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating proÑt margins
Ì Before special charges ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ì After special charges ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Years Ended
June 29,
June 30,
2001
2000

14.0%
13.7

15.2%
14.6

14.7%
14.6

13.1%
13.7

10.7%
12.6

10.5%
10.9

0.9%
Ì

4.5%
2.0

4.2%
3.7

Consolidated gross proÑt margins, before special charges, were 14.0% in 2002 as compared with 15.2%
and 14.7% in 2001 and 2000, respectively. The decline in gross proÑt margin in 2002 from the prior year
illustrated the diÇcult market environment and pressure on average selling prices across the operating groups.
The downward trend also included the eÅect of business mix: increased sales of computer products (including
microprocessors, DRAMS, disk drives, etc.) that generally have lower gross proÑt margins than other products
in the Company's product lines. The strong gross proÑt margin performance during 2001 was due in part to a
mix of business that included a lower percentage of sales during that year to large customers who are typically
granted better pricing due to their signiÑcant sales volume. This eÅect partially oÅset the impact of pricing
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pressures on gross proÑt margins during 2002 as the Company made the strategic decision to reduce its
exposure to larger tier-one OEM customers whose return on working capital fails to meet Company
performance requirements.
Operating expenses, before special charges, as a percentage of sales increased substantially to 13.1%
during 2002 due to the dramatic decline in revenues discussed earlier. Operating expenses in the fourth quarter
of 2002 reÖected an annualized reduction of over $300 million as compared with operating expenses in the
December 2000 quarter. This annualized reduction includes a pro forma adjustment to the actual reported
expenses in the second quarter of 2001 to account for the impact of the operations of the VEBA Group of
companies which were acquired partway through that quarter. However, the revenue declines during that
period occurred at an unprecedented rate and faster than management could reasonably remove expense from
the business. Operating expenses before special charges, as a percentage of sales, were fairly consistent at
10.7% and 10.5% during 2001 and 2000, respectively. The Company's operating expenses before special
charges, as a percentage of sales, for the entire 2000 year reached a record low of 10.5% due in part to the
Company's highly successful integration of Marshall Industries into its EM Americas operations. The impact
of the synergy beneÑts was more evident in the Ñrst and second quarters of 2001 and the fourth quarter of 2000
as operating expenses as a percentage of sales fell to a record low of 9.7% in those quarters.
Operating income, before special charges, declined to $76.6 million in 2002, or 0.9% of sales, from 2001
levels of $581.2 million, or 4.5% of sales. This represented a percentage decline of 86.8% year over year.
Operating proÑt margins before special charges in 2002 deteriorated substantially from 2001 and 2000 levels.
However, management believes that the combination of cost savings derived from synergies realized from the
Company's recent acquisitions as well as restructured operations and additional operating expense reductions
over the past year, have situated the Company with considerable operating leverage when market conditions
improve. Management believes that its current operations are well poised for a market upturn, and any
material improvement in revenues brought about by more favorable economic and industry conditions should
generate operating income growth at a faster rate than both revenue and gross proÑt dollar growth.
Each of the Company's operating groups experienced deep year-over-year declines in operating income.
EM's 2002 operating income, excluding special charges, was $22.7 million, down 95.7% from 2001 levels of
$532.3 million. CM and AC also experienced declines in operating income, excluding special charges, from
$86.4 million and $63.9 million in 2001, respectively, to 2002 levels of $63.0 million and $42.8 million,
respectively. Including special charges and the results of operations of corporate, the Company recorded an
operating loss of $3.0 million. This compares to consolidated operating income, including special charges, of
$253.7 million and $368.0 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Management's actions to improve gross proÑt margins as well as implement careful expense reductions
through the year have created increased operating leverage in the business model. As a result, excluding
special items, the Company experienced three consecutive quarterly improvements in operating proÑt margins
through the end of 2002. From a low of 0.16% in the Ñrst quarter, operating proÑt margins improved by 106
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basis points to Ñnish at 1.22% in the fourth quarter. The table below outlines quarterly operating proÑt (loss)
margin performance for the Company and its operating groups:
QUARTERLY OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) MARGIN ANALYSIS
BY OPERATING UNIT
Q4-02
(Jun-02)

BEFORE SPECIAL CHARGES
Avnet, Inc. ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
EMÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
CMÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AC ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AFTER SPECIAL CHARGES
Avnet, Inc. ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
EMÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
CMÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AC ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Q3-02
(Mar-02)

Q2-02
(Dec-01)

Q1-02
(Sep-01)

Q4-01
(Jun-01)

Total 2002

1.22%
1.49
3.32
(0.61)

1.04%
0.94
1.83
3.03

1.01%
(0.15)
3.27
3.51

0.16%
(0.40)
1.89
3.70

1.96%
2.67
2.37
4.65

0.86%
0.47
2.62
2.55

(2.49)%
0.43
(2.17)
(0.94)

1.04%
0.94
1.83
3.03

1.01%
(0.15)
3.27
3.51

0.16%
(0.40)
1.89
3.70

(10.94)%
(3.57)
(0.38)
3.28

(0.03)%
0.20
1.32
2.48

Interest Expense
Interest expense was $124.6 million in 2002 as compared with $191.9 million in 2001, declining by 35.1%.
The decrease was due primarily to the reduction of debt as a result of cash generated by reductions in working
capital and, to a lesser extent, as a result of lower interest rates on the Company's variable rate debt. The
Company has reduced its total debt by approximately $1.5 billion since the end of December 2000.
Interest expense for the fourth quarter of 2002 of $26.5 million was down 42.9% in comparison to the
$46.3 million of interest expense in the fourth quarter of 2001. The decrease in interest expense in the fourth
quarter reÖected the Ñfth consecutive quarterly reduction, due principally to the signiÑcant reductions of debt
discussed above.
Interest expense was $94.8 million in 2000. The signiÑcant increase in interest expense from 2000 to 2001
was due primarily to increased borrowings to fund the Company's acquisitions and the additional working
capital requirements to support the growth in business the Company was experiencing in the Ñrst half of 2001.
This included approximately $893.7 million and $1.35 billion, respectively, for working capital and acquisitions, net of cash received from dispositions of businesses, during 2000 and 2001. Interest expense in 2001
compared to 2000 was also impacted by increased interest rates as a result of the Federal Reserve's actions to
increase short-term rates and the Company's decision to issue, in February 2000, $360.0 million of 77/8% Notes
due 2005.
See ""Liquidity and Capital Resources'' for further discussion of the Company's capital structure.
Net Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations
As a result of the factors described in the preceding sections of this MD&A related to the current year
results, the consolidated loss from continuing operations before special charges in 2002 was $22.4 million, or
$0.19 per diluted share. Including special items and the cumulative eÅect of change in accounting principle
discussed previously, the Company reported a loss of $664.9 million, or $5.61 per share on a diluted basis. In
2001, the Company reported net income from continuing operations, before special charges, of $236.8 million,
or $1.99 per diluted share. Including special items and income from discontinued operations, the Company
reported net income of $15.4 million, or $0.13 per diluted share in 2001.
In 2000, the Company reported income from continuing operations before special charges of $193.0 million, or $1.78 per diluted share, as compared with income from continuing operations of $236.8 million, or
$1.99 per diluted share, in 2001. Including the special charges referred to previously and income from
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discontinued operations, the Company reported net income of $163.4 million, or $1.51 per diluted share, in
2000 as compared to net income of $15.4 million, or $0.13 per diluted share, in 2001.
Change in Accounting Principle Ì Goodwill
In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (""SFAS 142''),
""Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,'' which establishes Ñnancial accounting and reporting for acquired
goodwill and other intangible assets. SFAS 142 requires that ratable amortization of goodwill be replaced with
periodic tests for goodwill impairment and that intangible assets with Ñnite lives be amortized over their useful
lives. The Company elected early adoption of the provisions of SFAS 142 eÅective June 30, 2001, the Ñrst day
of the Company's Ñscal year 2002.
Therefore, the amortization of goodwill was suspended eÅective on that date. Under the required
transitional provisions of SFAS 142, the Company identiÑed and evaluated its reporting units for impairment
as of June 30, 2001 using a two-step process. The Company engaged an outside valuation consultant to assist
in this process. The Ñrst step was to ascertain whether there was an indication that any of the Company's
goodwill was impaired. This was accomplished by identifying the Company's reporting units pursuant to the
guidelines set out in SFAS 142 and then determining the carrying value of each of those reporting units by
assigning the Company's assets and liabilities, including existing goodwill, to each of those reporting units as of
June 30, 2001. For the purpose of this process, the reporting unit structure was deÑned as each of the three
regional businesses (Americas, EMEA and Asia) for each of the Company's operating groups. The fair value
of each reporting unit was determined by using a combination of present value and multiple of earnings
valuation techniques. Such fair value was then compared to the carrying value of each reporting unit. As a
result of completing the Ñrst step of the process, it was determined that there was an impairment of goodwill
related to the Company's EM and CM operations in both EMEA and Asia. The Company identiÑed no
impairment of goodwill in the Americas region. In the second step of the process, the implied fair value of the
aÅected reporting unit's goodwill was compared to its carrying value. This was done in order to determine the
amount of impairment; that is, the amount by which the carrying amount exceeded the fair value. As a result
of the valuation process, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $580.5 million, which was recorded
as a cumulative eÅect of a change in accounting principle in the Ñrst quarter of 2002. As reÖected in the
accompanying consolidated statement of cash Öows for 2002, the charge resulting from the cumulative eÅect
of change in accounting principle did not impact cash Öow.
The magnitude of the impairment charge was signiÑcantly impacted by the timing of the eÅective date of
when the fair value analysis was performed and the designation of the reporting unit structure. Since the
Company adopted SFAS 142 on June 30, 2001, the fair value analysis was required to be completed as of that
date. Due to the diÇcult business and economic conditions at that date, which severely impacted the market
sectors in which the Company operates, and the uncertainty as to when such conditions would materially
improve, the fair value of the Company's businesses was signiÑcantly less than it might have been at other
times. In other words, in a cyclical business, the timing of a valuation such as this may be an important factor
in the outcome of the valuation exercise. The reporting units with the most signiÑcant impairment of goodwill
are in Europe where the Company has not yet generated an acceptable level of proÑts and cash Öows. In
addition, the deÑned reporting unit structure has resulted in an impairment of goodwill which includes
goodwill related to certain recent acquisitions that otherwise might not have been impaired.
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash Flow
The table below highlights cash Öow activity in 2002 and provides comparisons with the prior two years.
Cash Öow generated from operating activities in 2002 increased substantially over 2001, generated primarily
by working capital reductions that are common in Avnet's business during down cycles. Changes in working
capital balances generated $824.8 million in cash inÖows in 2002. Consequently, cash Öows from operations
totaled $976.3 million during the most recent year.
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Cash Öow from Ñnancing activities has declined over the past three years, decreasing by $1.26 billion
from 2001 to 2002 alone, as the cash proceeds from operations were used primarily to pay down debt. Included
in this decline was the repayment of $150 million under the accounts receivable securitization program (see
Note 3 to the consolidated Ñnancial statements in Item 14 of this Report). Cash outÖows for investing
activities have declined over the past two years, most signiÑcantly during 2002, indicative of the fact that no
material capital expenditures or acquisitions of operations have been undertaken during the current market
downturn. This lower level of investing activity is expected to continue in 2003.
COMPARISON OF
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS
June 28,
2002

Cash Flow Provided from (Used for):
Operating Activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net Change in Working Capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Financing Activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Investing Activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net EÅects on Cash from:
Exchange RatesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Discontinued Operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Years Ended
June 29,
2001
(Thousands)

June 30,
2000

$976,305
824,794
(809,368)
(117,841)

$186,200
(150,086)
452,626
(760,837)

$(494,382)
(743,642)
1,065,269
(810,490)

12,859
Ì

(7,468)
(25,073)

(995)
(11,082)

Over the past three years, cash generated from continuing operations before depreciation, amortization,
deferred taxes and other non-cash items (including provisions for doubtful accounts and non-cash portions of
special charges recorded during those years) totaled $737.0 million. During that period, $68.9 million was used
for working capital (excluding cash and cash equivalents), resulting in net cash Öow from operations of
$668.1 million. In addition, $305.2 million, net, was needed for other normal business operations including
purchases of property, plant and equipment ($301.7 million) and payment of dividends ($72.1 million), oÅset
in part by net cash generated from other items ($68.6 million). This resulted in $362.9 million, net, being
generated by normal business operations. During the same three year period, the Company also used
$1.424 billion, net, for acquisitions of operations in excess of cash acquired and cash received from dispositions
($1.388 billion) and net cash used for discontinued operations ($36.2 million). This overall use of cash of
$1.061 billion was Ñnanced by a net increase in debt ($516.4 million), net proceeds from the asset
securitization program ($200.0 million) and utilization of available cash ($344.3 million).
In 2002, cash Öow from operating activities totaled $976.3 million. During this period, $151.5 million was
generated from continuing operations before depreciation, amortization, deferred taxes and other non-cash
items (principally provisions for doubtful accounts and the non-cash portion of special charges) and
$824.8 million was generated by reductions in working capital (excluding cash and cash equivalents). In
addition, the Company used $73.2 million for normal business operations including dividend payments
($26.5 million), purchases of property plant and equipment ($83.8 million), oÅset in part by net cash
generated from other items ($37.1 million). Combined, the Company generated $903.1 million in net cash
and cash equivalents from normal business operations. The Company also used $34.1 million for acquisitions
of operations and investments during 2002. The combined net cash proceeds discussed above of $869.0 million
along with $394.3 million of cash generated from new long-term debt Ñnancing were used to repay
$150.0 million under the accounts receivable securitization program and to, net, repay debt balances of
$1.051 billion. Finally, cash and cash equivalents increased by $62.0 million for the year.
In 2001, the Company generated $336.3 million from income from continuing operations before
depreciation, amortization, deferred taxes, cash payments related to the acquisition of Kent (included in cash
used for acquisitions in the consolidated statement of cash Öows) and other non-cash items (including the
non-cash portion of special charges). This was oÅset by $150.1 million of cash used for working capital
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(excluding cash and cash equivalents), resulting in $186.2 million of net cash Öows provided from operations.
In addition, the Company used $149.4 million for other normal business operations including purchases of
property, plant and equipment ($125.4 million) and dividends ($27.4 million), oÅset by cash generated from
other items ($3.4 million). This resulted in $36.8 million being generated from normal business operations.
The Company also used $660.5 million for acquisitions, net of cash received from dispositions and the net cash
used for discontinued operations. This overall use of cash of $623.7 million was Ñnanced by a $119.2 million
net increase in debt, $350.0 million of proceeds from the asset securitization program and the utilization of
$154.5 million of available cash.
In 2000, the Company generated $249.3 million from income from continuing operations before
depreciation, amortization, deferred taxes and other non-cash items (including the non-cash portion of special
charges), and used $743.7 million for working capital (excluding cash and cash equivalents), resulting in
$494.4 million of net cash Öows being used for operating activities. In addition, the Company used
$82.5 million for other normal business operations including purchases of property, plant and equipment
($92.5 million) and dividends ($18.2 million), oÅset by cash generated from other items ($28.2 million). This
resulted in $576.9 million being used for normal business operations. The Company also used $729.1 million
for acquisitions and the net cash used for discontinued operations. This overall use of cash of $1.306 billion
was Ñnanced by a $1.054 billion net increase in debt and the utilization of $251.7 million of available cash.
Capital Structure
The Company uses a variety of Ñnancing arrangements, both short-term and long-term, to fund its
operations. The Company uses diversiÑed sources of funding so that it does not become overly dependent on
one source and in eÅorts to achieve lower cost of funding through these diÅerent alternatives. These Ñnancing
arrangements include public bonds, short-term and long-term bank loans, commercial paper and an accounts
receivable securitization program. For a detailed description of the Company's external Ñnancing arrangements outstanding at June 28, 2002, please refer to Note 7 in the notes to the consolidated Ñnancial statements
appearing in Item 14 of this Report.
The table below highlights the capital structure for the past two years:
CAPITAL STRUCTURE
(Dollars in thousands)
2002

2001

% Change

Short-Term Debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Long-Term Debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Shareholders' Equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

59,309
1,565,836
1,804,510

$1,302,129
919,493
2,374,590

(95.45)%
70.29 %
(24.01)%

Total Capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$3,429,655

$4,596,212

(25.38)%

Financing Transactions
In November 2001, the Company issued $400.0 million of 8.0% Notes due November 15, 2006 (the
""8% Notes''). The net proceeds received by the Company from the sale of the 8% Notes were approximately
$394.3 million after deduction of the underwriting discounts and other expenses associated with the sale. The
net proceeds from the 8% Notes have been used to repay commercial paper and other short-term
indebtedness. The 8% Notes are hedged with two interest rate swaps as discussed in Note 7 to the consolidated
Ñnancial statements appearing in Item 14 of this Report and in Item 7A. The hedges eÅectively convert the
8% Notes from a Ñxed rate to a Öoating rate based upon U.S. LIBOR plus a spread. The Company accounts
for the hedges using the shortcut method as deÑned under the FASB's Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 133 (""SFAS 133''), ""Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,'' as
amended by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 138, ""Accounting for Certain Derivative and
Hedging Activities.'' Under this method, the hedges were perfectly eÅective during the year and at year-end.
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Therefore, the market value adjustments for the hedged 8% Notes and for the hedges directly oÅset one
another in interest expense.
In October 2001, the Company entered into agreements providing $1.0 billion in Ñnancing with a
syndicate of banks led by Bank of America in order to replace the then existing $1.25 billion 364-day credit
facility and the $700 million Ñve-year credit facility. This new bank Ñnancing is divided into three separate
credit facilities: a multi-year facility, a 364-day facility and a term loan facility. The multi-year facility is a
three-year revolving, multi-currency facility that matures on October 25, 2004 and provides up to $428.75 million in Ñnancing. The 364-day facility is a revolving, multi-currency facility that matures on October 23, 2002
and provides up to $488.75 million in Ñnancing. The term loan facility, which matured on November 16, 2001,
was a U.S. dollar facility that provided up to $82.5 million in Ñnancing. The Company may select from various
interest rate options and maturities under these facilities, although the Company intends to use a signiÑcant
amount as a back-up for its commercial paper program pursuant to which the Company is authorized to issue
short-term notes for current operational business requirements.
In October 2001, Avnet Financial Services CVA, a wholly owned subsidiary incorporated in Belgium,
entered into an agreement with a Belgian bank which provides for the issuance of up to Euro 100 million in
Treasury Notes. The Treasury Note program is a multi-currency program pursuant to which short-term notes
may be issued with maturities from seven days to one year with either Ñxed or Öoating rates of interest. This
program is intended to partially Ñnance the working capital requirements of the Company's European
operations.
In June 2001, the Company entered into a Ñve-year $350 million accounts receivable securitization
program with a Ñnancial institution whereby it sells, on a revolving basis, an undivided interest in a pool of its
trade accounts receivable. Under the program, the Company sells receivables in securitization transactions and
retains a subordinated interest and servicing rights to those receivables. The availability for Ñnancing under the
securitization program is dependent on the level of the Company's trade receivables from month to month. At
June 28, 2002 and June 29, 2001, the Company had sold $200 million and $350 million, respectively, of
receivables under the program, which is reÖected as a reduction of receivables in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. The cash received from the sale of receivables was used primarily to pay down
outstanding borrowings. Accordingly, the amount of debt reÖected on the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets has been reduced by the $200 million and $350 million, respectively, at June 28, 2002 and June 29,
2001. The purpose of this program is to provide the Company with an additional source of liquidity at interest
rates more favorable than it could receive through other forms of Ñnancing. The program agreement was
amended in February 2002 to include participation by a second Ñnancial institution.
In October 2000, the Company issued $250.0 million of 8.20% Notes due October 17, 2003 (the
""8.20% Notes'') and issued $325.0 million of Floating Rate Notes due October 17, 2001 (the ""Floating Rate
Notes''). The proceeds from the sale of the 8.20% Notes and the Floating Rate Notes were approximately
$572.4 million after deduction of underwriting discounts and other expenses associated with the sale. The
Floating Rate Notes were repaid upon their maturity in October 2001. The Floating Rate Notes bore interest
at an annual rate equal to three-month LIBOR, reset quarterly, plus 87.5 basis points (0.875%). After
temporarily using the net proceeds from the 8.20% Notes and the Floating Rate Notes to pay down
commercial paper and make investments in short-term securities, the net proceeds were used to fund the
acquisition of certain European operations of the VEBA Group as described in the ""Acquisitions'' section
above.
In October 2000, the Company entered into a $1.25 billion 364-day credit facility with a syndicate of
banks. This facility provided additional working capital capacity. The Company was able to select from various
interest rate options and maturities under this facility, although the Company utilized the facility primarily as
back-up for its commercial paper program. This facility expired upon maturity and was replaced by the
$1.0 billion of credit facilities described above.
In addition to its primary Ñnancing arrangements, the Company has several small lines of credit in
various locations to fund the short-term working capital, foreign exchange, overdraft and letter of credit needs
of its wholly owned subsidiaries in Europe and Asia. These facilities are generally guaranteed by Avnet. The
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Company also has available to it certain vendor Ñnancing programs for its payables, creating additional
Öexibility for short-term Ñnancing needs.
Covenants and Conditions
The multi-year and 364-day credit agreements described above contain certain covenants with various
limitations on total debt, capital expenditures and investments and require that net worth, interest coverage
and other ratios be maintained at speciÑc levels. Similarly, the receivable securitization program contains
certain covenants relating to the quality of the receivables sold under the program. If these conditions are not
met, the Company may not be able to borrow any additional funds under these facilities and the lenders
generally have the right to accelerate any amounts outstanding. Circumstances that could aÅect the
Company's ability to meet the required Ñnancial covenants and conditions in its various Ñnancing arrangements include the duration and depth of the current economic downturn and the impact on proÑtability,
perceived Ñnancial strength or weakness by credit rating agencies and various other economic, market and
industry factors. The Company was in compliance with all covenants for these facilities at June 28, 2002.
The Company is also required to maintain minimum senior unsecured credit ratings in order to continue
using the receivable securitization program in its present form. If the Company's credit rating is reduced below
Baa3 and BBB¿ by Moody's Investors Services, Inc. and Standard and Poor's, respectively, the Company
may be in default under the securitization program. The Company is in compliance with these minimum
unsecured credit ratings currently and as of June 28, 2002. However, in the event of a continued economic
downturn or a weaker than expected recovery, the Company's prospects of a lowered credit rating on its senior
unsecured debt would become more likely. Both the syndicated bank facility and the securitization program
contain certain standard cross-default provisions, meaning that if there is a default under one facility, such as a
covenant breach or a credit ratings trigger, that default can also trigger a default under the other facility. In the
case of any default, the Company would either have to negotiate with the lenders to modify the facility or pay
oÅ all amounts outstanding, terminate the facility and, if necessary, seek alternative Ñnancing.
Under its current Ñnancing arrangements the Company has an aggregate of approximately $907.8 million
in additional borrowing capacity at June 28, 2002. Approximately $488.7 million of that capacity expires in
October 2002 under its current 364-day facility and it is management's intention to terminate this facility by
its expiration date. Management believes its current borrowing capacity, even after termination of the 364-day
facility, and its ability to generate cash from normal operations are suÇcient to meet its projected working
capital requirements.
Shareholders' Equity
Shareholders' equity at June 28, 2002 was $1.805 billion as compared to $2.375 billion the prior year,
down 24.0%. This decline was in large part due to the impact on retained earnings of the Company's net loss,
including all special charges and the cumulative eÅect of change in accounting principle related to goodwill
impairment discussed previously.
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Liquidity
The following table highlights the Company's liquidity and related ratios for the past two years:
COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS Ì LIQUIDITY
(Dollars in millions)
Years Ended
June 28, 2002
June 29, 2001

Current Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Quick AssetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Current Liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Working Capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total DebtÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total CapitalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Quick Ratio ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Working Capital Ratio ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Debt to Total CapitalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$3,205.5
1,533.2
1,276.8
1,928.7
1,625.1
3,429.7
1.2:1
2.5:1
47.4%

$3,747.5
1,726.8
2,570.0
1,177.4
2,221.6
4,596.2
0.7:1
1.5:1
48.3%

Percentage
Change
2002 to 2001

(14.5%)
(11.2%)
(50.3%)
63.8%
(26.8%)
(25.4%)

The Company's quick assets at June 28, 2002 totaled $1.533 billion as compared with $1.727 billion at
June 29, 2001. This decrease in quick assets of 11.2% was due primarily to the utilization of cash available
throughout the year to partially pay down outstanding debt and due to the reduction of receivables outstanding
resulting from the decrease in sales, the impact of the Company's accounts receivable securitization program
as described previously and the Company's eÅorts to manage working capital. Quick assets exceeded the
Company's current liabilities by $256.4 million as compared with a deÑcit of $843.2 million at the end of 2001.
Working capital at June 28, 2002 was $1.929 billion as compared with $1.177 billion at the end of 2001. At
June 28, 2002, to support each dollar of current liabilities, the Company had $1.20 of quick assets and $1.31 of
other current assets as compared with $0.67 of quick assets and $0.79 of other current assets at the end of
2001. The improvement in these ratios year-over-year is directly related to the liquidation of debt by the
Company throughout 2002. Additionally, at the end of 2001, the Company had classiÑed as current a total of
$796.8 million of debt related to both the Kent 4.5% Convertible Notes due 2004, substantially all of which
were ""put'' back to the Company in 2002, and amounts outstanding under a long-term bank facility the
Company was in the process of renegotiating at the end of 2001.
On August 15, 2001, the Company announced that it would look to more eÅectively deploy its cash to
fuel future earnings growth and deliver increased shareholder value by discontinuing the payment of its cash
dividend eÅective after its dividend payment made on January 2, 2002.
Currently, the Company does not have any material commitments for capital expenditures.
Long-Term Contractual Obligations
The Company has the following contractual obligations outstanding as of June 28, 2002 (in millions):

Long-term debt, including amounts due
within one year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating leases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Total

Due in Less
than 1 Year

Due in
1-3 Years

Due in
4-5 Years

Due After
5 Years

$1,618.1
220.7

$ 59.3
51.0

$1,154.0
75.5

$400.8
43.2

$ 4.0
51.0

$1,838.8

$110.3

$1,229.5

$444.0

$55.0

As discussed in ""Capital Structure,'' the Company has two interest rate swaps outstanding on one of its
Ñxed rate debt instruments which have yielded, in accordance with SFAS 133, as amended, a fair value
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adjustment of $7.0 million to the Company's long-term debt included in the consolidated balance sheet at
June 28, 2002.
Item 7A.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company seeks to reduce earnings and cash Öow volatility associated with changes in interest rates
and foreign currency exchange rates by entering into Ñnancial arrangements intended to provide a hedge
against a portion of the risks associated with such volatility. The Company continues to have exposure to such
risks to the extent they are not hedged.
The Company has used interest rate swaps that convert certain Ñxed rate debt to variable rate debt,
eÅectively hedging the change in fair value of the Ñxed rate debt resulting from Öuctuations in interest rates.
At June 28, 2002, the Company has two interest rate swaps outstanding under which the Company pays a
variable interest rate and receives a Ñxed interest rate. The following table sets forth the scheduled maturities
and the total fair value of the Company's debt outstanding at June 28, 2002 (dollars in millions):

Liabilities:
Fixed rate debtÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Average interest rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Floating rate debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Average interest rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Interest Rate Swaps:
Fixed to variable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Average pay rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Average receive rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Total at
June 28,
2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

Thereafter

$ 5

$551

$361

$ 1

$400

$ 4

$

$54

$ Ì

$242

$Ì

$ Ì

$Ì

$

$Ì

$ Ì

$ Ì

$Ì

$400

$Ì

$
400
LIBOR°2.9%
8.0%

1,322
7.7%
296
4.1%

Fair Value at
June 28, 2002

$1,344
$ 296

Many of the Company's subsidiaries, on occasion, purchase and sell products in currencies other than
their functional currencies. This subjects the Company to the risks associated with the Öuctuations of foreign
currency exchange rates. The Company reduces this risk by utilizing natural hedging (oÅsetting receivables
and payables) as well as by creating oÅsetting positions through the use of derivative Ñnancial instruments,
primarily forward foreign exchange contracts with maturities of less than sixty days. The Company adjusts all
foreign denominated balances and any outstanding foreign exchange contracts to fair market value through the
consolidated statements of operations. Therefore, the market risk related to foreign exchange contracts is
oÅset by changes in valuation of the underlying items being hedged. The asset or liability representing the fair
value of foreign exchange contracts is classiÑed in the captions ""other current assets'' or ""accrued expenses
and other,'' as applicable, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. A hypothetical 10% change in
currency exchange rates under the remaining contracts would result in an increase or decrease of approximately $16.2 million to the fair value of the forward foreign exchange contracts at June 28, 2002, which would
generally be oÅset by an opposite eÅect on the related hedged positions.
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The Ñnancial statements and supplementary data are listed under Item 14 of this Report.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures
As previously reported in the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K Ñled on April 23, 2002, on
April 17, 2002 the Company dismissed its independent auditor, Arthur Andersen LLP (""Arthur Andersen'')
and appointed KPMG LLP (""KPMG'') as its new independent auditor, eÅective immediately. These actions
were approved by the Company's Board of Directors upon the recommendation of its Audit Committee.
KPMG audited the consolidated Ñnancial statements of the Company for the Ñscal year ending June 28, 2002.
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During the two most recent Ñscal years ended June 29, 2001 and June 30, 2000, and the subsequent
interim periods through the date of Arthur Andersen's dismissal, there was no disagreement between the
Company and Arthur Andersen, as deÑned in Item 304 of Regulation S-K, on any matter of accounting
principles or practices, Ñnancial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreement, if
not resolved to Arthur Andersen's satisfaction, would have caused Arthur Andersen to make reference to the
subject matter of such disagreement in connection with its reports, and there occurred no reportable events as
deÑned in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K.
The audit reports of Arthur Andersen on the consolidated Ñnancial statements of Avnet for the Ñscal
years ended June 29, 2001 and June 30, 2000 did not contain an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, nor
were they qualiÑed or modiÑed as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principles. During the two most
recent Ñscal years of Avnet ended June 28, 2002 and June 29, 2001, through the date of Arthur Andersen's
dismissal, neither the Company nor anyone on its behalf consulted with KPMG regarding any of the matters
or events set forth in Item 304(a)(2)(i) and (ii) of Regulation S-K.
Avnet provided Arthur Andersen with a copy of the foregoing statements. Attached as Exhibit 16 to this
Form 10-K is a copy of Andersen's letter stating its agreement with such statements.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors and Executive OÇcers
The information called for by Item 10 (except to the extent set forth in Item 4A) is incorporated in this
Report by reference to the Company's deÑnitive proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders anticipated to be held on November 7, 2002.
Item 11. Executive Compensation
The information called for by Item 11 is incorporated in this Report by reference to the Company's
deÑnitive proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipated to be held on
November 7, 2002.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneÑcial Owners and Management
The information called for by Item 12 (except for the Equity Compensation Plan Information set forth
below) is incorporated in this Report by reference to the Company's deÑnitive proxy statement relating to the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipated to be held on November 7, 2002.
Equity Compensation Plan Information

Plan category
Equity compensation
plans approved by
security holders(3)ÏÏÏ
Equity compensation
plans not approved by
security holdersÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Number of securities to
be issued upon exercise
of outstanding options,
warrants and rights
(a)

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights
(b)

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under
equity compensation
plans (excluding
securities reÖected in
column(a))
(c)

9,336,218(1)

$22.53

3,432,709(2)

Ì
9,336,218

Ì
$22.53

Ì
3,432,709

(1) Includes 9,186,916 outstanding options and 149,302 incentive shares awarded but not yet delivered.
(2) Includes 2,501,575 options available for grant, 157,890 incentive shares not yet awarded and 773,244
shares authorized for the Employee Stock Purchase Plan but not yet allocated.
(3) Options assumed through acquisitions accounted for as purchases are excluded from (1) above. The
outstanding balance of acquired options was 368,782 (column (a)) with a related weighted average
exercise price of $38.05 (column (b)).
The Company has one equity compensation plan that has not been approved by shareholders Ì the
Outside Director Stock Bonus Plan. Under this Plan, non-employee directors are awarded shares equal to
$20,000 of Avnet Common Stock upon their re-election each year, as part of their director compensation
package. Shares are issued in January of each year and the number of shares is calculated by dividing $20,000
by the closing price of Avnet Common Stock on the Ñrst business day of January. There is no established
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reserve of shares for issuance under the Plan and therefore no shares are reÖected in column (c) in the table
above. Aggregate shares issued under the Plan totaled 7,092, 9,840, and 5,400 for Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
The information called for by Item 13 is incorporated in this Report by reference to the Company's
deÑnitive proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipated to be held on
November 7, 2002.
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PART IV
Item 14.
a.

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
The following documents are Ñled as part of this Report:
Page

1.

2.

3.
b.

Consolidated Financial Statements:
Independent Auditors' Reports ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Avnet, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Financial Statements:
Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 28, 2002 and June 29, 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended June 28, 2002,
June 29, 2001 and June 30, 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the years ended June 28,
2002, June 29, 2001 and June 30, 2000ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended June 28, 2002,
June 29, 2001 and June 30, 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Financial Statement Schedules:
Schedule II (Valuation and Qualifying Accounts) for the years ended June 28,
2002, June 29, 2001 and June 30, 2000ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Schedules other than that above have been omitted because they are not
applicable or the required information is shown in the Ñnancial statements or
notes thereto.
Exhibits Ì The exhibit index for this Report can be found on pages 75 to 78.
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Reports on Form 8-K

During the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company Ñled the following Current Reports on Form 8-K:
(1) Current Report on Form 8-K bearing cover date of April 18, 2002 in which the Company reported under
Item 9 that it issued a press release announcing its third quarter 2002 earnings conference call; (2) Current
Report on Form 8-K bearing cover date of April 23, 2002 in which the Company reported under Item 4 that it
had dismissed Arthur Andersen LLP and appointed KPMG LLP as its auditor; (3) Current Report on
Form 8-K bearing cover date of April 24, 2002 in which the Company reported under Item 5 that it issued a
press release announcing third quarter 2002 earnings; (4) Current Report on Form 8-K bearing cover date of
May 8, 2002 in which the Company reported under Item 5 that it issued a press release announcing the speech
of Roy Vallee, Avnet's Chairman and CEO, at the JP Morgan 30th Annual H&Q Technology Conference;
(5) Current Report on Form 8-K bearing cover date of May 13, 2002 in which the Company reported under
Item 5 that it issued a press release announcing the speech of Roy Vallee at the Merrill Lynch 23rd Annual
EMS, Connector & Passsive Components Conference; and (6) Current Report on Form 8-K bearing cover
date of June 14, 2002 in which the Company reported under Item 5 that it issued a press release announcing
the speech of Roy Vallee at the Thomas Weisel ""Growth Forum 4.0.''
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

AVNET, INC.
(Registrant)

By:

/s/

ROY VALLEE
Roy Vallee,
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive
OÇcer and Director

Date: September 26, 2002
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on September 26, 2002.
Signature

/s/

ROY VALLEE
Roy Vallee

/s/

ELEANOR BAUM

Title

Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive OÇcer and Director
Director

Eleanor Baum

/s/

J. VERONICA BIGGINS

Director

J. Veronica Biggins

/s/

LAWRENCE W. CLARKSON

Director

Lawrence W. Clarkson

/s/

EHUD HOUMINER

Director

Ehud Houminer

/s/

JAMES A. LAWRENCE

Director

James A. Lawrence

/s/

SALVATORE J. NUZZO

Director

Salvatore J. Nuzzo

/s/

RAY M. ROBINSON

Director

Ray M. Robinson

/s/

FREDERIC SALERNO

Director

Frederic Salerno
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Signature

/s/

GARY L. TOOKER

Title

Director

Gary L. Tooker

/s/

RAYMOND SADOWSKI

/s/

Raymond Sadowski

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
OÇcer and Assistant Secretary

JOHN F. COLE

Controller and Principal Accounting OÇcer

John F. Cole
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CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Roy Vallee, Chief Executive OÇcer of Avnet, Inc., certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Avnet, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this annual report; and

3.

Based on my knowledge, the Ñnancial statements, and other Ñnancial information included in
this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the Ñnancial condition, results of
operations and cash Öows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual
report.

Date: September 26, 2002
/s/ ROY VALLEE
Roy Vallee
Chief Executive OÇcer
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CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Raymond Sadowski, Chief Financial OÇcer of Avnet, Inc., certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Avnet, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this annual report; and

3.

Based on my knowledge, the Ñnancial statements, and other Ñnancial information included in
this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the Ñnancial condition, results of
operations and cash Öows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual
report.

Date: September 26, 2002
/s/ RAYMOND SADOWSKI
Raymond Sadowski
Chief Financial OÇcer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
The Board of Directors
Avnet, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Avnet, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
June 28, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders' equity and cash Öows for
the year then ended. In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ñnancial statements, we have also
audited the Ñnancial statement schedule for the year ended June 28, 2002 listed in the accompanying index.
These consolidated Ñnancial statements and Ñnancial statement schedule are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ñnancial statements
and Ñnancial statement schedule based on our audit. The consolidated Ñnancial statements and Ñnancial
statement schedule of Avnet, Inc. and subsidiaries as of June 29, 2001 and June 30, 2000 and for each of the
years in the two-year period then ended were audited by other auditors who have ceased operations. Those
auditors expressed an unqualiÑed opinion on those consolidated Ñnancial statements and Ñnancial statement
schedule in their report dated August 14, 2001 based upon their audits and upon the report of other auditors.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Ñnancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Ñnancial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and signiÑcant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall Ñnancial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated Ñnancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the Ñnancial position of Avnet, Inc. and subsidiaries as of June 28, 2002, and the results of their
operations and their cash Öows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the related Ñnancial statement schedule for
the year ended June 28, 2002, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated Ñnancial statements taken
as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.
As discussed in Note 6 to the consolidated Ñnancial statements, the Company changed its method of
accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets during its Ñscal year ended June 28, 2002.

/s/
Phoenix, Arizona
August 7, 2002
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KPMG LLP

THE REPORT PRESENTED BELOW IS A COPY OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF
ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP, THE FORMER AUDITOR FOR AVNET, INC., ISSUED ON AUGUST 14,
2001. ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP HAS BEEN UNABLE TO ISSUE AN UPDATED REPORT. ADDITIONALLY, THE OPINION PRESENTED BELOW COVERS THE BALANCE SHEET AS OF JUNE 30,
2000 AND THE STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS, SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 2, 1999, WHICH STATEMENTS ARE NOT INCLUDED IN THIS
REPORT ON FORM 10-K.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
To Avnet, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Avnet, Inc. (a New York corporation) and Subsidiaries as of June 29, 2001 and June 30, 2000, and the related consolidated statements of
income, shareholders' equity and cash Öows for each of the three years in the period ended June 29, 2001.
These Ñnancial statements and the schedule referred to below are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ñnancial statements based on our audits. We
did not audit the Ñnancial statements of Kent Electronics Corporation and Subsidiaries, a company acquired
during 2001 in a transaction accounted for as a pooling-of-interests, as discussed in Note 1. Such statements
are included in the consolidated Ñnancial statements of Avnet, Inc. and reÖect 12 percent of total consolidated
assets as of June 30, 2000 and 6 percent, 7 percent and 7 percent of total consolidated revenues for the years
ended June 29, 2001, June 30, 2000 and July 2, 1999, respectively. These statements were audited by other
auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to amounts included for
Kent Electronics Corporation and Subsidiaries, is based solely upon the report of the other auditors.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Ñnancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Ñnancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and signiÑcant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
Ñnancial statement presentation. We believe that our audits and the report of the other auditors provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditors, the Ñnancial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the Ñnancial position of Avnet, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
June 29, 2001 and June 30, 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash Öows for each of the three
years in the period ended June 29, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States.
Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic Ñnancial statements taken as a
whole. The schedule listed in the index of Ñnancial statement schedules is presented for purposes of complying
with the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and is not part of the basic Ñnancial statements. This
schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic Ñnancial statements
and, in our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditors, fairly states in all material
respects the Ñnancial data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic Ñnancial statements taken as
a whole.

/s/
Phoenix, Arizona
August 14, 2001
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ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Board of Directors and Stockholders
Kent Electronics Corporation
We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Kent Electronics Corporation and Subsidiaries as of
March 31, 2001, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, cash Öows and stockholders' equity for
each of the two years in the period ended March 31, 2001. These Ñnancial statements are the responsibility of
the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ñnancial statements based on
our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Ñnancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Ñnancial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and signiÑcant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall Ñnancial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.
In our opinion, the Ñnancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated Ñnancial position of Kent Electronics Corporation and Subsidiaries as of March 31, 2001 and the
consolidated results of their operations and their cash Öows for each of the two years in the period ended
March 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/
Houston, Texas
May 8, 2001
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GRANT THORNTON LLP

AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
June 28,
June 29,
2002
2001
(Thousands, except
share amounts)

Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Receivables, less allowances of $99,073 and $65,204, respectively (Note 3)
Inventories ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 159,234
1,374,017
1,417,305
254,976

$ 97,279
1,629,566
1,917,044
103,600

Total current assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 5)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Goodwill (Note 6)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

3,205,532
349,924
844,597
281,901

3,747,489
417,159
1,404,863
294,637

Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$4,681,954

$5,864,148

$

59,309
891,234
326,293

$1,302,129
853,196
414,740

Total current liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Long-term debt, less due within one year (Note 7) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other long-term liabilities (Note 10) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

1,276,836
1,565,836
34,772

2,570,065
919,493
Ì

Total liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

2,877,444

3,489,558

119,431
569,437
1,088,008
27,812
(178)

117,840
542,733
1,770,645
(56,297)
(331)

Total shareholders' equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

1,804,510

2,374,590

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$4,681,954

$5,864,148

Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Borrowings due within one year (Note 7) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accounts payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accrued expenses and other (Note 8) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 11 and 13)
Shareholders' equity (Notes 1 and 12):
Common stock $1.00 par; authorized 300,000,000 shares; issued
119,431,000 shares and 117,840,000 shares, respectivelyÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Additional paid-in capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Retained earningsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative other comprehensive income (loss) (Note 4) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Treasury stock at cost, 7,422 shares and 12,711 shares, respectively ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

See notes to consolidated Ñnancial statements
44

AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended
June 28,
June 29,
June 30,
2002
2001
2000
(Thousands, except per share amounts)

Sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cost of sales (Note 17) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$8,920,248
7,697,434

$12,814,010
10,948,484

$9,915,042
8,470,257

Gross proÑt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 17) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

1,222,814
1,225,799

1,865,526
1,611,874

1,444,785
1,076,793

Operating income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other income, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Interest expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(2,985)
6,755
(124,583)

253,652
25,495
(191,895)

367,992
10,452
(94,798)

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxesÏÏ
Income tax provision (beneÑt) (Note 9) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(120,813)
(36,377)

87,252
87,155

283,646
121,082

Income (loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes of $0,
$1,611 and $100, respectively (Note 2) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations, net of income taxes
of $0, $8,611 and $0, respectively (Note 2)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(84,436)

97

162,564

Ì

2,416

828

Ì

12,889

Ì

15,402
Ì

163,392
Ì
$ 163,392

Income (loss) before cumulative eÅect of change in accounting
principle ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of change in accounting principle (Note 6) ÏÏ

(84,436)
(580,495)

Net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ (664,931)

$

15,402

Earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations (Note 14):
Basic ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

(0.71)

$

Ì

$

1.52

Diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

(0.71)

$

Ì

$

1.50

Earnings (loss) per share before cumulative eÅect of change in
accounting principle (Notes 6 and 14):
Basic ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

(0.71)

$

0.13

$

1.53

Diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

(0.71)

$

0.13

$

1.51

Net earnings (loss) per share (Notes 6 and 14):
Basic ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

(5.61)

$

0.13

$

1.53

Diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

(5.61)

$

0.13

$

1.51

Shares used to compute earnings (loss) per share (Note 14):
Basic ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

118,561

117,263

106,627

Diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

118,561

118,815

108,257

See notes to consolidated Ñnancial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years Ended June 28, 2002, June 29, 2001 and June 30, 2000

Common Stock

Balance, July 2, 1999 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Translation adjustments (Note 4) ÏÏ
Valuation adjustments, net of tax of
$1,562 (Note 4) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Comprehensive income (Note 4) ÏÏÏ
Dividends, $0.30 per shareÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Acquisitions of operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Two-for-one stock split (Note 1) ÏÏÏ
Other, net, principally stock option
and incentive programsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Balance, June 30, 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Translation adjustments (Note 4) ÏÏ
Valuation adjustments, net of tax of
$1,562 (Note 4) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Comprehensive income (Note 4) ÏÏÏ
Dividends, $0.30 per shareÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Acquisitions of operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Kent's net income for the quarter
ended June 30, 2000 (Note 2) ÏÏÏ
Other, net, principally stock option
and incentive programsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Balance, June 29, 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net loss ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Translation adjustments (Note 4) ÏÏ
Minimum pension liability
adjustment, net of tax of $11,155
(Note 4) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Comprehensive loss (Note 4) ÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Dividends, $0.15 per share
(Note 8) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other, net, principally stock option
and incentive programsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Balance, June 28, 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 56,580
Ì
Ì

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Cumulative Other
Retained
Comprehensive
Treasury
Earnings
Income (Loss)
Stock
(Thousands, except per share amounts)

$603,853 $1,637,439
Ì
163,392
Ì
Ì

Ì

Ì

$(46,041)
Ì
(8,541)

Ì

Ì

Ì
Ì
Ì

Ì
469,133
Ì

Ì
(117,256)
(57,542)

1,278
115,400
Ì
Ì

41,305
470,360
Ì
Ì

Ì
1,776,025
15,402
Ì

Ì
(52,289)
Ì
(1,715)

Ì

Ì

Ì

(2,293)

Ì
1,361

Ì
47,449

Ì

Ì

1,079
117,840
Ì
Ì

24,924
542,733
Ì
Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì

1,591
$119,431

(24,806)
Ì
Ì

1,128
(62,793)
Ì
Ì
Ì

(29,601)
Ì

Ì
Ì

Ì
62,255

8,819

Ì

Ì

Ì
1,770,645
(664,931)
Ì
Ì

(17,706)

26,704
Ì
$569,437 $1,088,008

2,293
157,144
(24,806)
351,877
Ì
43,711
2,246,703
15,402
(1,715)
(2,293)
11,394
(29,601)
111,065
8,819

Ì
(56,297)
Ì
101,159

207
(331)
Ì
Ì

26,210
2,374,590
(664,931)
101,159

(17,050)

Ì

(17,050)
(580,822)

Ì

(17,706)

Ì
Ì
$ 27,812

See notes to consolidated Ñnancial statements
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$(533,054) $1,718,777
Ì
163,392
Ì
(8,541)

2,293

Ì
Ì
57,542

Total
Shareholders'
Equity

$

153
28,448
(178) $1,804,510

AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended
June 29,
2001
(Thousands)

June 28,
2002

Cash Öows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes ÏÏÏÏ
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations, net of income
taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of change in accounting principle
(Note 6) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net income (loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Non-cash and other reconciling items:
Depreciation and amortizationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deferred taxes (Note 9) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other, net (Note 15) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Changes in (net of eÅects from businesses acquisitions
and dispositions):
Receivables ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Inventories ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Payables, accruals and other, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net cash Öows provided from (used for) operating
activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cash Öows from Ñnancing activities:
Sales (repayments) under accounts receivable securitization
program (Note 3)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Issuance of notes in public oÅerings, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(Repayment) issuance of commercial paper and bank debt,
netÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Payment of other debt, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cash dividends ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other, netÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net cash Öows (used for) provided from Ñnancing
activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cash Öows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Acquisitions of operations, net (Notes 2 and 17) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Investments in non-consolidated entities, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net cash Öows used for investing activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
EÅect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ÏÏÏ
Net decrease in cash from discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cash and cash equivalents:
Ì(decrease) increaseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ìat beginning of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ìnet change during Kent's quarter ending June 30, 2000
(Note 2) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ìat end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ (664,931)
Ì

15,402
(2,416)

Ì

(12,889)

580,495
(84,436)

Ì
Ì
162,564

119,398
(79,659)
296,450
336,286

83,516
(40,159)
43,339
249,260

433,863
552,621
(161,690)

315,669
248,978
(714,733)

(453,330)
(535,844)
245,532

976,305

186,200

(494,382)

(150,000)
394,328

350,000
572,389

Ì
358,326

(427,227)
(25,983)
(27,387)
10,834

696,104
(138)
(18,180)
29,157

(1,046,893)
(4,482)
(26,546)
24,225

$

Ì
97

$ 163,392
(828)

103,879
10,828
121,240
151,511

(809,368)

452,626

(83,750)
(31,547)
(2,544)
Ì
(117,841)
12,859
Ì

(125,421)
(858,851)
(2,955)
226,390
(760,837)
(7,468)
(25,073)

(92,488)
(675,030)
(42,972)
Ì
(810,490)
(995)
(11,082)

61,955
97,279

(154,552)
268,244

(251,680)
519,924

Ì
159,234

Additional cash Öow information (Note 15)
See notes to consolidated Ñnancial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.

Summary of signiÑcant accounting policies:

Principles of consolidation Ì The accompanying consolidated Ñnancial statements include the accounts
of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
EÅective June 8, 2001, the Company acquired Kent Electronics Corporation (""Kent'') in a transaction
accounted for as a ""pooling-of-interests.'' Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated Ñnancial statements
and notes for periods prior to the acquisition have been restated to reÖect the acquisition of Kent (see Note 2).
Cash equivalents Ì The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Inventories Ì Inventories, comprised principally of Ñnished goods, are stated at cost (Ñrst-in, Ñrst-out) or
market, whichever is lower.
Investments Ì Investments in joint ventures and entities in which the Company has an ownership
interest greater than 50% and exercises control over the venture are consolidated in the accompanying
consolidated Ñnancial statements. Minority interests in the years presented, which amounts are not material,
are included in the caption ""accrued expenses and other'' on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
The Company invests from time to time in ventures in which the Company's ownership interest is less than
20% and over which the Company does not exercise signiÑcant inÖuence. Such investments are accounted for
under the cost method. The fair values for investments not traded on a quoted exchange are estimated based
upon the performance of the ventures historically, the ventures' forecasted Ñnancial performance and
management's evaluation of the ventures' viability and business models. To the extent the book value of an
investment exceeds its assessed fair value, the Company will record an appropriate impairment charge (see
Note 17). Thus, the carrying value of the Company's investments approximates fair value.
Depreciation and amortization Ì Depreciation and amortization is generally provided for by the straightline method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives for depreciation and
amortization are typically as follows: buildings Ì 30 years; machinery, Ñxtures and equipment Ì 2-10 years;
and leasehold improvements Ì over the applicable remaining lease term or useful life if shorter. Internal use
software costs are expensed or capitalized depending upon the stage of the project, in accordance with the
AICPA's Statement of Position 98-1, ""Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or
Obtained for Internal Use.'' Amortization of internal use software costs commences upon the project's
completion and extends over the estimated useful life, typically ranging from 5-7 years.
Long-lived assets Ì Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. The Company
continually evaluates the carrying value and the remaining economic useful life of all long-lived assets and will
adjust the carrying value and the related depreciation and amortization period if and when appropriate.
Goodwill Ì Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets
acquired. Except for an immaterial amount of goodwill applicable to purchases made before October 31, 1970,
goodwill was amortized on a straight-line basis over 40 years through June 29, 2001. The Company has
adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board's (""FASB'') Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 (""SFAS 141''), ""Business Combinations,'' which requires that all business combinations
initiated after June 30, 2001 be accounted for under the purchase method and that certain identiÑable
intangible assets be recognized as assets apart from goodwill. The Company has no other material identiÑable
intangible assets besides goodwill. The Company also elected to early adopt the provisions of the FASB's
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (""SFAS 142''), ""Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,'' eÅective June 30, 2001, the Ñrst day of the Company's Ñscal year 2002. SFAS 142 requires that
ratable amortization of goodwill be replaced with periodic tests for goodwill impairment (see Note 6).
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Foreign currency translation Ì The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into
U.S. dollars at the exchange rates in eÅect at the balance sheet date, with the related translation gains and
losses reported as a separate component of shareholders' equity and comprehensive income. Results of
operations are translated using the average exchange rates prevailing throughout the period.
Income taxes Ì The Company follows the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax impact of diÅerences between the
Ñnancial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in eÅect for the year in which those temporary diÅerences
are expected to be recovered or settled. The eÅect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates
is recognized in earnings in the period in which the new rate is enacted.
No provision for U.S. income taxes has been made for approximately $206,900,000 of cumulative
unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries at June 28, 2002 because those earnings are expected to be
permanently reinvested outside the U.S.
Self-insurance Ì The Company is primarily self-insured for workers' compensation, and general, product
and automobile liability costs; however, the Company also has a stop-loss insurance policy in place to limit the
Company's exposure to individual and aggregate claims made. Liabilities for these programs are estimated
based upon outstanding claims and claims estimated to have been incurred but not yet reported based upon
historical loss experience. These estimates are subject to variability due to changes in trends of losses for
outstanding claims and incurred but not recorded claims, including external factors such as future inÖation
rates, beneÑt level changes and claim settlement patterns.
Stock split Ì On August 31, 2000, the Board of Directors of the Company declared a two-for-one stock
split to be eÅected in the form of a stock dividend. The additional common stock was distributed on
September 28, 2000 to shareholders of record on September 18, 2000. All references in this report to the
number of shares, per share amounts and market prices of the Company's common stock have been restated to
reÖect the stock split and the resulting increased number of shares outstanding.
Revenue recognition Ì Revenue from product sales is generally recognized upon shipment to customers.
Revenues and anticipated proÑts under long-term contracts are recorded on the percentage of completion
basis, under which a portion of the total contract price is accrued based on the ratio of costs incurred to
estimated costs at completion. Revenues from maintenance contracts are recognized ratably over the life of
the contracts, ranging from one to three years. Revenues are recorded net of discounts, rebates and estimated
returns.
Shipping and handling fees and costs Ì The Company recognizes amounts billed to a customer in a sale
transaction related to shipping and handling as revenue. The costs incurred by the Company for shipping and
handling are classiÑed as cost of sales.
Comprehensive income (loss) Ì Comprehensive income (loss) represents net income (loss) for the year
adjusted for changes in shareholders' equity from non-shareholder sources. Cumulative comprehensive
income (loss) items consist of currency translation, valuation adjustments for marketable securities, net of tax,
and the impact of the Company's additional minimum pension liability, net of tax.
Concentration of credit risk Ì Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to a concentration of credit risk principally consist of cash and cash equivalents and trade accounts receivable. The
Company invests its excess cash primarily in overnight Eurodollar time deposits and institutional money
market funds with quality Ñnancial institutions. The Company sells electronic components and computer
products primarily to original equipment manufacturers, including military contractors and the military,
throughout the world. To reduce credit risk, management performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers'
Ñnancial condition and, in some instances, has obtained insurance coverage to reduce such risk. The Company
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maintains reserves for potential credit losses, but has not experienced any material losses related to individual
customers or groups of customers in any particular industry or geographic area.
Fair value of Ñnancial instruments Ì The carrying amounts of the Company's Ñnancial instruments,
including cash and cash equivalents, receivables and accounts payable approximate their fair values at
June 28, 2002 due to the short-term nature of these instruments. See Note 7 for further discussion of the fair
value of the Company's Ñxed rate long-term debt instruments and see Investments for further discussion of the
fair value of the Company's investments in unconsolidated entities.
Accounts receivable securitization Ì The Company has an accounts receivable securitization program
whereby the Company sells receivables in securitization transactions and retains a subordinated interest and
servicing rights to those receivables. The Company accounts for the program under the FASB's Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 140 (""SFAS 140''), ""Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of
Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities.'' The gain or loss on sales of receivables is determined at
the date of transfer based upon the relative fair value of the assets sold and the interests retained. The
Company estimates fair value based on the present value of future expected cash Öows using management's
best estimates of the key assumptions, including collection period and discount rates. See Note 3 for further
discussion.
Derivative Ñnancial instruments Ì EÅective July 1, 2000, the Company adopted the FASB's Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 (""SFAS 133''), ""Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities,'' as amended by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 138, ""Accounting for
Certain Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.'' SFAS 133, as amended, establishes accounting and
reporting standards requiring that every derivative instrument, including certain derivative instruments
embedded in other contracts, be recorded in the balance sheet as either an asset or liability measured at its fair
value. SFAS 133, as amended, requires that changes in the derivative's fair value be recognized currently in
earnings unless speciÑc hedge accounting criteria are met. Special accounting for qualifying hedges allows a
derivative's gains and losses to oÅset related results on the hedged item in the statement of operations to the
extent eÅective, thus resulting in no net eÅect in the statement of operations. To achieve such accounting
treatment, the Company must formally document, designate and assess the eÅectiveness of transactions that
receive hedge accounting. The adoption of SFAS 133, as amended, did not have a material eÅect on the
Company's consolidated Ñnancial statements.
Many of the Company's subsidiaries, on occasion, purchase and sell products in currencies other than
their functional currencies. This subjects the Company to the risks associated with the Öuctuations of foreign
currency exchange rates. The Company reduces this risk by utilizing natural hedging (oÅsetting receivables
and payables) as well as by creating oÅsetting positions through the use of derivative Ñnancial instruments,
primarily forward foreign exchange contracts with maturities of less than sixty days. The Company adjusts all
foreign denominated balances and any outstanding foreign exchange contracts to fair market value through the
consolidated statements of operations. Therefore, the market risk related to the foreign exchange contracts is
oÅset by the changes in valuation of the underlying items being hedged. The asset or liability representing the
fair value of foreign exchange contracts is classiÑed in the captions ""other current assets'' or ""accrued
expenses and other,'' as applicable, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
The Company has also entered into hedge transactions that convert certain Ñxed rate debt to variable rate
debt, eÅectively hedging the change in fair value of the Ñxed rate debt resulting from Öuctuations in interest
rates. Those fair value hedges and the hedged debt are adjusted to current market values through interest
expense (see Note 7).
The Company does not hedge its investment in its foreign operations nor its Öoating interest rate
exposures. The Company does not enter into derivative Ñnancial instruments for trading or speculative
purposes and monitors the Ñnancial stability and credit standing of its counter parties.
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Fiscal year Ì The Company operates on a ""52/53 week'' Ñscal year, which ends on the Friday closest to
June 30th. Fiscal years 2002, 2001 and 2000 all contained 52 weeks. Unless otherwise noted, all references to
the ""year 2002'' or any other ""year'' shall mean the Company's Ñscal year.
Management estimates Ì The preparation of Ñnancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
aÅect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the Ñnancial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could diÅer from those estimates.
ReclassiÑcations Ì Certain reclassiÑcations have been made to the prior years' notes to consolidated
Ñnancial statements to conform to the current year presentation.
New accounting standards Ì In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 143 (""SFAS 143''), ""Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.'' SFAS 143 addresses the
Ñnancial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets
and the associated asset retirement costs. The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 143 on June 29,
2002, the Ñrst day of the Company's Ñscal 2003, as required. The adoption of SFAS 143 will not have a
material eÅect on the Company's consolidated Ñnancial statements.
In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 (""SFAS 144''),
""Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.'' SFAS 144 addresses the Ñnancial
accounting and reporting for the impairment of long-lived assets and for long-lived assets to be disposed of.
SFAS 144 also amends and supercedes previous guidance on reporting for discontinued operations. The
Company adopted SFAS 144 on June 29, 2002 as required. The adoption of SFAS 144 will not have a
material eÅect on the Company's consolidated Ñnancial statements.
In June 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146 (""SFAS 146''),
""Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.'' SFAS 146 addresses Ñnancial accounting
and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities and supercedes the former guidance of
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3 (""EITF 94-3''), ""Liability Recognition for Certain Employee
Termination BeneÑts and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).'' SFAS 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized
and measured when the liability is incurred (as opposed to upon the date of an entity's commitment to a plan
as provided for under EITF 94-3). The provisions of SFAS 146 will be eÅective for any exit or disposal
activities that are initiated by the Company after December 31, 2002.
2.

Acquisitions and dispositions:

During the last three Ñscal years, the Company has completed sixteen acquisitions Ì six in North
America, six in Europe, three in the Asia/PaciÑc region and one in the Middle East. One of the acquisitions
was completed in 2002, Ñve of the acquisitions were completed in 2001 and ten were completed during 2000.
All acquisitions, except for the acquisition of Kent discussed below and in Note 1, have been accounted for as
purchases.
The Company completed the acquisition of Gamma Optronik AB in March 2002. In addition, during
2002 the Company acquired the remaining 20% interest in Kopp Electronics Limited. The acquisitions
completed in 2001 consisted of Kent, Sunrise Technology Ltd., RDT Technologies Ltd., certain European
operations of the VEBA Electronics Group (consisting of EBV, WBC, Atlas Logistics and RKE Systems,
collectively, the ""VEBA Group'') and Savoir Technology Group, Inc. The acquisitions completed in 2000
consisted of Marshall Industries, Integrand Solutions, Eurotronics B.V., the SEI Macro Group, PCD Italia
S.r.l. and Matica S.p.A. (counted as a single acquisition), Cosco Electronics/Jung Kwang, the remaining 60%
of SEI Nordstar S.p.A and Orange Coast Data Comm, Inc., Orange Coast Cabling, Inc. and Go Telecomm,
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Inc. (collectively known as the ""Orange Coast Companies'' and counted as a single acquisition), Advacom,
Inc. and Sabre-Data, Inc. (the Orange Coast Companies, Advacom and Sabre-Data were acquired by Kent
prior to its acquisition by Avnet).
The acquisition of Gamma Optronik AB, as well as certain contingent purchase price payments
associated with businesses acquired in prior Ñscal years (principally, Sunrise Technology Ltd., RDT
Technologies Ltd., PCD Italia S.r.l. and Matica S.p.A. and Savoir Technology Group, Inc.) and the
acquisition of the remaining 20% interest in Kopp Electronics Limited, required a total investment of
$31,547,000 (net of $1,462,000 of cash on the books of the acquired company), all of which was paid in cash.
Gamma Optronik AB had sales totaling approximately $7,534,000 during its Ñscal year immediately preceding
its acquisition. The historical results of operations of the acquired company would not have had a material
eÅect on the Company's consolidated results of operations and therefore no unaudited pro forma results are
presented herein.
The purchase price for the acquisition of Gamma Optronik AB, accounted for as a purchase, has been
allocated, on a preliminary basis, to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon estimated fair
values as of the acquisition date and are subject to adjustment when additional information concerning asset
and liability valuations are Ñnalized.
Excluding the acquisition of Kent (which was accounted for as a ""pooling-of-interests''), the acquisitions
completed during 2001 required a total investment of $866,268,000 (net of $74,423,000 of cash on the books
of the companies acquired), of which $779,788,000 was paid in cash (excluding $32,200,000 to pay oÅ preexisting debt), $111,065,000 was paid in Avnet stock and $714,000 was paid in Avnet stock options (net of
related tax beneÑts of $454,000), less a receivable of $25,299,000 for income tax credits related to the
acquisition of the VEBA Group. In addition, the Company paid $79,063,000 of Kent acquisition-related costs,
consisting primarily of change-in-control and other executive beneÑt-related payments and professional fees
for investment banking, legal and accounting services rendered to both Avnet and Kent. In the aggregate, the
operations acquired during 2001, excluding Kent, had sales totaling approximately $2,887,000,000 during the
Ñscal year of each such operation immediately preceding its acquisition. The historical results of operations of
the companies other than Kent that were acquired during 2001 would not have had a material eÅect on the
Company's results of operations and therefore no unaudited pro forma results are presented herein. The
Company also sold certain small non-core operations during 2001, the impact of which was not material.
Subsequent to 2002, the Company and the seller of the VEBA Group resolved certain remaining
purchase price contingencies related to this acquisition, resulting in a refund to Avnet of a portion of the
amount paid at closing totaling approximately $6,486,000. This refunded purchase price will be recorded in the
Company's 2003 consolidated statement of operations.
As discussed in Note 1, the accompanying consolidated Ñnancial statements and notes have been restated
to reÖect the acquisition of Kent, which was accounted for as a ""pooling-of-interests.'' Each share of Kent
common stock was converted into 0.87 shares of Avnet common stock. A total of approximately 25.3 million
Avnet common shares were issued for the outstanding stock of Kent and an additional 1.7 million shares have
been reserved for issuance upon the exercise of outstanding warrants and stock options assumed in the
transaction.
Kent's results of operations for the period from July 1, 2000 to June 8, 2001 and for its Ñscal year ended
April 1, 2000 have been combined with Avnet's results of operations for the years ended June 29, 2001 and
June 30, 2000, respectively. In addition, Kent's balance sheet as of April 1, 2000 has been combined with
Avnet's balance sheet as of June 30, 2000. Therefore, an adjustment was made to retained earnings to include
$8,819,000 of net income for Kent for the three months ended June 30, 2000 as these earnings were not
included in any of the statements of operations otherwise presented. For the same three months, Kent's sales
of $223,313,000 and Kent's cash Öows (used for) provided from operating, Ñnancing and investing activities of
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($26,644,000), $1,443,000 and $8,788,000, respectively, have been excluded from the consolidated statements
of operations and cash Öows, respectively. The restated Ñnancial information includes certain reclassiÑcations
to conform Kent's Ñnancial statement presentation to that of Avnet. Intercompany transactions between the
combined companies are not material in any of the periods presented. The combination of the two entities in
this document for periods prior to the acquisition did not give eÅect to any synergies that the Company has
realized from the combined operations since completing the acquisition.
The following table is a reconciliation of the results of operations of the previously separate Avnet and
Kent companies to reported combined results of operations for the most recent interim period preceding the
acquisition, as well as the year ended June 30, 2000:

Nine months ended March 30, 2001
Sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Year ended June 30, 2000
Sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Avnet Before
Pooling

Kent Before
Pooling
(Thousands)

Avnet As
Restated

$9,557,204
205,596
205,596

$719,051
25,536
45,952

$10,276,255
231,132
251,548

9,172,205
145,141
145,141

742,837
17,423
18,251

9,915,042
162,564
163,392

The acquisitions completed during 2000 required a total investment of $1,039,506,000 (net of $1,570,000
of cash on the books of the companies acquired), of which $675,030,000 was paid in cash, $351,877,000 in
Avnet stock, $11,745,000 in Avnet stock options ($6,985,000 net of related tax beneÑts) and amounts payable
at June 30, 2000 of $854,000. In the aggregate, the operations acquired during 2000 had sales totaling
approximately $2,852,000,000 during the Ñscal year of each such operation immediately preceding its
acquisition.
The following unaudited pro forma results reÖect the acquisition of Marshall Industries (which occurred
during 2000) as if it occurred on July 3, 1999, the Ñrst day of the Company's 2000 Ñscal year and does not
purport to present what actual results would have been had the acquisition, in fact, occurred at that date or to
project results for any future period:
Year Ended
June 30, 2000
(Thousands, except
per share amounts)

Sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income from continuing operations before income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income from continuing operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Diluted net earnings per shareÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$10,477,752
296,688
169,610
170,438
1.51
1.52

The unaudited pro forma results shown above include the special charges referred to in Note 17. In
addition, the unaudited pro forma results shown above exclude any beneÑts that resulted from the acquisition
due to synergies that were derived from the elimination of any duplicated costs. The historical results of
operations of other companies acquired during 2000 would not have had a material eÅect on the Company's
results of operations in that year and therefore no unaudited pro forma results are presented herein.
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Disposition of discontinued operations:
On October 10, 2000, the Company sold K*TEC Electronics Corporation (""K*TEC''), its contract
manufacturing operation, for $237,200,000, consisting of $175,000,000 in cash, a $50,000,000 senior secured
note which was redeemed on January 26, 2001 and a $12,200,000 unsecured note which was settled during
2002. A gain on the sale of K*TEC of approximately $21,500,000 pre-tax, $12,889,000 after-tax, or $0.11 per
diluted share, was recorded in 2001. The net assets and operations of K*TEC are reÖected as discontinued
operations in the accompanying consolidated Ñnancial statements. Corporate and shared general and
administrative costs of the Company were not allocated to discontinued operations. The net assets and results
of operations of K*TEC were not material in the years presented and therefore the condensed Ñnancial
information of the discontinued operations has not been presented herein.
3.

Accounts receivable securitization:

In June 2001, the Company entered into a Ñve-year accounts receivable securitization program (the
""Program'') with a Ñnancial institution. The Program agreement was amended in February 2002 to include
participation by a second Ñnancial institution. The Program allows the Company to sell, on a revolving basis,
an undivided interest in up to $350,000,000 in eligible U.S. receivables while retaining a subordinated interest
in a portion of the receivables. The eligible receivables are sold without legal recourse to third party conduits
through a wholly owned bankruptcy-remote special purpose entity that is consolidated for Ñnancial reporting
purposes. The Company continues servicing the sold receivables and charges the third party conduits a
monthly servicing fee at market rates; accordingly, no servicing asset or liability has been recorded. Cash
received from the Program has been used primarily to pay down outstanding external Ñnancing.
The Program qualiÑes for sale treatment under SFAS 140. As of June 28, 2002 and June 29, 2001, the
outstanding balance of securitized accounts receivable held by the third party conduits totaled $324,570,000
and $513,138,000, respectively, of which the Company's subordinated retained interest was $124,570,000 and
$163,138,000, respectively. Accordingly, $200,000,000 and $350,000,000 of accounts receivable balances, net
of applicable allowances, were removed from the consolidated balance sheets at June 28, 2002 and June 29,
2001, respectively, with those funds being used to reduce outstanding debt. Expenses associated with the
Program totaled $10,130,000 and $3,896,000 in the years ended June 28, 2002 and June 29, 2001, respectively.
In 2002, $8,511,000 of these expenses related primarily to the loss on sale of receivables and discount on
retained interests, net of the related servicing revenues, are recorded in interest expense in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations with the remainder, representing program and facility fees and
professional fees associated with the Program, recorded to selling, general and administrative expenses. The
entire 2001 charge is included in selling, general and administrative expenses.
The Company measures the fair value of its retained interests at the time of a securitization and
throughout the term of the Program using a present value model incorporating two key assumptions: (1) a
weighted average life of 45 days and (2) a discount rate of 6.75% per annum. At June 28, 2002, a 10 and
20 percent adverse change in the assumed weighted average life or the assumed discount rate would not have a
material impact on the Company's Ñnancial position or results of operations.
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4.

Comprehensive income (loss):

The following table illustrates the cumulative balances of comprehensive income (loss) items at June 28,
2002, June 29, 2001 and June 30, 2000:
June 28,
2002

Cumulative translation adjustments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative valuation adjustments, netÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative minimum pension liability adjustments, net ÏÏÏÏÏ
Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

June 29,
2001
(Thousands)

June 30,
2000

$ 44,862
Ì
(17,050)

$(56,297)
Ì
Ì

$(54,582)
2,293
Ì

$ 27,812

$(56,297)

$(52,289)

During 2001, the Company sold substantially all of its marketable securities. Therefore, the previously
recorded valuation adjustment was classiÑed to the consolidated statement of operations as part of the realized
gains and losses recorded during the year ended June 29, 2001.
5.

Property, plant and equipment, net:
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost and consist of the following:
June 28,
June 29,
2002
2001
(Thousands)

Land ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Buildings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Machinery, Ñxtures and equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Leasehold improvements ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Less Ì accumulated depreciation and amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

8,882
75,481
592,526
35,328

$ 11,580
70,514
633,295
29,245

712,217
362,293

744,634
327,475

$349,924

$417,159

Depreciation and amortization expense related to property, plant and equipment was $93,121,000,
$74,342,000 and $59,809,000 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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6.

Goodwill and impairment:

The amortization of goodwill was suspended eÅective on June 30, 2001, the date the Company early
adopted the provisions of SFAS 142. The following table presents the pro forma Ñnancial results for 2001 and
2000, respectively, on a basis consistent with the new accounting principle applied in 2002:
Years Ended
June 28,
June 29,
June 30,
2002
2001
2000
(Thousands, except per share data)

Income (loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Add back goodwill amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ (84,436)
Ì

$
97
33,117

$162,564
21,858

Income (loss) from continuing operations, as adjusted ÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income from discontinued operations, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(84,436)
Ì

33,214
15,305

184,422
828

Income (loss) before cumulative eÅect of change in
accounting principle, as adjustedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of change in accounting principle ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(84,436)
(580,495)

48,519
Ì

185,250
Ì

Net income (loss), as adjusted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(664,931)

$48,519

$185,250

Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations, as adjusted ÏÏÏ
Earnings from discontinued operations, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

$

$

Earnings (loss) before cumulative eÅect of change in
accounting principle, as adjustedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of change in accounting principle ÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(0.71)
Ì
(0.71)
(4.90)

0.28
0.13
0.41
Ì

1.73
0.01
1.74
Ì

Net earnings (loss), as adjusted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

(5.61)

$

0.41

$

1.74

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations, as adjusted ÏÏÏ
Earnings from discontinued operations, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

(0.71)
Ì

$

0.28
0.13

$

1.70
0.01

Earnings (loss) before cumulative eÅect of change in
accounting principle, as adjustedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of change in accounting principle ÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net earnings (loss), as adjusted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(0.71)
(4.90)
$

(5.61)

0.41
Ì
$

0.41

1.71
Ì
$

1.71

The carrying amount of goodwill upon adoption of SFAS 142 was $1,404,863,000, net of accumulated
amortization through that date of $120,127,000. There have been no changes in this carrying amount during
the year ended June 28, 2002 except for the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates on goodwill
denominated in currencies other than U.S. dollars and additional expenditures as discussed in Note 15
(included in ""other'' in the table below), as well as the transition impairment charge from the adoption of
SFAS 142.
Prior to the adoption of SFAS 142, the Company evaluated the carrying value of its goodwill for
impairment using a future undiscounted cash Öow model. Under the transitional provisions of SFAS 142, the
Company identiÑed and evaluated its reporting units for impairment of goodwill as of June 30, 2001 using a
combination of present value and multiple of earnings valuation techniques. The carrying amounts of certain
reporting units exceeded their fair values at the date of adoption. As a result, the Company recorded an
impairment charge of $580,495,000, which was recorded as a cumulative eÅect of a change in accounting
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principle in the Ñrst quarter of 2002 and is reÖected in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations
for the year ended June 28, 2002.
The magnitude of the impairment charge was signiÑcantly impacted by the timing of the eÅective date of
when the fair value analysis was performed and the designation of the reporting unit structure. Since the
Company adopted SFAS 142 on June 30, 2001, the fair value analysis was required to be completed as of that
date. Due to the diÇcult business and economic conditions at that date, which severely impacted the market
sectors in which the Company operates, and the uncertainty as to when such conditions would materially
improve, the fair value of the Company's businesses was signiÑcantly less than it might have been at other
times. In other words, in a cyclical business, the timing of a valuation such as this may be an important factor
in the outcome of the valuation exercise. The reporting units with the most signiÑcant impairment of goodwill
are in Europe where the Company has not yet generated an acceptable level of proÑts and cash Öows. In
addition, the deÑned reporting unit structure has resulted in an impairment of goodwill which includes
goodwill related to certain recent acquisitions that otherwise might not have been impaired.
The following table presents the carrying amount of goodwill, by reportable segment, for the periods
presented:
Electronics
Marketing

7.

Carrying value at June 29, 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of change in accounting
principle ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$1,139,430

Carrying value at June 28, 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 591,398

(563,492)
15,460

Computer
Applied
Marketing
Computing
(Thousands)

$265,433

$

(17,003)
4,769
$253,199

Ì
Ì
Ì

$

Ì

Total

$1,404,863
(580,495)
20,229
$ 844,597

External Ñnancing:
Short-term debt consists of the following:
June 28,
June 29,
2002
2001
(Thousands)

Bank credit facilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
U.S. commercial paperÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
4.5% Convertible Notes due 2004 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Floating Rate Notes due October 17, 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other debt due within one yearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$54,158
Ì
3,031
Ì
2,120

$ 643,200
122,201
207,000
325,000
4,728

Short-term debtÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$59,309

$1,302,129

Bank credit facilities consist of various committed and uncommitted lines of credit with Ñnancial
institutions utilized primarily to support the working capital requirements of foreign operations. The weighted
average interest rates on the bank credit facilities at June 28, 2002 and June 29, 2001 were 3.4% and 4.6%,
respectively. The weighted average interest rate on U.S. commercial paper was 4.3% at June 29, 2001.
As of its acquisition of Kent on June 8, 2001, Avnet assumed Kent's 4.5% Convertible Notes due 2004
(the ""Notes''). During the Ñrst quarter of 2002, virtually all holders of the Notes exercised their ""put'' options
by selling the Notes back to the Company. As of June 28, 2002, $3,031,000 in Notes remain outstanding. The
Company has the right to redeem all remaining Notes outstanding upon 30-day prior notice.
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The Floating Rate Notes were paid down upon their maturity in October 2001. The Floating Rate Notes
bore interest at an annual rate equal to three-month LIBOR, reset quarterly, plus 87.5 basis points (0.875%).
Long-term debt consists of the following:
June 28,
June 29,
2002
2001
(Thousands)

6.45% Notes due August 15, 2003 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
8.20% Notes due October 17, 2003 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
67/8% Notes due March 15, 2004ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
77/8% Notes due February 15, 2005ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
8.00% Notes due November 15, 2006 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Bank credit facilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Belgian commercial paper ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other long-term debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 200,000
250,000
100,000
360,000
400,000
178,410
63,964
6,419

$200,000
250,000
100,000
360,000
Ì
Ì
Ì
9,493

Subtotal ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Fair value adjustment for hedged 8.00% Notes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

1,558,793
7,043

919,493
Ì

Long-term debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$1,565,836

$919,493

On November 16, 2001, the Company issued $400,000,000 of 8.00% Notes due November 15, 2006 (the
""8% Notes''). The net proceeds received by the Company from the sale of the 8% Notes, approximately
$394,328,000 after deduction of the underwriting discounts and other expenses associated with the sale, were
used to repay commercial paper and other short-term indebtedness.
The Company entered into two interest rate swaps (the ""Swaps'') with a total notional amount of
$400,000,000 in order to hedge the change in fair value of the 8% Notes related to Öuctuations in interest rates.
These contracts are classiÑed as fair value hedges and mature in November 2006. The Swaps modify the
Company's interest rate exposure by eÅectively converting the 8.0% Ñxed rate on the 8% Notes to a Öoating
rate based on three-month U.S. LIBOR plus a spread through their maturities (4.8% at June 28, 2002). The
hedged Ñxed rate debt and the Swaps are adjusted to current market values through interest expense in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The Company accounts for the hedges using the
shortcut method as deÑned under SFAS 133 and the hedges were perfectly eÅective during the year and at
year-end. Therefore, the market value adjustments for the hedged debt and the Swaps directly oÅset one
another. The fair value of the Swaps at June 28, 2002 was $7,043,000 and is included in other long-term assets
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Additionally, included in long-term debt is a comparable fair
value adjustment increasing the total liability by $7,043,000.
On October 25, 2001, the Company entered into agreements providing $1.0 billion in Ñnancing with a
syndicate of banks led by Bank of America in order to replace the then existing $1.25 billion 364-day credit
facility and the $700,000,000 Ñve-year credit facility. This new bank Ñnancing is divided into three separate
credit facilities: a multi-year facility, a 364-day facility and a term loan facility. The multi-year facility is a
three-year revolving, multi-currency facility that matures on October 25, 2004 and provides up to
$428,750,000 in Ñnancing. The 364-day facility is a revolving, multi-currency facility that matures on
October 23, 2002 and provides up to $488,750,000 in Ñnancing. Management does not intend to renew this
facility upon its expiration. The term loan facility, which matured on November 16, 2001, was a U.S. dollar
facility that provided up to $82,500,000 in Ñnancing. The Company may select from various interest rate
options and maturities under these facilities, although the Company intends to use a signiÑcant amount as a
back up for its commercial paper program pursuant to which the Company is authorized to issue short-term
notes for current operational business requirements. The bank Ñnancing contains certain Ñnancial and non58
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Ñnancial covenants. The Company was in compliance with all of the covenant requirements as of June 28,
2002.
The bank credit facilities consist primarily of foreign currency borrowings under the three-year revolving
credit facility described above with a weighted average interest rate of 4.4% at June 28, 2002. The weighted
average interest rate on the Belgian commercial paper program at June 28, 2002 was 3.7%. The Company
classiÑes borrowings under its Belgian commercial paper program as long-term as it has the intent and ability
to reÑnance such borrowings under its long-term borrowing facilities.
The Company had borrowing capacity of approximately $907,750,000 at June 28, 2002 under its bank
Ñnancing and credit facilities, the asset securitization program (see Note 3) and the Belgian commercial paper
program. This borrowing capacity includes the $488,750,000 in Ñnancing under the 364-day facility which will
terminate by October 23, 2002. The Company also has $16,141,000 in letters of credit issued at June 28, 2002,
substantially all of which are issued under the multi-year facility. Although these issued letters of credit are
not actually drawn upon at June 28, 2002, they utilize borrowing capacity under the Company's credit facility
and are considered in the overall borrowing capacity noted above.
Aggregate debt maturities for 2003 through 2007 and thereafter are as follows (in thousands):
2003 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2004 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2005 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2006 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2007 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Thereafter ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

59,309
551,161
602,801
789
400,000
4,042

$1,618,102

At June 28, 2002, the fair value of the 4.5% Convertible Notes due 2004, the 6.45% Notes due August 15,
2003, the 8.20% Notes due October 17, 2003, the 67/8% Notes due March 15, 2004 and the 77/8% Notes due
February 15, 2005 are $3,176,000, $199,208,000, $254,163,000, $100,081,000 and $367,809,000, respectively.
8.

Accrued expenses and other:
Accrued expenses and other consist of the following:
June 28,
June 29,
2002
2001
(Thousands)

Payroll, commissions and related ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
InsuranceÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Dividends payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$117,221
14,654
14,983
Ì
179,435

$122,979
18,647
4,543
8,840
259,731

$326,293

$414,740

The Company had decided to more eÅectively deploy its cash to fuel future earnings growth and deliver
increased shareholder value by discontinuing the payment of its cash dividend eÅective after the dividend
payment that was made on January 2, 2002.
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9.

Income taxes:

The components of the provision for (beneÑt from) income taxes are indicated in the table below. The
future tax provision (beneÑt) for deferred income taxes results from temporary diÅerences arising principally
from inventory valuation, accounts receivable valuation, net operating losses related to foreign operations,
certain accruals and depreciation, net of any changes to the valuation allowance.
June 28,
2002

Years Ended
June 29,
2001
(Thousands)

June 30,
2000

Current:
Federal ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
State and localÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Foreign ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(77,608)
(10,396)
40,799

$ 93,646
15,271
57,897

$110,431
24,243
26,567

Total current taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(47,205)

166,814

161,241

Deferred:
Federal ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
State and localÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Foreign ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

25,595
6,193
(20,960)

(31,491)
(6,047)
(42,121)

(11,615)
(2,640)
(25,904)

Total deferred taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

10,828

(79,659)

(40,159)

Provision for (beneÑt from) income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(36,377)

$ 87,155

$121,082

A reconciliation between the federal statutory tax rate and the eÅective tax rate is as follows:
June 28,
2002

Years Ended
June 29,
June 30,
2001
2000

Federal statutory rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
State and local income taxes, net of federal beneÑt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Amortization and disposition of goodwill ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Non-deductible costs related to the acquisition of Kent (Note 17)
Impairment of investments in unconsolidated entities (Note 17) ÏÏÏ
Foreign tax rates, including impact of valuation allowancesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(35.0)%
(2.8)
Ì
Ì
10.2
(3.3)
0.8

35.0%
8.9
11.4
36.8
Ì
7.9
(0.1)

35.0%
5.0
2.3
Ì
Ì
0.2
0.2

EÅective tax rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(30.1)%

99.9%

42.7%

Foreign tax rates generally consist of the impact of the diÅerence between foreign and federal tax rates
applied to foreign income (losses) and also include the impact of valuation allowances placed against the
Company's otherwise realizable foreign loss carry-forwards. The additional valuation allowance recorded
during 2002 is substantially oÅset by a tax beneÑt related to certain foreign losses that are deductible in the
United States. The Company determines its valuation allowance through an evaluation of relevant factors used
to assess the likelihood of recoverability of the Company's deferred tax assets.
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The signiÑcant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities, included primarily in other long-term
assets on the consolidated balance sheets, are as follows:
June 28,
June 29,
2002
2001
(Thousands)

Deferred tax assets:
Inventory valuation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accounts receivable valuationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Foreign tax loss carry-forwardsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Various accrued liabilities and other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

25,900
28,299
188,808
80,346

$ 25,053
54,250
117,942
66,920

323,353
(120,671)

264,165
(49,783)

202,682

214,382

Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipmentÏÏÏÏÏÏ

12,474

15,579

Net deferred tax assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 190,208

$198,803

Less Ì valuation allowance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

As of June 28, 2002, the Company has foreign net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$476,540,000, certain of which begin to expire in 2003.
10.

Pension and proÑt sharing plans:

The Company's noncontributory deÑned beneÑt pension plan (the ""Plan'') and its 401(k) plan cover
substantially all domestic employees. Kent also had a 401(k) plan covering all of its eligible employees which,
in September 2001, was merged into the Avnet 401(k) plan. The expense relating to the 401(k) plans for
2002, 2001 and 2000 amounted to $23,000 (due to the lack of proÑtability during 2002, the Company did not
make any matching contributions during the year), $4,281,000 and $2,632,000, respectively. The noncontributory pension plan provides deÑned beneÑts pursuant to a cash balance feature whereby a participant
accumulates a beneÑt based upon a percentage of current salary, which varies with age, and interest credits. At
June 28, 2002, the market value of the pension plan assets was $141,130,000. These assets were comprised of
common stocks (58%), corporate debt obligations (27%), U.S. Government securities (13%) and money
market funds (2%).
The following tables outline changes in beneÑt obligations, plan assets and the funded status of the Plan
as of the end of 2002 and 2001:
June 28,
June 29,
2002
2001
(Thousands)

Changes in beneÑt obligations:
BeneÑt obligations at beginning of yearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Service costÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Interest cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Actuarial (gain) loss ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
BeneÑts paid ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
BeneÑt obligations at end of yearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
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$167,737
11,647
12,043
(212)
(15,313)

$146,824
10,441
11,731
9,745
(11,004)

$175,902

$167,737
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June 28,
June 29,
2002
2001
(Thousands)

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of yearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Actual return on plan assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
BeneÑts paid ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Contributions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Fair value of plan assets at end of yearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Information on funded status of plan and the amount recognized:
Funded status of the plan ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Unamortized prior service credit ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$171,187
(14,744)
(15,313)
Ì

$201,721
(19,530)
(11,004)
Ì

$141,130

$171,187

$(34,772) $ 3,450
29,535
(2,040)
(1,330)
(1,651)

Accrued pension cost recognized in the consolidated balance sheetsÏÏÏÏ

$ (6,567)

$

(241)

Pre-tax additional minimum pension liability recognized in the
consolidated balance sheetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(28,205)

$

Ì

Weighted average assumptions used to calculate actuarial present values of beneÑt obligations are as
follows:
2002

Discount rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Expected return on plan assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

2001

7.50% 8.25%
9.50
9.50

Under the cash balance plan, service costs are based solely on current year salary levels; therefore,
projected salary increases are not taken into account.
Components of net periodic pension costs during the last three years are as follows:
June 28,
2002

Years Ended
June 29,
2001
(Thousands)

June 30,
2000

Service cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Interest cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Expected return on plan assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Amortization of transition assetÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Recognized net actuarial (gain) loss ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Amortization of prior service credit ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 11,647
12,043
(17,043)
Ì
Ì
(321)

$ 10,441
11,731
(16,198)
(1,980)
(295)
(321)

$

Net periodic pension costÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

$

$

6,326

3,378

8,588
10,515
(14,668)
(2,830)
Ì
(321)
1,284

Not included in the above tabulations are pension plans of certain non-U.S. subsidiaries, which are not
material.
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11.

Long-term leases:

The Company leases many of its operating facilities and is also committed under lease agreements for
transportation and operating equipment. Rent expense charged to operations during the last three years is as
follows:

Buildings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

June 28,
2002

Years Ended
June 29,
2001
(Thousands)

June 30,
2000

$43,506
5,864

$39,319
6,636

$33,944
5,846

$49,370

$45,955

$39,790

The aggregate future minimum operating lease commitments, principally for buildings, in 2003 through
2007 and thereafter (through 2019), are as follows (in thousands):

12.

2003 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2004 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2005 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2006 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2007 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Thereafter ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 50,977
43,331
32,198
24,261
18,916
51,019

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$220,702

Stock-based compensation plans:

Stock option plans:
The Company has four stock option plans with shares still available for grant:
Plan
1995

Minimum exercise price as a
percentage of fair market value
at date of grant ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Plan termination dateÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Shares available for grant at
June 28, 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

1996

85%
100%
August 31, 2005 December 31, 2006
98,500

159,250

1997

1999

85%
November 19, 2007

85%
November 21, 2009

95,150

2,148,675

As applicable, the excess of the fair market value at the date of grant over the exercise price is considered
deferred compensation, which is amortized and charged against income as it is earned. The maximum term of
options granted under any of the plans is 10 years from the date of grant.
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The following is a summary of the changes in outstanding options for the three years ended June 28,
2002:
2002

2001
Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Shares

Outstanding at beginning of
yearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10,125,378
Granted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
1,739,675
Exercised ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1,478,805)
Canceled or expired ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(830,550)

$23.20
18.72
17.56
24.78

Shares

9,140,373
2,285,404
(996,849)
(303,550)

2000
Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Shares

$20.55
29.89
14.87
22.07

8,473,388
3,327,700
(2,240,867)
(419,848)

$20.53
16.07
13.99
19.51

Outstanding at end of year ÏÏÏÏ

9,555,698

23.13

10,125,378

23.20

9,140,373

20.55

Exercisable at end of year ÏÏÏÏÏ

5,784,988

24.03

6,027,938

22.92

4,300,736

21.26

The options granted in 2001 and 2000 shown above include 464,516 and 1,388,474 options granted to
former employees of Savoir and Marshall, respectively, as substitutes for their Savoir and Marshall options
outstanding on the date of the respective acquisition (see Note 2). These options are subject to the terms of
the various Savoir and Marshall plans assumed by Avnet as part of the acquisitions. Of these options,
354,422 options related to Savoir and 14,360 options related to Marshall had not yet been exercised at June 28,
2002.
The following information relates to options outstanding at June 28, 2002:
Options Outstanding
Range of
Exercise
Prices

Number
of Options
Outstanding

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Under $15
$15.00 - 20.00
20.00 - 25.00
25.00 - 30.00
30.00 - 35.00
35.00 - 60.00

344,313
3,449,021
2,757,216
1,633,418
1,088,908
282,822

$12.32
17.72
22.79
27.99
31.68
45.22

Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Life

41
83
66
99
64
59

9,555,698

Months
Months
Months
Months
Months
Months

Number
of Options

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

294,636
1,632,309
2,112,847
439,342
1,032,381
273,473

$12.41
17.87
23.07
28.08
31.66
45.43

5,784,988

Employee stock purchase plan:
In October 1995, the Company implemented the Avnet Employee Stock Purchase Plan (""ESPP'').
Under the terms of the ESPP, eligible employees of the Company are oÅered options to purchase shares of
Avnet common stock at a price equal to 85% of the fair market value on the Ñrst or last day, whichever is
lower, of each monthly oÅering period. A total of 3,000,000 shares of Avnet common stock have been reserved
for sale under the ESPP, including an additional 1,000,000 shares reserved for the ESPP in September 2001.
At June 28, 2002, employees had purchased 2,226,756 shares and 773,244 shares were still available for
purchase under the ESPP.
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Incentive stock:
The Company has an Incentive Stock Program wherein a total of 157,890 shares were still available for
award at June 28, 2002 based upon operating achievements. Delivery of incentive shares is spread equally over
a four-year period and is subject to the employee's continuance in the Company's employ. As of June 28,
2002, 149,302 shares previously awarded have not yet been delivered. The program will terminate on
December 31, 2004.
Other stock-based compensation information:
In February 2000, the Company issued Ñve-year warrants at the exercise price of $26.22 for the purchase
of 261,000 shares of the Company's common stock in conjunction with the award from a customer of a threeyear manufacturing contract. As of the eÅective date of the sale of K*TEC, the warrants were immediately
vested. The estimated fair value of the warrants was recorded in additional paid-in capital and the related
expense was recorded against the gain on the sale of K*TEC.
At June 28, 2002, there were 13,137,709 common shares reserved for stock options (including the ESPP)
and incentive stock programs.
Pro forma information:
The Company follows Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (""APB 25''), ""Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees,'' in accounting for its stock-based compensation plans. In applying APB 25, no expense
was recognized for options granted under the various stock option plans (except in the rare circumstances
where the exercise price was less than the fair market value on the date of the grant) nor was expense
recognized in connection with shares purchased by employees under the ESPP. Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,'' requires disclosure of pro
forma net income as if a fair value-based method of measuring stock-based compensation had been applied.
Reported and pro forma net income (loss) and diluted earnings (loss) per share are as follows:
Years Ended
June 28,
June 29,
June 30,
2002
2001
2000
(Thousands, except per share amounts)

Net income (loss):
As reported ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Pro formaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
As reported ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Pro formaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
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$(664,931) $15,402
(675,390)
6,950

$163,392
153,805

$

$

(5.61) $
(5.70)

0.13
0.06

1.51
1.42
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The fair value of the stock options granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. The weighted average assumptions used and the weighted average estimated fair values
of an option granted are as follows:
Years Ended
June 29,
June 30,
2001
2000

June 28,
2002

Expected life (years) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Risk-free interest rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
VolatilityÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Dividend yield ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Weighted average fair value ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
13.

6.0
4.3%
40.7%
0.4%
$8.34

5.5
6.0%
37.0%
1.1%
$11.33

4.9
5.7%
33.0%
1.7%
$8.05

Contingent liabilities:

From time to time, the Company may become liable with respect to pending and threatened litigation,
taxes and environmental and other matters. The Company has been designated a potentially responsible party
or has had other claims made against it in connection with environmental clean-ups at several sites. Based
upon the information known to date, the Company believes that it has appropriately reserved for its share of
the costs of the clean-ups and it is not anticipated that any contingent matters will have a material adverse
impact on the Company's Ñnancial condition, liquidity or results of operations.
14.

Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed based on the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding and excludes any potential dilution. Diluted earnings (loss) per share reÖects potential dilution
from the exercise or conversion of securities into common stock.
Years Ended
June 28,
June 29,
June 30,
2002
2001
2000
(Thousands, except per share data)

Numerator:
Income (loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income from discontinued operations, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ (84,436)
Ì

Income (loss) before cumulative eÅect of change in
accounting principle ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of change in accounting principle ÏÏÏÏÏ
Net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Denominator:
Weighted average common shares for basic earnings
(loss) per share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net eÅect of dilutive stock options and restricted stock
awards ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Weighted average common shares for diluted earnings
(loss) per share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
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$

97
15,305

$162,564
828

(84,436)
(580,495)

15,402
Ì

163,392
Ì

$(664,931)

$ 15,402

$163,392

118,561

117,263

106,627

Ì

1,552

1,630

118,561

118,815

108,257
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Years Ended
June 28,
June 29,
June 30,
2002
2001
2000
(Thousands, except per share data)

Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Discontinued operations, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of change in accounting principle ÏÏÏÏÏ
Net earnings (loss) per basic share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Discontinued operations, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of change in accounting principle ÏÏÏÏÏ
Net earnings (loss) per diluted share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

(0.71)
Ì
(4.90)

$

Ì
0.13
Ì

$

1.52
0.01
Ì

$

(5.61)

$

0.13

$

1.53

$

(0.71)
Ì
(4.90)

$

Ì
0.13
Ì

$

1.50
0.01
Ì

$

(5.61)

$

0.13

$

1.51

The 4.5% convertible notes are excluded from the computation of earnings (loss) per share in all years
presented, as the eÅects were antidilutive. Additionally, in 2002 and 2001, respectively, the eÅect of
approximately 9,556,000 and 4,164,000 shares related to stock options and restricted stock awards is excluded
from the computation of the net eÅect of dilutive stock options and restricted stock awards shown above as the
eÅects were antidilutive. All options and awards were dilutive in 2000.
All share and per share data reÖects the two-for-one split of the Company's common stock distributed on
September 28, 2000 to shareholders of record on September 18, 2000.
15.

Additional cash Öow information:

Other non-cash and reconciling items primarily include provisions for doubtful accounts and certain noncash special charges (see Note 17).
In 2002, the Company recognized an additional minimum pension liability of $28,205,000 (see Note 10)
and the related deferred tax beneÑt of $11,155,000, which are non-cash reconciling items.
The net cash disbursed in all years in connection with acquisitions (see Note 2), as well as the net cash
collected in those years from dispositions (with the exception of the disposal of K*TEC, which is classiÑed as
discontinued operations), are reÖected as cash Öows from ""(acquisitions) dispositions of operations, net.''
During 2002, the Company also made contingent purchase price payments associated with businesses acquired
in prior Ñscal years, principally Sunrise Technology Ltd., RDT Technologies Ltd., PCD Italia S.r.l. and
Matica S.p.A. and Savoir Technology Group, Inc.
Interest and income taxes paid during the last three years were as follows:

Interest ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
16.

June 28,
2002

Years Ended
June 29,
2001
(Thousands)

June 30,
2000

$126,945
40,109

$183,236
201,578

$ 82,860
227,901

Segment information:

The Company currently consists of three major operating units: Electronics Marketing (""EM''),
Computer Marketing (""CM'') and Applied Computing (""AC''), which began operating in the Americas and
in Europe eÅective as of the beginning of the second and third quarters of 2000, respectively, and in Asia
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beginning in 2001. The results for AC in the Americas, Europe and Asia prior to those dates are included in
EM and CM as the results of the operating groups have not been restated. EM focuses on the global
distribution of, and value-added services associated with, electronics components; CM focuses on middle-tohigh-end, value-added computer products distribution and related services; and AC serves the needs of
personal computer OEMs and system integrators by providing the latest technologies such as microprocessors,
and serves the needs of embedded systems OEMs that require technical services such as product prototyping,
conÑgurations and other value-added services.

Sales:
Electronics Marketing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Computer Marketing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Applied Computing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Operating income (loss):
Electronics Marketing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Computer Marketing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Applied Computing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Corporate and special charges ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Assets:
Electronics Marketing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Computer Marketing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Applied Computing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Corporate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Capital expenditures:
Electronics Marketing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Computer Marketing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Applied Computing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Corporate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Depreciation & amortization expense:
Electronics Marketing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Computer Marketing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Applied Computing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Corporate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
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June 28,
2002

Years Ended
June 29,
2001
(Millions)

June 30,
2000

$4,841.9
2,399.2
1,679.1

$ 8,286.6
2,855.6
1,671.8

$7,105.2
2,139.4
670.4

$8,920.2

$12,814.0

$9,915.0

$

22.7
63.0
42.8
(131.5)

$

532.3
86.4
63.9
(428.9)

$ 421.7
57.9
20.5
(132.1)

$

(3.0)

$

253.7

$ 368.0

$2,452.8
637.1
513.8
1,078.2

$ 3,211.9
880.6
423.8
1,347.8

$3,338.5
839.9
226.8
1,529.2

$4,681.9

$ 5,864.1

$5,934.4

$

59.2
10.0
12.1
2.5

$

83.1
20.3
4.0
18.0

$

42.5
14.4
1.7
33.9

$

83.8

$

125.4

$

92.5

$

53.6
13.6
5.6
31.1

$

45.3
14.6
1.0
58.5

$

30.3
10.4
0.1
42.7

$ 103.9

$

119.4

$

83.5
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Sales, by geographic area, are as follows:
Americas ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
EMEA (Europe, Middle East and Africa) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Asia/PaciÑc ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Assets, by geographic area, are as follows:
Americas ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
EMEA (Europe, Middle East and Africa) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Asia/PaciÑc ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

June 28,
2002

Years Ended
June 29,
2001
(Millions)

June 30,
2000

$5,295.2
2,900.3
724.7

$ 8,746.0
3,511.6
556.4

$7,420.9
2,055.9
438.2

$8,920.2

$12,814.0

$9,915.0

$2,771.5
1,460.4
450.0

$ 3,946.0
1,532.8
385.3

$4,486.9
1,165.8
281.7

$4,681.9

$ 5,864.1

$5,934.4

The Company manages its business based upon the operating results of its three operating units before
special charges (see Note 17). In each of the three years presented above, approximate unallocated special
charges related to EM, CM and AC, respectively, were $12,811,000, $31,336,000 and $1,191,000 in 2002,
$96,912,000, $17,062,000 and $5,000,000 in 2001 and $43,119,000, $3,146,000 and $0 in 2000. The remaining
special charges in each year relate to corporate activities.
As a result of the goodwill impairment charge recorded as a cumulative eÅect of change in accounting
principle and the suspension of amortization of goodwill in accordance with SFAS 142 (see Note 6), there is a
signiÑcant decrease in the amount of assets and depreciation and amortization expense recorded at Corporate
in 2002 as compared with 2001. Beginning in 2003, the Company has allocated its remaining goodwill to the
applicable unit level in order to better evaluate and measure performance of its unit and segment operations.
Had this reclassiÑcation been recorded in 2002, the total assets by segment at June 28, 2002 would have been
$2,940,800,000, $888,200,000, $513,800,000 and $339,100,000 for EM, CM, AC and Corporate, respectively.
Similarly, the June 28, 2002 assets by geographic area would have been $2,846,700,000, $1,444,000,000 and
$391,200,000 for the Americas, EMEA and Asia/PaciÑc, respectively.
17.

Special charges:

Reorganization and integration charges:
Over the course of the past three years, the Company has recorded a number of special charges which
generally related either to charges stemming from acquisition and integration of newly acquired businesses or
the reorganization of operations in each of the three major regions of the world in which the Company
operates. During that period, the Company has also recorded other non-recurring items, generally taken in
response to business conditions at the time of the charge, including impairments recorded to certain of its
Internet-related investments.
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The following table summarizes the special charges for the past three years, including activity in the
related accrued liability and reserve accounts subsequent to initially recording the charge:
Reorganization
Charges

Balance at July 2, 1999 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2000 activity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Amounts utilized ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

Acquisition
Impairment of
Integration Costs
Investments
(Thousands)

3,321
14,586
17,907

$

Ì
31,679
23,406

$

Ì
Ì
Ì

Other

$

Ì
2,699
2,699

Total

$

3,321
48,964
44,012

Balance at June 30, 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2001 activity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Amounts utilized ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Ì
127,274
108,957

8,273
157,331
123,868

Ì
42,880
42,880

Ì
Ì
Ì

8,273
327,485
275,705

Balance at June 29, 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2002 activity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Amounts utilized ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

18,317
13,712
23,954

41,736
29,734
50,148

Ì
36,177
36,177

Ì
Ì
Ì

60,053
79,623
110,279

8,075

$ 21,322

Ì

$ 29,397

Balance at June 28, 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

$

Ì

$

Total amounts utilized in 2002, 2001 and 2000 consist of cash payments of $48,355,000, $91,681,000 and
$24,888,000, respectively and non-cash write-downs of $77,961,000, $184,024,000, and $19,124,000, respectively. Additionally, 2002 amounts utilized include $16,037,000 in cash recoveries of prior year special charges
discussed more fully below.
In the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company recorded a special charge representing a write-down in value
of certain assets acquired in the 2001 acquisition of Kent and certain other charges taken in response to
current business conditions. The special charge totaled $79,623,000 pre-tax ($21,600,000 included in cost of
sales and $58,023,000 included in operating expenses) and $62,084,000 after tax, or $0.52 per share on a
diluted basis for the fourth quarter and the year.
The Kent-related items resulted from the acquisition of Kent being accounted for using the ""pooling-ofinterests'' method of accounting for the acquisition. Under this method, items that normally would have been
reÖected as adjustments to goodwill if the purchase method of accounting could have been used were instead
recorded to the Company's consolidated statement of operations. These items amounted to $29,734,000 pretax and relate primarily to write-downs to the value of receivables considered uncollectible ($8,200,000),
excess and obsolete inventory ($21,600,000) and property, plant and equipment and non-cancelable lease
obligations ($15,971,000) acquired in the Kent acquisition, net of approximately $16,037,000 pre-tax in cash
recoveries of certain charges recorded as part of the special charges taken in the fourth quarter of 2001. The
write-downs of Kent-related assets were recorded at the earliest date that management had suÇcient
information to evaluate the recoverability of the assets in order to conclude that a write-down was necessary to
record the assets at their net realizable value.
The remaining pre-tax special charge recorded in the fourth quarter of 2002, amounting to $49,889,000,
includes an impairment charge of $36,177,000 pre-tax to write-down certain of the Company's investments in
unconsolidated Internet-related businesses to their fair market value and $13,712,000 pre-tax for severance
charges taken for workforce reductions of approximately 850 individuals announced during the fourth quarter.
The impairments recorded to the Company's investments are considered capital losses for tax purposes and are
therefore only deductible to the extent the Company has available capital gains. As there are no capital gains
to oÅset these losses currently or forecasted in the foreseeable future, the Company has generally not recorded
a tax beneÑt for these losses. The timing of the impairment charge to the investments is a function of the
timing with which Ñnancial and other information regarding these ventures typically becomes available to the
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Company. Although management evaluates these investments for potential impairment throughout the year, a
charge to record any impairment is not recorded until management possesses suÇcient information to reach a
deÑnitive conclusion as to the realizable value of the investments.
Of the special charges requiring the use of cash, $8,620,000 remains unexpended at June 28, 2002 related
primarily to remaining payments for severance, substantially all of which is scheduled to be utilized during
2003, and for contractual lease commitments, substantially all of which is expected to be utilized by the end of
2007.
In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company recorded a special charge in connection with the acquisition
and integration of Kent and for costs related to actions taken in response to business conditions and other
restructuring activity. The charge amounted to $327,485,000 pre-tax ($80,596,000 included in cost of sales
and $246,889,000 included in operating expenses) and $236,692,000 after-tax, or $2.01 per share on a diluted
basis for the fourth quarter ($1.99 per share for the year). Approximately $157,331,000 of the pre-tax charge
resulted from the acquisition of Kent, having been accounted for using the ""pooling-of-interests'' method as
discussed above. These items consisted of costs incurred in completing the acquisition including signiÑcant
change-in-control and other executive beneÑt-related payments made as a result of the acquisition
($68,343,000 pre-tax), professional fees for investment banking, legal and accounting services rendered to
both Avnet and Kent ($12,683,000 pre-tax), as well as adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed ($76,305,000 pre-tax). The adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed include
accruals for severance ($4,650,000), write-downs of receivables considered uncollectible ($7,988,000),
inventory reserves related to termination of non-strategic product lines ($20,488,000), write-downs associated
with the disposal of Ñxed assets ($25,081,000), lease terminations ($8,462,000) and other items ($9,636,000).
The balance of the pre-tax charge recorded in the fourth quarter of 2001, amounting to $170,154,000,
related to a number of actions taken to cope with market conditions and to strengthen Avnet's operations.
These actions included cost reductions associated with the reorganization of the Company's business, the
integration of recent acquisitions, as well as important cost-cutting actions taken in response to business
conditions. These special charges for the other actions the Company has taken fall into a number of categories
including severance ($28,531,000), inventory reserves related to terminations of non-strategic product lines
($9,440,000), inventory valuation adjustments for special inventory purchases to meet customer requirements
which are in excess of what is anticipated to be sold or returned ($50,668,000), write-downs associated with
the disposal of Ñxed assets ($15,167,000), lease terminations ($21,065,000), adjustments to the book value of
investments in unconsolidated entities ($42,880,000) and other items ($2,403,000). The unusually large
impact on after-tax income related to the special charge is due primarily to the non-deductibility of certain
acquisition-related costs and the impact of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions. Of the special charge of
$327,485,000 pre-tax, $184,024,000 did not require the use of cash and $143,461,000 required the use of cash,
approximately $122,684,000 of which had been utilized at June 28, 2002. The unutilized portion at June 28,
2002 relates primarily to remaining contractual lease commitments, substantially all of which is expected to be
utilized by the end of 2006.
During the third quarter of 2000, the Company recorded $14,823,000 pre-tax and $8,877,000 after-tax
($0.08 per share on a diluted basis) of incremental special charges associated with: (a) the integration of
Eurotronics B.V. and SEI Macro Group into EM EMEA ($10,120,000 pre-tax); (b) the integration of JBA
Computer Solutions into CM North America ($3,146,000 pre-tax); and (c) costs related to the consolidation
of EM's European warehousing operations ($1,557,000 pre-tax). Approximately $13,327,000 of the pre-tax
charge was included in operating expenses and $1,496,000 was included in cost of sales, which represented a
non-cash write-down. These charges include severance, inventory reserves related to termination of product
lines, write-downs associated with the disposal of Ñxed assets and other items. Of the special charges of
$14,823,000 pre-tax, approximately $7,237,000 did not require an outÖow of cash and $7,586,000 required the
use of cash, substantially all of which has been utilized at June 28, 2002.
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During the second quarter of 2000, the Company recorded $28,030,000 pre-tax and $17,573,000 after-tax
($0.16 per share on a diluted basis) of incremental special charges associated with: (a) the integration of
Marshall Industries into the Company's EM and AC operations ($18,413,000 pre-tax); (b) the reorganization
of the Company's EM Asian operations ($5,409,000 pre-tax); (c) costs related to the consolidation of the
Company's EM European warehousing operations ($1,509,000 pre-tax); and (d) costs incurred in connection
with certain litigation initiated by the Company ($2,699,000 pre-tax). Approximately $17,739,000 of the pretax charge was included in operating expenses and $10,291,000 was included in the cost of sales. The charges
related to the integration of Marshall Industries and the reorganization of the Asian operations are comprised
of severance, inventory reserves required related to supplier terminations, real property lease terminations,
employee and facility relocation costs, special incentive payments and other items. Of the special charges of
$28,030,000 pre-tax, approximately $11,143,000 did not require an outÖow of cash and $16,887,000 required
the use of cash, substantially all of which has been utilized at June 28, 2002.
During the Ñrst quarter of 2000, the Company recorded $6,111,000 pre-tax and $3,976,000 after-tax
($0.04 per share on a diluted basis) of incremental special charges associated with the reorganization of the
EM European operations consisting primarily of costs related to the consolidation of warehousing operations.
The entire $6,111,000 pre-tax is included in operating expenses, most of which required an outÖow of cash,
substantially all of which had been utilized at June 28, 2002. These charges included severance, adjustments
of the carrying value of Ñxed assets, real property lease terminations and other items.
The total amount of special charges recorded in 2000 amounted to $48,964,000 pre-tax ($37,177,000 included in operating expenses and $11,787,000 included in cost of sales), $30,426,000 after-tax and $0.28 per
share on a diluted basis.
18.

Summary of quarterly results (unaudited):
First
Quarter

2002
Sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Gross proÑt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) before cumulative eÅect of
change in accounting principle ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
From continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Before cumulative eÅect of change in
accounting principle ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net earnings (loss) per shareÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$2,201.2
310.6
(19.2)

Second
Third
Fourth
Quarter
Quarter
Quarter
(Millions, except per share amounts)

Year

$2,359.8
318.6
(2.6)

$2,214.4
311.0
(1.2)

(2.6)
(2.6)

(1.2)
(1.2)

(61.4)(b)
(61.4)(b)

(84.4)(b)
(664.9)(b)

(0.16)

(0.02)

(0.01)

(0.51)(b)

(0.71)(b)

(0.16)
(5.09)(a)

(0.02)
(0.02)

(0.01)
(0.01)

(0.51)(b)
(0.51)(b)

(0.71)(b)
(5.61)(b)

(19.2)
(599.7)(a)
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First
Quarter

2001
Sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Gross proÑt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
From continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net earnings (loss) per shareÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Second
Third
Fourth
Quarter
Quarter
Quarter
(Millions, except per share amounts)

$3,188.6
487.6
82.4
85.1

$3,630.5
542.8
81.9
99.6

$3,457.2
522.8
66.8
66.8

0.68
0.70

0.69
0.83

0.56
0.56

Year

$2,537.7
$12,814.0
312.3 (c)
1,865.5 (c)
(231.0)(c)
0.1 (c)
(236.1)(c)
15.4 (c)
(1.96)(c)
(2.01)(c)

Ì (c)
0.13 (c)

(a) As discussed in Note 6, the Company adopted SFAS 142 on the Ñrst day of 2002 and recorded a
$580.5 million transition impairment charge as a cumulative eÅect of change in accounting principle as of
that date. The transition impairment charge was Ñrst reported by the Company in the second quarter of
2002. However, in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142, the charge has been properly reÖected in
the Ñrst quarter in the table above.
(b) Includes the impact of incremental special charges associated with the write-down in value of certain
assets acquired in the Kent acquisition and certain other charges taken in response to current business
conditions. The charge amounted to $79.6 million pre-tax ($21.6 million included in cost of sales and
$58.0 million included in operating expenses) and $62.1 million after-tax, or $0.52 per share on a diluted
basis for the fourth quarter and year ended June 28, 2002.
(c) Includes the impact of incremental special charges associated with the acquisition and integration of Kent
and for costs related to actions taken in response to business conditions and other restructuring activity.
The charge amounted to $327.5 million pre-tax ($80.6 million included in cost of sales and $246.9 million
included in operating expenses) and $236.7 million after-tax, or $2.01 per share on a diluted basis for the
fourth quarter ($1.99 per share for the year).

73

SCHEDULE II
AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years Ended June 28, 2002, June 29, 2001 and June 30, 2000
Column A

Column B

Description

Balance at
beginning of
period

Column C
Additions
Charged to
Charged to
costs and
other accountsexpenses
describe
(Thousands)

Column D

Column E

Deductionsdescribe

Balance at
end of
period

$ 13,278(c)

$99,073

2002
Allowance for doubtful
accounts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$65,204

$32,276

Valuation allowance on foreign
loss carryforwards
(Note 9) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

49,783

70,888

Ì

Ì

120,671

Allowance for doubtful
accounts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

44,523

28,606

44(a)
7,976(d)

14,898(c)
1,047(e)

65,204

Valuation allowance on foreign
loss carryforwards
(Note 9) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Ì

49,783

Ì

Ì

49,783

28,626

18,454

76(a)
9,286(d)

11,919(c)

44,523

$

977(a)
13,894(b)

2001

2000
Allowance for doubtful
accounts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(a) Recovery of amounts previously written oÅ or reserved.
(b) Reserves recorded primarily through 2002 and 2001 reorganization charges (see Note 17) and
subsequently classiÑed as reserves for doubtful accounts in 2002.
(c) Uncollectible accounts written oÅ.
(d) Acquisitions.
(e) Dispositions.
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2A.

2B.

2C.

2D.

3A.
3B.
4.

10A.

10B.

10C.

10D.

10E.

10F.

10G.

Exhibit

Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of June 25, 1999, between the
Company and Marshall Industries (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-4, Registration Number 333-86721, Exhibit 2.1).*
Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of March 2, 2000, among the
Company, Tactful Acquisition Corp and Savoir Technology Group, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Appendix A to the Proxy Statement/Prospectus included in the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-4, Registration Number 333-86970).*
Share Purchase Agreement dated August 7, 2000 by and among VEBA Electronics GmbH, EBV
Verwaltungs GmbH i.L., Viterra Grundstucke Verwaltungs GmbH, VEBA Electronics LLC, VEBA
Electronics Beteiligungs GmbH, VEBA Electronics (UK) Plc, Raab Karcher Electronics systems
Plc and E.ON Aktiengesellschaft and Arrow Electronics, Inc., Avnet, Inc. and Cherrybright Limited
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 22, 2000, Exhibit 2).*
Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of March 21, 2001, between the
Company and Kent Electronics Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Appendix A to the
Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus included in the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-4,
Registration Number 333-58852).*
Restated CertiÑcate of Incorporation of the Company (incorporated herein by reference to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 12, 2001, Exhibit 3(i).
By-laws of the Company, eÅective July 27, 2001 (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 25, 2001 Exhibit 4).
Note: The total amount of securities authorized under any instrument which deÑnes the rights of
holders of Company's long-term debt does not exceed 10% of the total assets of the Company and its
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. Therefore, none of such instruments are required to be Ñled as
exhibits to this Report. The Company agrees to furnish copies of such instruments to the
Commission upon request.
Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangements
Employment Agreement dated June 29, 1998 between the Company and David R. Birk
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 18, 1998, Exhibit 99.3).
Employment Agreement dated June 29, 1998 between the Company and Raymond Sadowski
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 18, 1998, Exhibit 99.4).
Employment Agreement dated July 6, 1998 between the Company and George Smith (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 28, 1999,
Exhibit 99).
Employment Agreement dated May 22, 2000 between the Company and Patrick Jewett
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 11,
2000, Exhibit 99).
Employment Agreement dated January 1, 2001 between the Company and Brian Hilton
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 14,
2001, Exhibit 99A).
Employment Agreement dated July 1, 2002 between the Company and Steven C. Church
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10A).
Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2000 between the Company and Andrew S. Bryant
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 14,
2001, Exhibit 99C).
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Managing Director Contract dated January 22, 2001 between the Company's Avnet Alfapower
GmbH subsidiary and Axel Hartstang (incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report
on Form 8-K dated as of February 12, 2000, Exhibit 99).
Employment Agreement dated May 1, 2000 between the Company and Richard Hamada
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10B).
Employment Agreement dated July 1, 2002 between the Company and Edward B. Kamins
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10C).
Employment Agreement dated September 20, 2002 between the Company and Roy Vallee
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10D).
Change of Control Agreement dated as of March 1, 2001 between the Company and David R. Birk
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 14,
2001, Exhibit 99D).
Change of Control Agreement dated as of March 1, 2001 between the Company and Axel Hartstang
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 14,
2001, Exhibit 99E).
Change of Control Agreement dated as of March 1, 2001 between the Company and Pat Jewett
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 14,
2001, Exhibit 99F).
Change of Control Agreement dated as of March 1, 2001 between the Company and Ray Sadowski
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 14,
2001, Exhibit 99H).
Change of Control Agreement dated as of March 1, 2001 between the Company and George Smith
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 14,
2001, Exhibit 99I).
Change of Control Agreement dated as of March 1, 2001 between the Company and Philip
Gallagher (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 25, 2001, Exhibit 10A).
Change of Control Agreement dated November 1, 2000 between the Company and Richard
Hamada (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10E).
Avnet 1984 Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 2-96800, Exhibit 4-B).
Avnet 1988 Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 33-29475, Exhibit 4-B).
Avnet 1990 Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended June 30, 1992, Exhibit 10E).
Avnet 1995 Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report
on Form 8-K dated February 12, 1996, Exhibit 10).
Avnet 1996 Incentive Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-17271, Exhibit 99).
Amended and Restated Avnet 1997 Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 6, 1999, Exhibit 10).
1994 Avnet Incentive Stock Program (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-00129, Exhibit 99).
Stock Bonus Plan for Outside Directors (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated September 23, 1997, Exhibit 99.2).
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10AA.

Retirement Plan for Outside Directors of Avnet, Inc., eÅective July 1, 1993 (incorporated herein by
reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended June 30, 1992,
Exhibit 10i).
10BB. Avnet, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Outside Directors (incorporated herein by reference to
the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 23, 1997, Exhibit 99.1).
10CC. Form of Indemnity Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report
on Form 8-K dated September 25, 2001, Exhibit 10B). The Company enters into this form of
agreement with each of its directors and oÇcers.
10DD. Avnet 1999 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement
on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-55806, Exhibit 99).
10EE. Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated herein by reference to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated December 28, 2001).
Bank Agreements
10FF. Credit Agreement (364-day) dated as of October 25, 2001 among the Company and certain other
Borrowers as the Borrowers, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent and Documentation
Agent, Credit Suisse First Boston, First Union National Bank, The Bank of Nova Scotia, and ABN
AMRO Bank, N.V., as Joint Syndication Agents, the Other Lenders and Banc of America
Securities LLC, and Credit Suisse First Boston as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Book Managers
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10F).
10GG. First Amendment, dated as of March 29, 2002, to the Credit Agreement (364-Day) in 10FF above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10G).
10HH. Credit Agreement (Multi-Year) dated as of October 25, 2001 among Avnet, Inc. and Certain Other
Borrowers as the Borrowers, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Documentation
Agent, Letter of Credit Issuer and Swing Line Lender, Credit Suisse First Boston, First Union
National Bank, The Bank of Nova Scotia, and ABN AMRO Bank N.V., as Joint Syndication
Agents, the other Lenders party thereto and Banc of America Securities LLC, and Credit Suisse
First Boston as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Book Managers (incorporated herein by reference to
the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10H).
10II.
First Amendment, dated as of March 29, 2002, to the Credit Agreement (Multi-Year) in 10HH
above (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10I).
10JJ.
Securitization Program
i. Receivables Sale Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2001 between Avnet, Inc., as Originator and
Avnet Receivables Corporation as Buyer (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10J).
ii. Amendment No. 1, dated as of February 6, 2002, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10JJ.i
above (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10K).
iii. Amendment No. 2, dated as of June 26, 2002, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10JJ.i above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10L).
iv. Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of February 6, 2002 among
Avnet Receivables Corporation, as Seller, Avnet, Inc., as Servicer, the Companies, as deÑned
therein, the Financial Institutions, as deÑned therein, and Bank One, NA (Main OÇce
Chicago) as Agent (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on
Form 8-K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10M).*
v. Amendment No. 1, dated as of June 26, 2002, to the Amended and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement in 10JJ.iv above (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10N).
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Exhibit
Number

16.

21.
23.1**
23.2**
23.3**
99.1**
99.2**

Exhibit

Arthur Andersen's letter to the Securities and Exchange Commission dated April 23, 2002
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
April 23, 2002).
List of subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 21).
Consent of KPMG LLP.
Notice regarding consent of Arthur Andersen LLP.
Consent of Grant Thornton LLP.
CertiÑcation by Roy Vallee, Chief Executive OÇcer, under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.
CertiÑcation by Raymond Sadowski, Chief Financial OÇcer, under Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

* This Exhibit does not include the Exhibits and Schedules thereto as listed in its table of contents. The
Company undertakes to furnish any such Exhibits and Schedules to the Securities and Exchange
Commission upon its request.
** Filed herewith.
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Shareholders’ Information

Diversity Statement

Transfer Agent

Avnet is committed to building a high-performance work
environment in which individual differences are respected
and valued, opening the way for more participation and
greater career success for all employees. Avnet is an equal
opportunity employer providing affirmative action programs
for the full and effective utilization of qualified persons
regardless of race, religion, color, age, gender, sexual
orientation or national origin.We also support programs
for the employment and advancement of qualified disabled
veterans and Vietnam-era veterans.

Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A.
Shareowner Services
P.O. Box 64854
St. Paul, MN 55164-0854
Telephone: (800) 468-9716
Fax: (651) 450-4033

Forward-Looking Statements

Executive Offices

This document contains certain “forward-looking statements”
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
These statements are based on management’s current
expectations and are subject to uncertainty and changes in
factual circumstances.The forward-looking statements include
statements addressing future financial and operating results
of Avnet. Actual results may vary materially from the
expectations contained in the forward-looking statements.
The following factors, among others, could cause actual
results to differ materially from those described in the
forward-looking statements: changes in business conditions
and the economy in general, changes in market demand and
pricing pressures, allocations of products by suppliers, failure
to obtain and retain expected synergies from newly acquired
businesses, and other competitive and/or regulatory factors
affecting the businesses of Avnet generally.
More detailed information about these and other factors
is set forth in Avnet’s filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, including the Annual Report on Form 10-K
for fiscal 2002. Avnet is under no obligation to (and
expressly disclaims any such obligation to) update or alter
any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of
new information, future events or otherwise.

Form 10-K
A copy of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K,
filed in September 2002 with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, may be obtained by writing to Investor
Relations, at the executive offices address or visit Avnet’s
Investor Relations Web site at www.ir.avnet.com.

Hearing impaired shareholders with access to a
telecommunications device (TDD) can communicate
directly with Wells Fargo Bank.The TDD number is:
(651) 450-4144.

Avnet, Inc.
2211 S. 47th St.
Phoenix, AZ 85034-6403
Telephone: (480) 643-2000 or (888) 822-8638

Investor Relations Department
John Hovis
Vice President and Director, Investor Relations
Telephone: (480) 643-7294 or
(888) 822-8638 ext. 7294
Fax: (480) 643-7370
Email: investorrelations@avnet.com

Internet Availability
Comprehensive investment information regarding Avnet,
including current and previous Annual Reports, management
presentations, calendars of events, and other information
and materials are available on the World Wide Web
at www.ir.avnet.com.

Annual Meeting
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at the
Phoenix Airport Marriott, 1101 N. 44th St., Phoenix, AZ,
November 7, 2002 at 2:00 p.m. MST. A formal notice of the
meeting, together with a proxy statement, will be mailed
to each shareholder. The meeting will be broadcast live
over the Internet at www.ir.avnet.com.

Dividends Declared
Cash dividends on the Company’s common stock were
7.5 cents per share during the first two quarters of fiscal
2002. Avnet discontinued paying cash dividends after its
payment on January 2, 2002.

Auditors
KPMG LLP, Phoenix, Arizona

Price Range of Common Stock
The Company’s common stock is listed on the New York
Stock Exchange® (trading symbol: AVT).The high and low
prices during each quarter of fiscal years 2002 and 2001 were:

© 2002 Avnet, Inc. All rights reserved. Avnet and the AV logo are
trademarks of Avnet, Inc. All dollar values are stated in U.S. dollars.
Agency: L3 Creative
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$25.72
$26.38
$29.06
$28.42

www.ir.avnet.com

$17.55
$17.54
$22.98
$18.95

High

FY2001
Low

$35.41
$30.28
$28.45
$28.09

$25.53
$17.19
$19.35
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